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On behalf of the Board of Directors of Anxin-China Holdings Limited
(the “Company” or “Anxin-China”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
| hereby present the Group’s audited financial results for the year
ended 31 December 2013 to our shareholders.

In 2013, the Group’s consolidated turnover edged down 21% year-
on-year to HK$671.7 million due to delays in government-related
projects. Coupled with a lower top line and fair value changes as
well as impairment losses on good will for subsidiaries, profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company amounted to HK$369.5
million, representing a year-on-year decline of approximately 33%.

Despite facing a temporary setback in profitability, the Group remains
sanguine on the safety surveillance market. Based on the Group’s
healthy financial position, the Board of Directors has recommended
the payment of a final dividend of HK1.0 cents per share for the
year ended 31 December 2013, in addition to the interim dividend of
HK1.4 cents per share.

Looking back on 2013, Anxin-China was confronted with challenges
arising from the ever-changing operating environment. On the other
hand, the Group was afforded new opportunities associated with
the expansion of both its operating markets and customer base.
Therefore, we remain cautiously optimistic on the Group’s prospects.
In order to provide sustainable momentum for the Group’s healthy
development, we continue to stay abreast of market dynamics
and have implemented three strategies to stay attuned to market
updates.
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KEEN TO MAINTAIN SOLID TIES WITH
EXISTING ISD CUSTOMERS

Workplace safety, the safety of the general public and property
protection are intertwined in many aspects. The government has
highlighted work safety as a critical component of the blueprint for
economic and social development. A total amount of RMB625 million
will be invested into nine key projects which include promoting
the standardization of work safety management. As the largest
integrated solutions provider and services operator of ISD systems
in China, the Group will certainly benefit from the unprecedented
attention and investment now targeted at industrial work safety.
As of the end-2013, the Group had set up 45 monitoring centers
and 29,909 surveillance points across 11 provinces and 40 cities/
counties.

In the first half of 2013, the Group considered business expansion
a top priority and therefore strived to exploit new operating markets
with great vigor. We succeeded in including five more markets and
5,864 new monitoring centers in our portfolio. The fact that 83% of
the segment’s revenue was derived from one-off sales of surveillance
points indicates that our ISD business is poised for sustainable
growth.

However, Anxin-China — together with other enterprises which target
government agencies as major customers — inevitably felt the chill
in the wavering domestic market, given that local governments
are intensifying their efforts to improve work transparency and
efficiency. As a result, the construction process of the Group’s ISD
projects experienced postponements. Given the delays, we strived
to maintain closer connections with our existing customers with a
view to maintaining high sensitivity towards market updates. We are
extending every effort to gear up our ISD business for rapid growth.

ENHANCE INTEGRATION OF ADVANCED
TECHNOLOGIES AND PRODUCTS; PLAY
ACTIVE ROLE IN CONSTRUCTION OF ISS
“SAFE CITIES”

Public safety issues usually top people’s concerns along with social
progress. The construction of “Safe Cities” and “Smart Cities” is in
full swing across China which will effectuate the wide application
of intelligent surveillance in various sectors such as transportation,
firefighting, commerce and finance, etc.

5
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The Group attained Israeli high-tech intelligent video analysis
technologies through the acquisition of Anxin Mate Holdings Ltd in
the previous financial year. In the same year, the Group completed
the acquisition of Shenzhen Hawell Advanced Technology Co Ltd
which helped strengthen our R&D capabilities to develop surveillance
hardware such as Closed Circuit Television (“CCTV”). The year 2013
saw the Group’s continuous efforts to materialize various strategic
moves and generate synergetic effects out of them. A series of
HD network cameras, which were independently developed and
manufactured by the Group, were qualified by national assessment
agencies, strongly suggesting our capabilities to digest, absorb, and
reinvent advanced surveillance technologies.

Given the fierce competition in the safety industry, we are convinced
that an excellent R&D capability constitutes the core value of our
brand. With the vision of “Anxin-China, your safety is our business,”
we will hasten efforts to improve the reliability and intelligence-
gathering performance of our ISS products and hence provide solid
technological support for us to penetrate the public safety market.

During the year under review, Anxin-China provided tailor-made ISS
systems solutions that cater to various demands of pilot cities. Our
quality services and flexible operations have earned us trust and
confidence from local governments and therefore we were able to
build solid partnerships with them. As of 31 December 2013, Anxin-
China has proceeded to the stage of contract signings or has been
notified of the success of its bids with respect to the construction of
“Safe City Projects” in five cities/counties in China, covering Hubei
Province, Guizhou Province, Jiangsu Province and Jilin Province, etc.
We believe that our ISS business will achieve greater economies of
scale in 2014 with solid progress in technological applications as well
as business model success. In the future, the ISS business will play a
bigger role in propelling the development of the Group.
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TAP INTO ELEVATOR SECURITY
SURVEILLANCE BUSINESS, DIVERSIFY
GROUP’S REVENUE STREAMS

Facing ups and downs along the road ahead, we are taking the
initiative to seek breakthroughs for our business. According to
the General Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection and
Quarantine (“AQSIQ”"), the number of registered elevators in the PRC
has reached 2.45 million by the end of 2012. The rate of accidents
was 0.15 per 10,000 machines, with a mortality rate of 0.11 per
10,000 machines. Eyeing the great market potential, we are eager to
explore the elevator intelligent surveillance sector. We were devoted
to enhance the efficiency of elevator safety monitoring by utilizing
advanced Internet-of-Things surveillance technologies. Furthermore,
we proposed a groundbreaking business model of providing
advertisement distribution channels in elevators to ease capital
pressure for elevator monitoring projects and vitalize the smooth flow
of the governments’ work to ensure public safety. Meanwhile, the
Group is of the view that the “Elevator Safety Monitoring-Advertising
Channels” business mode, as a more market-driven one, will help
diversify the Group’s customer base as well as its revenue streams
to avoid risks associated with potential overreliance on a single
customer structure, and thus pave the way for the Group’s long-term
growth.

In 2013, China’s new leadership has showed us their extraordinary
determination to launch wide-ranging reforms. They are doing their
utmost to strengthen internal management and upgrade the mode
of economic growth so as to bring China’s economic development
as well as people’s living standards to the next level. Under these
circumstances, government agencies as well as enterprises are
placing more emphasis on industrial safety issues, instead of
merely focusing on short-term interests. We are confident that the
Group’s various projects will proceed as planned, as long as the
government’s restructuring efforts to boost work efficiency enter
a stable phase. Our ongoing ISD projects are expected to make
considerable contributions to revenue growth next year. Meanwhile,
the safety industry will enjoy enormous development opportunities in
2014 along with the wide utilization of Internet-of-Things and other
top-notch information technologies. We are taking prudent steps
along the way to march into the public safety sector, and we aim to
propel our elevator security surveillance business into a more mature
stage with stronger networks in expanded operational markets.
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In early 2014, Anxin-China for the very first time made it onto the
top five for Forbes’ List of “Top 100 Listed Companies with Most
Potential in China 2014,” fully indicating Anxin-China’s strong brand
value and investment potential as a technical-oriented enterprise.
To live up to expectations placed upon us, we are committed to
improving our technological strength, optimizing service solutions
as well as enhancing our market competitiveness. In an effort to
maximize our shareholders’ benefits, we strive to pursue high profit
margins while maintaining a stable dividend policy.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend
my heartfelt gratitude to our management and staff whose hard
work and dedication lay a solid foundation for the Group’s success.
Meanwhile, | would also like to deliver my sincere thanks to our
stakeholders and business partners for their support and trust that
help achieve one milestone after another on the Group’s pathway
ahead. We hope to generate more returns for all parties in the
coming future.

Liu Zhongkui
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

HongKong, 25 March 2014
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Anxin-China’s product portfolio is comprised of specialized intelligent
monitoring systems which play a major role in industrial and public
safety surveillance. Anxin-China is an integrated solutions provider,
services operator and equipment manufacturer of ISD systems
(“Intelligent Surveillance, Disaster Alert and Rescue Coordination
Systems”) and ISS systems (“Intelligent Safety Systems”).

The Group, with roots continually expanding in the area of industrial
safety monitoring, is mainly engaged in the sale of ISD systems for
improving efficiency and effectiveness of monitoring the entirety
of work safety. With the capabilities of designing, developing,
manufacturing and distributing ISD systems software and hardware,
the Group provides integrated solutions for government agencies
which are the chief navigators of work safety issues. Anxin-China
is one of the pioneers and prime movers of ISD systems, and
participated in the formulation of PRC coal mining ISD system
standards in the early stages of development. In recent years,
safety monitoring gradually expanded from coal mining industry
to all industries considered high-risk sectors. To exert its hold on
market trends, Anxin-China has invested substantially since 2008 to
upgrade its systems so that various sensors from multiple industries
could attain inter-connectivity. Currently, Anxin-China is the largest
integrated solutions provider and services operator of ISD systems in
the PRC.

9
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Targeting the public safety sector as a major market impetus,
Anxin-China is well positioned to capitalize on opportunities arising
from the construction boom of “Safe Cities” and “Smart Cities”.
Thanks to a well-planned M&A campaign, Anxin-China has been
able to leverage on the lIsraeli high-tech intelligent video analysis
technologies and advanced surveillance hardware attained to
develop a new generation of ISS systems catering to sectors such
as public security, transportation, firefighting, urban construction
and commerce, etc. The Group is thereby poised to build a clearer
business blueprint in the public safety sector. Anxin-China’s ISS
system has set up a wide variety of production lines, with a large
number of self-owned intellectual property rights boasting core
intelligence technology including video capture cards, high—definition
analog cameras, digital network high definition cameras, digital
network video recorders, data storage and video transmission
products. In addition, Anxin-China owns a variety of patents such as
“Methods for generating indices of video imaging sequencing”, etc.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The first half of 2013 (“1H2013”) saw favorable market conditions
fueled by tremendous government support. The Group achieved
remarkable results by shifting its market focus to explore new
provinces/cities so as to expand its business network. Accordingly,
the segment revenue rose 35% year-on-year to HK$513.7 million in
1H2013, constituting 79% of the full-year 2013 results contributed
by the ISD segment.

In the second half of 2013 (“2H2013”), the PRC government took the
initiative to strengthen internal management and undertake personnel
adjustments in an effort to improve work efficiency and transparency.
Along with transitional growing pains, operational conditions in the
PRC market remained uncertain and ambiguous. Enterprises whose
revenues are substantially derived from government-related projects
were inevitably facing downside risks. As a result, some ongoing ISD
projects were postponed in 2H2013. Nevertheless, being attuned
to the market trend, Anxin-China continued to refine its market
strategies in order to diversify revenue streams and enhance anti-risk
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capabilities. During the year under review, the Group slowed down
the pace of geographical market expansion, and instead devoted
more efforts to strengthening ties with government authorities and
developing into new safety sectors. These flexible and progressive
business strategies are expected to provide sustainable momentum
to propel the Group’s healthy development.

During the year under review, the Group added 9 new monitoring
centers in 4 provinces including Hunan, Jilin, Jiangsu and
Chongging. In addition, there was an increase of 6,521 surveillance
points in existing and newly tapped provinces/cities. As of 31
December 2013, Anxin-China had established 45 monitoring centers
and 29,909 surveillance points in total, and successfully expanded
its ISD business across 11 provinces and 40 cities/counties.

By R BRI B
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During the year of 2013, the Group’ s revenue contribution from the
ISD system business segment was primarily derived from (1) one-
off installation fees for sales of surveillance points and (2) continuing
management fees for ongoing systems operations and maintenance.
81% of the segment’s revenue, amounting to HK$525,845,000,
was generated from one-off sales of surveillance points, while
HK$125,916,000 (19% of the segment’s revenue) was generated
from systems operations and maintenance.

ISDZ Ep & X WA 2 5
Breakdown of ISD Revenue
2013.1-12 81%
2013.1-6 83%
2012.1-12 82%

2012.1-6 90%

2011.1-12 94%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

FREAAER Interim Result
B BRI B E A
Continuing management fee

o —IRIERERIEHERA
one-off installation fee

FERE Annual Result
FEM R SRR S E R
Continuing management fee

o —RMMERIBHERA
one-off installation fee

R&D strength has always been a high priority for the Group. During
the year under review, via redefining and redesigning operational
schemes of main function modules, the Group completed various
modifications for ISD systems in an effort to provide our clients with
more convenient and user-friendly interfaces. Meanwhile, so as to
better cater to the myriad needs of clients, the Group redesigned
the operational module of database interfaces, enabling the system
to access different databases. In addition, the Group launched an
R&D and design project for the next generation of ISD systems.
Technical upgrades have been undertaken targeting the framework
of the transmission network and the possibility of touch interfaces
has been pursued for the new-generation ISD systems, with a view
to creating more efficient ISD systems capable of eliminating non-
vital information and de-connectivity issues. They also feature better
modularity and greater integration of various subsystems, which
eases the difficulties associated with subsequent redevelopment and
attaining closer user interaction.
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The Group is always optimistic about the prospect of intelligent
surveillance in the public safety sector, in particular — video
monitoring — which plays a key role in the industrial chain. During
the year under review, the Group worked hard to materialize the
synergistic benefits of the acquisitions completed in the previous
financial year and strived to further develop one of its business
pillars — the ISS segment. On the one hand, the Group successfully
embedded the intelligent video analysis algorithms acquired from
the acquisition of Anxin Mate Holdings Ltd into existing systems.
The integration helped broaden application coverage for the
Group’s cutting edge technologies including scenario analysis. On
the other hand, since the Group completed the acquisition of Yu
Hong Investments Ltd and its wholly-owned subsidiary Shenzhen
Hawell Advanced Technology Co Ltd in 2012, Anxin-China has
sped up efforts on independent R&D activities for safety surveillance
products like Closed Circuit Television. In August 2013, HD gun-
type network cameras (Series: HW-Q2010HPCDW and HW-
Q1307HPCDW) and HD ball-type network cameras (Series: HW-
C1307HIDD18, HW-S2010HSDD20), which were independently
developed and manufactured by the Group, were qualified by the 1st
Institution of the Ministry of Public Security, and conferred statuses
of Model Identification Report and 28181 Evaluation Report jointly
by the National Testing Center For Quality of Security & Safety
Alarm System Products (Beijing) and the Testing Center for Quality
of Security & Police Electronic Products under the Ministry of Public
Security. The qualifications were proof positive of the industry-
leading technologies that Anxin-China possesses for ISS systems
and at the same time served as a way of promoting the brand value
of Anxin-China.

In addition, the integration of advanced intelligent video analysis
technologies with high-quality surveillance hardware allowed the
Group to efficiently improve its products’ resolution ratios, coding
and decoding capacities and overall reliability, and to update
existing video surveillance product offerings. Hence, the Group has
established a solid foundation to penetrate the public safety market.
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During the year under review, the Group made impressive
progress in the construction of “Safe City Projects” in China. Upon
successful test trials with city-level governments, Anxin-China has
proceeded to the stage of contract signings or has been notified
of the acceptances of its bids with respect to the construction of
“Safe City Projects” in five cities/counties in China, including Dawu
County, Honghu City in Hubei Province, Fuquan City in Guizhou
Province, Suining County in Jiangsu Province and Dunhua City
in Jilin Province. The Group will provide integrated ISS systems
solutions for these cities/counties. With experiences gained, Anxin-
China will hasten efforts to improve the operational performance
of ISS systems and bring its business model to a more mature
phase. The outcomes are expected to help attract the attention
of the potential market. Even though the ISS segment will not be
materialized until 2014, it managed to deliver a performance that was
above expectations during the year. The Group believes that the ISS
business enjoys long-term development potential.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

In recent years, the government has actively promoted the
implementation of industrial work safety tasks and estimates total
investment into the work safety industry will reach RMB625 billion.
In 2012, the State Administration of Work Safety (“SAWS”) and the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of the PRC jointly
issued “Opinions on Promoting the Development of the Security
Industry,” according to which enterprises are encouraged to develop
technologies for improving workplace safety with the entire safety
industry being greatly promoted. SAWS issued “Opinions on Further
Strengthening the Construction of the Work Safety Emergency
Platform” (SAWS Document No. 114, 2012) in September 2012,
expecting a well-established network of platforms for emergency
management of enterprises and safety monitoring institutions to be
operational by end-2015. In early 2013, SAWS issued “Opinions
on Promoting the Construction of Work Safety Standardization
in National Industrial and Trading Enterprises” (SAWS Fourth
Document No. 8, 2013) to reinforce the standardized management
of workplace safety and spur a troubleshooting system. In addition,
the State Council issued “Opinions on Further Strengthening Work
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Safety in Coal Mines” (State Council document No. 99, 2013), with
an aim to promoting construction of coal mining security quality
informatization, advancing the application of Internet-of-Things
technologies and building a sound information coordinating platform
which manages video monitoring, real-time monitoring and remote
control functionality.

China witnessed improved workplace safety in 2013, benefiting from
strong guidance and strict supervision. According to the “Statistical
Communique on 2013 National Economic and Social Development
Performance” released by the National Bureau of Statistics, fatalities
related to safety issues recorded a significant decline to 69,434 in
2013.

The 12th Five-Year Plan clearly indicated the importance of setting
up a well-developed public safety scheme, and emphasized that
the scheme, armed with both alert systems and emergency plans,
should be able to cater to demands from ever-changing conditions
in the public safety sector. It strongly suggests that the national
government attaches high importance to public security. Meanwhile,
there is a more extensive presence of intelligent safety surveillance
systems in both traditional sectors such as finance, transportation,
public services, and in emerging sectors such as education,
sanitation, sports, energy and communications. The increasing
demand has been seen in non-government markets as well. In
addition, the construction of “Smart Cities” stimulated demand for
surveillance products applicable in the public safety sector in an
unprecedented way. Statistics show that over 180 cities began
building themselves into smart cities in 2013, helping the domestic
security surveillance market scale reach RMB70 billion. According
to IDC statistics, the year-on-year growth rate of the domestic video
surveillance market will reach 26.05% and 19.69% in 2013 and
2014, respectively. Guoxin Securities also predicts the entire video
security market will maintain a growth rate of over 20% in the next
few years.
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PROSPECTS

China is currently undergoing a critical economic transformation. The
growth trajectory is evolving towards a more balanced, high-quality
and sustainable model. Therefore, there are higher expectations
and requirements for safety issues in both industrial production and
public sectors. The government considers the construction of “Smart
Cities” a strategic move highly conducive to social progress. Riding
these industry waves, Anxin-China sees unprecedented opportunities
given the wide utilization of Internet-of-Things and other advanced
information technologies. “The China Public Safety 12-5
Development Plan” predicts that in 2015, China’s security industry
will double in size, with an annual growth rate of around 20%.
The total output value of the safety industry is expected to reach
RMB500 billion in 2015, an increase of RMB160 billion as compared
to the current value. Worthy of note is that the growth driver of the
industry will shift to second or third-tier cities along with the further
development of high-end security technologies. The customer base
will be generalized from the domination of government agencies to
commercial premises. Commercial buildings, warehouses, etc. are
playing an increasing role other than industrial production, urban
transportation and logistics.

Anxin-China therefore entered into an acquisition agreement in
February 2014 with Bloom Zone Limited for the entire issued
share capital of its subsidiary Altus Technologies, for an aggregate
consideration of HK$1,300,000,000. Anxin-China is guaranteed at
least HK$120 million in profit after tax from Altus Technologies for
the years 2014 and 2015. Altus Technologies is mainly engaged in
the development, production and distribution of safety monitoring
and security systems for elevators. It will also generate income by
installing screens in elevators as distribution channels for advertising
companies. The acquisition has allowed the Group to tap into the
new elevator safety monitoring market sector with improved research
capacities and solution services. The proposed business model of
providing advertising distribution channels in elevators diversifies the
Group’s customer base as well as its revenue streams to avoid risks
associated with potential overreliance on a single customer structure.
Due to the rapid development of China’s economy in recent years,
the number of registered elevators reached 2.40 million in China by
the end of 2012 and is expected to exceed three million by the end
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of 2013. Moreover, official statistics show China’s total number of
elevators is expected to grow at a remarkable rate of approximately
20%.
make persistent efforts to optimize its business model to achieve a
more vigorous performance in 2014.

Foreseeing the market with great potential, Anxin-China will

Anxin-China has been committed to establishing solid bonds
with academia so as to provide strong backup for the Group’s
sustainable growth. In early 2013, Shenzhen Anxin Digital
Development Co Ltd (Shenzhen Anxin), one of Anxin-China’s
subsidiaries, was designated as a Guangdong Academician & Expert
Enterprise Workstation. The Group, is therefore provided with a
sound platform to convert the experts’ scientific experiences into
its own technological strengths. In early 2014, Anxin Digital passed
a review assessment for CMMI ML3 Capability (“Capability Maturity
Model Integration Maturity Level 3”), demonstrating that the Group’s
software products have reached international standards in terms of

quality management.

In early 2014, for the very first time, Anxin-China made it onto the
top five for Forbes’ List of “Top 100 Strongest Potential Listed
Companies in China 2014.” Anxin-China outperformed its peers
in the competitive selection, owing to its devotion to enhance the
overall strength of the Group with value-added R&D capabilities. The
ranking shows the Group’s efforts have been fully recognized by
influential institutions and is surely to bring the Group more positive
attention and further boost confidence within Anxin-China.

The Group, well positioned for an upward campaign, will
continuously upgrade its integrated solutions for ISD and ISS
systems and strive to maintain a leading position in the safety
industry with high-caliber products and services.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s
consolidated turnover was approximately HK$671,702,000
(2012: HK$849,730,000), a decrease of approximately 21%.
The gross profit within the year was HK$527,488,000. (2012:
HK$716,955,000), a decrease of approximately 26%. In the second
half of 2013 (“2H20183”), the PRC government took the initiative
to strengthen internal management and undertake personnel
adjustments in an effort to improve work efficiency and transparency.
Along with transitional growing pains, operational conditions in the
PRC market remained uncertain and ambiguous. Enterprises whose
revenues are substantially derived from government-related projects
were inevitably facing downside risks. As a result, some ongoing
ISD projects were postponed in 2H2013. Therefore, the Group’s
consolidated turnover and gross profit decreased.

Details on Segment Information are set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.

Other Revenue increased from HK$97,278,000 for the year ended
31 December 2012 to HK$149,454,000 for the year ended 31
December 2013, an increase of 54%. This referred mainly to
refund of value-added tax, subsidy income, interest income from
bank deposit and rental income etc. During the year, the value of
the refund of value-added tax was approximately HK$95,557,000
(2012: HK$84,876,000), and subsidy income was approximately
HK$41,195,000 (2012: HK$3,975,000).
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Other gains and losses refer to the goodwill impairment loss arising
from acquisition of Yu Hong Group, fair value changes on contingent
consideration shares, inventory impairment etc. During the vyear,
the other gains and losses amounted to a loss of HK$123,423,000
(2012: Gain of HK$46,049,000). The change during the year
was mainly due to the goodwill impairment loss arising from the
acquisition of Yu Hong Group amounted to HK$58,307,000 (2012:
HK$7,663,000), and loss of fair value changes on contingent
consideration shares amounted to HK$61,137,000 (2012
HK$33,209,000).

Selling and Distribution Costs decreased from HK$116,814,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2012 to HK$33,469,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2013, which was primarily due to decrease
of the Group’s distribution partners share options being expensed
over the vesting period. The expenses relating to the share options
in 2013 amounted to HK$935,000, compared to HK$61,112,000 in
2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s general and
administrative expenses were approximately HK$49,851,000 (2012:
HK$45,041,000). This mainly referred to the share option expenses
arising from the staff share-based remuneration, staff salaries,
office rental etc. The share option expenses in 2013 amounted to
approximately HK$7,789,000 (2012: HK$9,280,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group put more efforts
on the improvement of ISD system and the independent R&D
activities for safety surveillance products, and made impressive
achievements. The Group’s research and development expenses
were approximately HK$95,064,000 (2012: HK$77,394,000), an
increase of 23%. The ratio of research and development expenses to
turnover was 14% (2012: 9%). Research and development expenses
referred mainly to the staff salaries, equipment and materials for
research and testing, cooperative R&D activity expenses with third
parties, office rental, etc.

Decrease on the income tax expense for the year ended 31
December 2013 was mainly due to the decrease on the effective
income tax rate of some PRC subsidiaries as compared with prior
year.

Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company
for the current financial year was approximately HK$482,227,000
(2012: HK$585,228,000). The decrease in comprehensive income
was the combined effect of decrease in revenue and the increase in
other loss.

The basic and diluted earnings per share for the year was HK12.68
cents (2012: HK20.00 cents) and HK12.27 cents (2012: HK19.89
cents) respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, capital expenditure of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$55,013,000 (2012:
HK$42,690,000). Capital expenditure represented the purchases of
property, plant, equipment and software.
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The Group working capital requirement was funded primarily by cash
flow and cash from operating activities. As at 31 December 2013,
the Group had deposits, cash and cash equivalents amounting to
approximately HK$2,250,123,000 (2012: HK$1,599,197,000), an
increase of 41%.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group does not have any bank
borrowing (2012: Nil). As at 31 December 2013, the Group gearing
ratio (total liabilities/total equity) is 9.7% (2012: 19.7%).

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the net cash inflow from
operating activities amounted to approximately HK$663,183,000
(2012: HK$618,399,000).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s current ratio (current assets/
current liabilities) stands at 8x (2012: 4x). The increase in current
ratio was due to the increase in cash and bank under the current
assets and decrease in financial liabilities under the current liabilities.
The Group maintains a net cash position, which reflects its stable
financial position to cater to its future expansion.

The Group carried out its activities in China and majority of its
transactions were settled in RMB. The Group’s assets and liabilities
as well as its transactions from operating activities are denominated
in RMB. As a result, the Group believes it does not have foreign
exchange risk which will materially affect its business. The Group
does not use any long term contract or currency swap to hedge the
foreign exchange risk. However, the management will continue to
monitor the foreign currency risk and take appropriate and cautious
measures.

For the year under review, the Group did not have any significant
investment or acquisition.
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As at 31 December 2013,
354 employees (2012: 516).
remuneration and benefits of employees according to the relevant

the Group employed a total of
The Group regularly reviews the

market practice and individual performance of the employees. In
addition to basic salary, employees are entitled to other benefits
including the staff provident fund scheme and the discretionary
bonus scheme.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee of the Company, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, market competitiveness, individual performance
and achievement. During the year, the employment cost (including
Directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$47,657,000

(2012: HK$33,489,000).

The Company adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
selected participants. During the year under review, no share option
has been granted, 94,846,000 options have been exercised, no
option has been cancelled and 33,250,000 options have lapsed.
There are 30,724,000 options outstanding under the share option
scheme.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any charges on its
assets.

In view of the market situation, the management may consider
raising capital for funding new investments while reserving internal
financial resources to support its core business.

The Group did not have any capital commitments that were
contracted for as at 31 December 2013.

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2013.
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DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Zhongkui (ZI#F %), aged 32, is the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Group. He is also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Group. He graduated from Nanjing University
of Technology (FI R T3 X&) in 2005. Mr. Liu joined the Group
in 2004. From 2004 to 2007, he worked in the research and
development department and was responsible for the research
and development of real-time system data collection program
and security surveillance system center program. From 2007 to
2009, he worked in the market engineering department and was
responsible for the implementation of engineering projects and led
the team towards the successfully completion of various projects.
Since 2009, Mr. Liu assumed the offices as the manager of the
research and development department and chief operating officer of
Shenzhen Anxin Digital Development Co., Ltd. and Jiangsu Hongxin
Intelligence Technology Co., Ltd. successively. He became the
Director of the Group in June 2011.

Mr. Wang Bo (E§), aged 42,
Executive Director of the Group. Mr. Wang graduated from Tsinghua
University (7& % A E) with EMBA in 2011. In July 2012, Mr. Wang
finished his studying in Advanced Seminar in Financial Investment

is the vice-chairman and an

of the Graduate School at Shenzhen, Tsinghua University (/&% X
BRIMRERSBRIKESRTEIL) . From 1993 to 2003, Mr.
Wang held several senior positions from Technician to Manager in
several well known companies, which brought him rich experience
in the design, development, production and distribution of security
and protection products. Mr. Wang is currently a general manager of
Shenzhen Hawell Advanced Technology Co., Ltd (;R3IIT 52 Bl & 2 Rl
K AR AR ) since 2003. Mr. Wang was appointed as Vice President
of Shenzhen Safety & Defence Industry Association CEIIT % & [F
HITEWEREEK)in 2008, and awarded as the Top Ten Elite of
Corporate Culture Building (+ K% X{b 2R AM) by the
Security and Protection Market Journal ( Z 5 H35%R) in 2011. He
became the Director of the Group in June 2012.
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Mr. Yang Ma (# ), aged 36, is an Executive Director of the
Group. Mr. Yang is currently the vice president of the market
engineering department of the Group and is responsible for the
maintenance of the developed markets and project management.
Mr. Yang graduated from Huaian Institute of Technology ( % T
27 ) in 2000. Mr. Yang once worked in a cement plant in Hongze
Preferecture of Jiangsu Province (T % & # 2 % /KJEM ) and had
very extensive experience in project development and market
maintenance. He joined the Group in 2003 and became the Director
of the Group in June 2010.

Mr. Lin Supeng (#M%HME) , aged 32, is an Executive Director of
the Group. Mr. Lin is currently the vice president of the strategy
planning department of the Group and is responsible for the
technical development and strategy planning of relevant works to
provide suggestions for the long-term development of the Group.
He holds a Bachelor Degree of Science in Mathematics and Applied
Mathematics (Information and Computational Science) ( £ £ £ & /7
HE ([FEHEFERIE) ) from Shenzhen University OFIIIKE ) and
a Master Degree of Information Technology from The University of
Queensland, Australia. Mr. Lin had once worked in the research and
development department of the Group and has extensive experience
in project management on software development. He could clearly
position the strategic development of the Group with the direction
of this kind of experience. He joined the Group in May 2009 and
became the Director of the Group in February 2010.
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Mr. Adiv Baruch, aged 52, has a B.Sc. in Information Systems
and Industrial Engineering from the Technion — Israel Institute of
Technology. Mr. Baruch is acting as the managing partner of SBA
capital since inception. Mr. Baruch serves as a director in several
public and private companies, including Bank of Jerusalem and
Tapuz, an lIsraeli online community and mobile portal, all of which
are public traded companies listed on the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange,
and the Chairman of Win Global Markets, publicly traded in the US
(OTC). He has also served as founder and executive or director for
several information technology companies and Internet start-ups.
Mr. Baruch has also served as a director of Maayan ventures, a
leading Technology Incubation platform. Since 2007 until November
2011, he has acted as a venture partner with Infinity 1-China
equity investment company that has contributing him an extensive
experience and knowledge working in China. He is expertise in the
Telecom and High-tech industry. He is well respected in the Israeli
High-tech market as well as the international markets with his
strategic capabilities and marketing vision. Mr. Baruch is actively
involved as the Chairman of the Hi-Tech and Telecom Division at
the lIsrael Export and International Cooperation Institute (“IEICI”),
and he is a board member and an audit committee member of the
IEICI. Mr. Baruch has lead global strategies to many companies in
the technology related sector and has executed many successful
mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Baruch was appointed as non-
executive Director in September 2012.
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Mr. Wang, John Peter Ben ( £&3#) |, aged 54, is currently Deputy
Chairman and Executive Director of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited
and holds non-executive directorships in Melco Crown Entertainment
Limited, both of which are companies listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. He previously held non-executive directorships
in China Precious Metal Resources Holdings Co Ltd and Carnival
Group International Holdings Limited (formerly known as Oriental
Ginza Holdings Limited), both of which are companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, until 31 December 2012 and
1 March 2012 respectively. Ms. Wang was also held non-executive
directorship in MelcolLot Limited, a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange, until 2 December 2013.
Mr. Wang has over 20 years of experience in the financial and
investment banking industry and had previously worked for Deutsche
Bank (HK), CLSA (HK),
(Singapore), S.G. Warburgs & Co. (London), Salomon Brothers

Bear Stearns Asia Limited (HK), Barclays

(London), the London Stock Exchange, and Deloitte Haskins & Sells
(London). Mr. Wang qualified as a chartered accountant with the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales in 1985.
Mr. Wang was appointed as non-executive Director in September
2012.

Mr. Cheung Chuen (58 &), aged 40, graduated from the
accounting department of Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known
as Hong Kong Shue Yan University) in 1999 and obtained a Master
degree in accounting from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
2004. Mr. Cheung is currently a member of the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has more than 10 years’ experience
in accounting and auditing and is currently qualified to practise as
a certified public accountant in the US and Hong Kong. He is an
independent non-executive director of Kingwell Group Limited (stock
code: 1195), a listed company in Hong Kong and an executive
director of China High Precision Automation Group Limited (stock
code: 591), a listed company in Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung was
appointed as independent non-executive Director in September
2004.
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Mr. Xie Baitang (#f# %) , aged 62, completed his study of B &)
TH E ¥ (Specialty in Automatic Control) in Nanjing Aeronautical
Institute 2 AR KFEFE =M 2=28 (currently known as Nanjing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics 2= fi 28 il K K £,
the People’s Republic of China, in 1975 and is a senior economist
(research fellow level). He started his career in the aeronautics and
astronautics industry in 1975 and served various positions, including
Head of Asset Operations, Deputy Head and Secretary General of
Supervisory Committee of China Aerospace Science and Industry
Corporation (FREIfi A& T £ ® A &) . Since December 2001,
Mr. Xie has been serving as a director of Guizhou Space Appliance
Company Limited (/M REEZF KD BR A E]), a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and was also the chairman of
Guizhou Space Appliance Company Limited from December 2001 to
April 2004. Since December 2006, he has been serving as a director
of Aerospace Communications Holdings Company Limited ( it K3
EEREERMHBRAR), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. Mr. Xie was appointed as independent non-executive
Director in June 2011.

Professor Li On-kwok, Victor (Z % [E]), aged 59, is the Chair
Professor of Information Engineering and Head of the Department of
Electrical and Electronic Engineering at The University of Hong Kong
(“HKU”). Prior to joining HKU, Professor Li was Professor of Electrical
Engineering at the University of Southern California (‘USC”) and
Director of the USC Communication Sciences Institute. Professor
Li has chaired various committees of international professional
organizations such as the Technical Committee on Computer
Communications of the Institute of Electrical and Electronic
Engineers (“IEEE”). Professor Li is a director of Versitech Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of HKU. Versitech Limited is the technology
transfer and commercial arm of HKU. Professor Li received his
bachelor’s, master’s, engineer’s and doctoral degrees in Electrical
Engineering and Computer Science from Massachusetts Institute
of Technology in 1977, 1979, 1980 and 1981, respectively. He was
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region in 2002. Professor Li is currently
an independent non-executive director of SUNeVision Holdings Ltd.,
a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of China.
com Inc. (currently known as Sino Splendid Holdings Limited),
a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange, from August 2008 to July 2012, and from September
2012 to May 2013. Professor Li was appointed as independent non-
executive Director in June 2013.



28

R B 225542 iR B PR 2 &) Anxin-China Holdings Limited

EE  SREEERET

Directors, Senior Management and Staff

SNEEE

L 25 BIASES LA AE%ES
MIIZRD - TR ERZEREBRZHE MM
RE UHEAEETIREXESBELEMN
MRFBEMMNZ T KREBESE TESRE
ERMEETEE BN -FREWART
FIREREELS K —BEEBRNIMNKtech
Telecommunication Co., Ltd {0 EHEH
REBIAREREEEFEEE IE:
FRZZE—ZEFE_F——_FRPEBARK
MABRAB I EREBABROERR A
WMEFAERE REE -RFEBARKRND
RARIR FEE2HAERBELEME
MERZAEBERES EHENHERTES
TE-FHRANR-TBE——FMAKREER  2E
BEEBMEPLNEESEE ABNEE
MEEENREBBR HERKERES
1R o

BERBAEKE 375 REAKEHRBELELS
BRIRM-WR T _FEENTEKRE
FFEBMBERMER BRXEREARRE
T8 EXTRARMF IR FELRAK
AR E R B4R (WSN) Y I 70 B2 B AR 5 3%
WIBEBERGIS) B EFAMNHT - KE
S EN BT CGPSERRMEFE R RIER
GISTE#S KBEHRFLRHMEREZERS
REEGISH B 47 88 3 1 - RIBGISEZIZ A L &K
HBMANBREERAEZRG  ESN
ERE BMEZSHERE T S HORE
H-RESMEEZHERN Em - RIFEE
R T IR A E#IE B AR

B

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li He (Z#) , aged 32, is currently the Senior Vice President
and Senior Engineer of the Group. Mr. Li graduated from University
of Southern California in United States and holds a Master of
Science degree in Electrical Engineering. He also holds a Bachelor
of Engineering degree in Electronic Device & Information Technology
from Zhejiang University in Hangzhou, China. Mr. Li is an engineer
and management with nearly a decade’s experience. He has been
working with Ktech Telecommunication Co., Ltd in California,
responsible for SoC design and FPGA design for digital signal
processing. He worked for ZTE from 2010 to 2012 as Product
Manager of ZTE Micro-Electronics Institution. During his time in
ZTE, Mr. Li was responsible for both hardware/software R&D and
marketing strategy development for Micro-Electronics Institution’s
video surveillance products. Joined the Group in 2012, he is now
head of R&D center of the Group. Mr. Li is also responsible for
introducing the Group to investors, maintaining and promoting
investor relations.

Mr. Dai Zhaoming (EJKBA) , aged 37, is currently Project Manager
and senior engineer of the Group. He graduated from Hohai
University in 2002 specialized in Computer Science and Technology
and is now pursuing a Master Degree in Southeast University
majoring in software engineering. Mr. Dai conducted the research
and application development of wireless sensor networks (WSN)
and the research of geographic information systems (GIS) and cloud
computing platform for a long period of time. He once participated
in or independently completed the design and development of GIS
sub-system of GPS vehicle tracking and dispatching system project,
coal mine gas digitalization remote monitoring system, coal mine GIS
map editing software, coal mine GIS surveillance center software,
embedded wireless intelligent video surveillance system, automobile
identity card system, cloud computing service platform of Internet-
of-Autos. He participated in the research and development of a
number of patents, products and software copyright of the Group
and is now responsible for the research and development of new
projects and technology management.
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AL 25 MAIAEEIERKER S Mr. Li Zhanbin (ZE38) , aged 32, is currently Project Manager
BIRREN - FER T NFEBALITEKRE  and senior engineer of the Group. He obtained a Bachelor Degree
B iR EREES LS8N  WHN ZZFZ  in measuring and control technology and instruments from Xi'an
NFEESRLTTIEARENETIEELTEN >  Technological University (Fa% T2 K2 )in 2006 and a Master
TRAEDREBERMGTENMEEME TS Degree in optical engineering from Xi'an Technological University
HE ﬁﬂ%’*ﬁh%%éﬁl{’ﬁ BEEZE/MEL  in 2009. Mr. Li had studied and worked in the research and
EREEMNEHERRTER  HE2RXMEE  development institutes such as China Aviation Numeration Research
FPERRERERMNEEIBETERZR  Institute (FMFFEFT) and Shanghai Micro Electronics Equipment
SoEmREYERE L ZRBIEAB RS (LB MEFHEME) successively, and has extensive experience in
BB B s R X 2R & Z 408 the design of intelligent instrument and equipment and software
HREZFERG UWEHEINGSERD  products. He once participated in the system research and
PIRG RELEBELEFRRZZAHMIE - development works like the design of intelligent traffic electronic
ﬂiiﬁi HEEFTERTEHZRAREE police system based on video processing technology, testing

TR LHERGREGEEARFTAEM  and tuning software for high-end object projection lens scanning
T ABIE BAMEBENRARNEINEGE  lithography machine lighting and exposure system, object projection
B BRI R A ERBEMREYERE  lens scanning lithography machine wave aberration detecting
PR ST KFE o and rectifying system, and was in charge of the research and

}
X

development of outdoor scene intelligent recognition system, school
bus intelligent warning monitoring system and so on. In recent years,
he had all along been responsible for the software and hardware
system design and project management of new products, especially
carrying out abundant of works in terms of imaging system and
algorithm design. He successfully developed an embedded outdoor
intelligent monitoring and recognition system with recognition
accuracy and speed reaching international advanced level.
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Mr. Yao Xuesheng (ZkE #), aged 40, is currently Project
Manager and senior engineer of the Group. He obtained a Bachelor
Degree in Mechanical Production from Henan University of Science
and Technology R EEHE AE) in 1996 and a Master Degree in
mechatronic engineering majoring in the research and application of
parallel robot kinematics from Nanjing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics (B R ZEMAAE) in 2001. In 1996, he worked in
Luoyang Hussmann Refrigeration Company Limited (/%[5 15 Hf 2 &
A BB AF) and was engaged in numerical control programming,
tooling mold design and so on. In 2001, he worked in Huawei
Technologies Company Limited (ZE A& iliAR 2 7]), and received
professional CMMI training and software development training of
the entire process, engaged in the software testing and market
maintenance of optical transmission network management and
intelligent network projects and so on successively. He once worked
as a testing officer of comprehensive network management and was
responsible for the system testing of the whole project. He promoted
the application of automation testing in the testing team. He joined
the Group in 2010, responsible for the development and promotion
of relevant projects and is now responsible for the marketing and
project management of human protection and emergency rescue
projects.

Ms. Yang Shuyan (##f) , aged 34, a certified public accountant
in the PRC, is currently the Financial Controller of the Group. Ms.
Yang graduated from the South China University of Technology with
a dual bachelor’s degree in E-commerce and Technical English. She
had worked in an internationally renowned accounting firm and has
over eight years of experience in auditing and finance. Ms. Yang
joined the Group in 2011.

Ms. Leung Pui Ki (R H) is the company secretary and
authorised representative of the Group from 13 July 2011. Miss
Leung graduated from the University of Hertfordshire in the United
Kingdom with a Bachelor degree in Business Administration. She is
an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries (HKICS). Miss Leung has over 15 years
experience in the Company Secretarial field. She was a company
secretary of HC International, Inc., a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange and China Seven Star
Shopping Limited, a company listed on main board of the Stock
Exchange.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Anxin-China’s product portfolio is comprised of specialized intelligent
monitoring systems which play a major role in industrial and public
safety surveillance. Anxin-China is an integrated solutions provider,
services operator and equipment manufacturer of ISD systems
(“Intelligent Surveillance, Disaster Alert and Rescue Coordination
Systems”) and ISS systems (“Intelligent Safety Systems”).

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Details of the segment information of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2013 are set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 68 of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK1.0
cents per ordinary share, totaling approximately HK$30,102,000
in respect of the year to shareholders on the register of members
on Tuesday, 17 June 2014. The proposed final dividend of
approximately HK$30,102,000 for the year ended 31 December
2013 is calculated on the basis of 3,010,208,413 ordinary shares
in issue at the date of this report. Accounting with the 2013 interim
dividend of HK1.4 cents, the total 2013 dividends should be HK2.4
cents (2012: HK3.6 cents). The proposed dividend has been
approved at the Company’s board meeting on 25 March 2014, but is
subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. This recommendation has been incorporated in the
financial statements as an allocation of share premium within the
equity section of the statement of financial position.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
consolidated financial statements, is set forth on page 179 of this
annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 29 to the financial statements. Share were
issued during the year for acquisition of subsidiaries together with
exercise of share options.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group during
the year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements and on
page 73 of this annual report to the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2013
calculated under applicable regulations amounted to approximately
HK$1,995,480,000 (2012: HK$1,755,673,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
its existing shareholders.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Zhongkui, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Wang Bo, Vice-Chairman

Mr. Lin Supeng

Mr. Yang Ma

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Adiv Baruch
Mr. Wang, John Peter Ben

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Xie Baitang

Mr. Cheung Chuen

Professor Li On-kwok, Victor (appointed on 5 June 2013)
Mr. Chen Feng (resigned on 5 June 2013)

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, Mr. Liu Zhongkui,
Mr. Lin Supeng and Mr. Cheung Chuen will retire from office as
Directors by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company and Professor Li On-kwok, Victor will retire from office
as Director at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All of Mr. Liu
Zhongkui, Mr. Lin Supeng, Mr. Cheung Chuen and Professor Li On-
kwok, Victor being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 23 to 30 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All executive Directors have entered into a written service contract
with the Company and were appointed for a term of two years
(except for Mr. Wang Bo who was appointed for a term of one year)
and all executive Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

All the non-executive Directors have not entered into any written
service contract with the Company but have been appointed for a
term of one year and is also subject to the retirement by rotation in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

All the independent non-executive Directors have not entered into
any written service contract with the Company but were appointed
for a term of two years (except for Mr. Cheung Chuen who was
not appointed for a specific term), and all are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) were as follows:

FEERE E2RERT

ER¥E £ BBk

Number of Y

Number of Shares held options held Approximate

{8 A i ARER B AR fa3r percentage of

total issued

Personal Corporate Personal ordinary

B Name of Director Interest Interest Interest Total Shares

AhExs Mr. Liu Zhongkui 9,160,000 - 1,040,000 10,200,000 0.34

WRER G & & Mr. Lin Supeng 1,560,000 - 1,040,000 2,600,000 0.09

BELTE Mr. Yang Ma 1,560,000 - 1,040,000 2,600,000 0.09
Ha: BOoBEEREARARFTNR_ZT—=F+=H Note: The percentage has been calculated based on the total number of

=+ —HBE#TLBAR4REE,010,208,413
RETESW -

BREXFEREN RZTE—=F+2AH
—t+—B EETIANBTMEMAL (ESE
RAEARERITRABBRIN RAR A ZK
B HEARDIBATET AT ERREE
HFRBEEOEXVEERAARBHRE 2
PRE o

3,010,208,413 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31
December 2018.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the Directors
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and
chief executive of the Company) who have the interest or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or the equity derivatives
of the Company which would be required to be disclosed to the
Company pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company and the
five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 13 and
14 to the financial statements.

SREEBEEREZHNE EMOLUMENTS OF MEMBERS OF SENIOR
MANAGEMENT
A

Number of individuals
—E—=F —EFT——4F
2013 2012

B & &5 & Emolument band

ZZE 5 #1,000,0007T Nil to HK$1,000,000 5 5
78 #1,000,001 7T — A #2,000,0007T HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 0 0

EENBEXEB 2 ER

REFENIR_TE—=F+=_A=+—H"
RRAFEEPEARERNE B EB B ATEE
BREEXEERF 2 AEEEB AT
EBPHEEER -

R AESTE

R-ZEZEZF+—AZH ARAIBREH
RN ET S ([BRETEDERY
KBRFE2EEZRB - BREFEIERZ
T—=F+—A-HER REBEFERXN"
94,846,00017 BE R i ETTFE - MR EE
FA#) 75 #8,724,00070 (ZE —ZF : 5K
70,392,0007L) BEET AR EZE R - N BB F E
A - A AR R R 2 5k 85 1233,250,0001% B
BEXRBM-R_TE—=F+=-A=+—8"
30,724,00017 B A #E T 18 RATHE ©

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the directors of the Company is interested in any business
apart from the Group’s businesses which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group during the year or at 31 December 2013.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 3 November 2003, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
as an incentive to selected participants. The Share Option Scheme
has expired on 2 November 2013. 94,846,000 share options were
exercised during the year under review and the share option cost
that was charged to the income statement was approximately
HK$8,724,000 (2012: approximately HK$70,392,000). No options
has been cancelled and 33,250,000 options have lapsed during the
year under review. There are 30,724,000 share options outstanding
as at 31 December 2013.



Annual Report 2013 4 5

EXEHRE

Directors’ Report

REBREASIRDBEFEARL TEE

KRB BRAEEEBERTIFIRMT :

Movements of the options, which were granted, exercised and

lapsed under the Share Option Scheme, during the year under

review were listed below:

»®
R —E-=F
ZE-Z% +=A
—-A—H =t+-H
BBz FRBHZz FRATEZ FREARZ BEZ T8
Lp] REBH BREYE BREZE BREHE BREZE BREXA B GEid
Number of Number of Number of Number of  Number of
share share share share share
option option option option option
held granted  exercised lapsed held Exercise
Date of as at during during during as at price Exercise
Category grant 01/01/2013 the year the year the year  31/12/2013 HK$ period
EE
Directors:
Bk S —T-—CF 2,600,000 - (1,560,000) - 1,040,000 15 ZE-—-FWA+AAZE
Mr. Liu Zhongkui mA+758 (Fiit) —E-AFfMmA+AA
16 April 2012 (Note) (Htit)
16/04/2012 - 15/04/2015
(Note)
ME B KA —3ZF 2,600,000 - (1,560,000 - 1,040,000 15 ZZT-Z_FWATAHZE
Mr. Lin Supeng mA+<AE (Fiit) —T-AENA+EA
16 April 2012 (Note) (Hiit)
16/04/2012 - 15/04/2015
(Note)
BEEE ZT-CZF 2,600,000 - (1,560,000) - 1,040,000 15 ZET-ZF@A+AAZE
Mr. Yang Ma MA+~H (Hiat) —E-AFfMmATEA
16 April 2012 (Note) (Hiit)
16/04/2012 - 15/04/2015
(Note)
Hh e ERSEE:
Other eligible participants:
5 —2——F 37,000,000 - (3,750,000) (33,250,000) - 2.25 —T-—5mA-HZE
Consultants mA—H ZE-=F1+-AZH
1 April 2011 01/04/2011 - 02/11/2013
=G| —E-—F 77,800,000 - (73,120,000) - 4,680,000 15 ZE——EWA+AAE
Consultants mA+7<H (Hiat) —Z-AFfMmA+EA
16 April 2012 (Note) (Htit)
16/04/2012 - 15/04/2015
(Note)
EE —E-—F 33,620,000 - (13,296,000) - 20,324,000 15 Z—E-—FMA+AEE
Employee mA+~H (Hi#t) —E-RENA+EA
16 April 2012 (Note) (Hiz)
16/04/2012 - 15/04/2015
(Note)
FERR —T-ZF 2,600,000 - - - 2,600,000 15 ZZ-ZFWATAHZE
Substantial shareholder mA+758 (Fiit) —Z-AF¥MmA+EA
16 April 2012 (Note) (Htit)
16/04/2012 - 15/04/2015
(Note)
158,820,000 - (94,846,000) (33,250,000) 30,724,000
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110,500,00017 & i #
110,500,000 share options

1,500,00017 & % #
1,500,000 share options

46,820,000 ERIE (BEEER
ARARIEFERF (EER ETHRA) 2
10,400,000 & % 42 )

46,820,000 share options

(including 10,400,000 share options
to Directors and substantial
shareholder (as defined in the

Listing Rules) of the Company)

o

Note:

These share options are exercisable within the said exercise period in the
following manner:

RITES (D=2 ——FMA+ARE-2—AFNA+THER) A2 EAEH
any time within the exercise period, i.e. 16 April 2012 to 15 April 2015

(i) BREABM(AZZE——FHA T B)BEZATTEARAZEE 2
=nZ—:
up to one-third of the grantee’s entitlement from the date of grant, i.e.
16 April 2012;

(i) EBERCLEHEF2EAEREER (BIZE—=ZFNA+XB)EK%
ATHRARAZEREZ =22 R
up to two-thirds of the grantee’s entitlement from the date after the
expiry of 12 months from the date of grant, i.e. 16 April 2013; and

(i) ERLBEHRF4EAEBHERER (I -Z-—HFHA+RA)ERS
ATEAR A Z 2 FBECHE -
up to the grantee’s full entitlement from the date after the expiry of 24
months from the date of grant, i.e. 16 April 2014.

(i) BREAB(AZZE——FHA TR B)BEZATEEARAZEEZ
30% :
up to 30% of the grantee’s entitlement from the date of grant, i.e. 16
April 2012;

(i) ERLBEHRF12EAERRER (I -Z—=FTA+<H)ERZ
AT AR A Z B 260% K
up to 80% of the grantee’s entitlement from the date after the expiry of
12 months from the date of grant, i.e. 16 April 2013; and

(i) ERLBEHEF4EAREBERER (I -Z-—HFHA+RHA)BRZ
ATEAR A Z 2 #BECHE -
up to the grantee’s full entitlement from the date after the expiry of 24
months from the date of grant, i.e. 16 April 2014.

Further details of share options were set out in note 34(a) to the
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the details as disclosed under the section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares” above, at no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company granted to any director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors, or
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Saved as disclosed under the section headed “Related Party
Transactions” on page 42 of this annual report, no contract of
significance to which the Company, its holding company, fellow
subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or is existing during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2013, the following persons or companies
(other than the Directors and chief executives) had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO and were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meeting of any other members
of the Group were as follow:

REZEH
TERRER FERBzEH RHEE HERGHE @t Bl
Number of Approximate
Name of Capacity in Number of underlying percentage of
substantial shareholder which shares were held shares shares Total shareholding
P REHER 2R (M3 602,148,000 2,600,000 604,748,000 20.09%
Chen Hong Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 3)
SEREERAA BREBA (M3 231,916,000 0 231,916,000 7.70%
Jin Yong Investments Limited Beneficial owner (Note 3)
FEERAF BREBA (M3 233,184,000 0 233,184,000 7.75%
Elite Achieve Limited Beneficial owner (Note 3)
Munsun Assets Management Ltd.  R& &2 (ff:#4) 180,876,000 0 180,876,000 6.01%

Investment Manager

(Note 4)
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2. BAHAHERARDR-Z—ZF+=A
_+ EIZE%T A% 4 $£3,010,208,413
A .

3. 137,048,000 80 Ty BRI A EA R
231,916,0008% A 13 12 233,184,000 i 15 5
AEEBERABRAFAREERRD AR
B-oBREGRAFRLRFERRAFIGH
ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ‘aiiéﬁﬁﬁ At - RIRE %&Hﬁﬁbﬁ
Bl BRALCERRAREBRERRA
FERRAD ﬂ%ﬁzﬁxhqa%ﬁff&ﬁo

4. Munsun Assets Management Ltd. Bz # 5
180,876,0000% A% 17 - H #6,488,0000% % 7
J5EMunsun China Opportunity Investment
Fund#¥ A + 68,098,0000% % 13 75 A Munsun
Umbrella Trust-Munsun New Technology
Fund#% 5 % 106,290,0008% A% 17 75 s Munsun
Umbrella Trust-Munsun Stable Growth
Fundi A ° Ff A Munsun China Opportunity
Investment Fund*Munsun Umbrella Trust-
Munsun New Technology FundfMunsun
Umbrella Trust-Munsun Stable Growth Fund

JiEMunsun Assets Management Ltd. 2%
HmE AL BIBEFESHRBE KM Munsun
Assets Management Ltd.# R &R &
180,876,000 % f  #E A& #E 4 ©

BREXBREN R-T—=Ft_A=1+—
B EBFUTABEMEMAL (BEEHIN
BEZREDERN [EEREETRABREN
KRN 2 BE AR | —BRIRARRZ
B BRI P AR IRE TS
AR R BRIEFE 75 M B & {5 ) S5 3361K FH XV
MREFEZETMA-

Notes:

1.

Save

The above are all long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company.

The percentage has been calculated based on the total number of
3,010,208,413 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31
December 2013.

The 137,048,000 shares are owned by Mr. Chen Hong in person.
The 231,916,000 shares and 233,184,000 shares are owned by Jin
Yong Investments Limited and Elite Achieve Limited respectively. Both
Jin Yong Investments Limited and Elite Achieve Limited are wholly
owned by Mr. Chen Hong. Therefore, Mr. Chen Hong is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Jin Yong Investments Limited and Elite
Achieve Limited under the SFO.

Munsun Assets Management Ltd. beneficially owned 180,876,000
shares within which 6,488,000 shares are held by Munsun China
Opportunity Investment Fund, 68,098,000 shares are held by Munsun
Umbrella Trust-Munsun New Technology Fund and 106,290,000 shares
are held by Munsun Umbrella Trust-Munsun Stable Growth Fund. All of
Munsun China Opportunity Investment Fund, Munsun Umbrella Trust-
Munsun New Technology Fund and Munsun Umbrella Trust-Munsun
Stable Growth Fund are wholly owned by Munsun Assets Management
Ltd.. Therefore, Munsun Assets Management Ltd. is deemed to be
interested in total of 180,876,000 shares under the SFO.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the Directors

are not aware of any other person (other than the Directors, whose
interests are set out in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying

Shares”), had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded in the
register kept by the Company under Part XV of section 336 of the

SFO.

a1
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group regularly reviews the remuneration and benefits of
employees according to the relevant market practice and individual
performance of the employees. In addition to basic salary,
employees are entitled to other benefits including the staff provident
fund scheme and the discretionary bonus scheme.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee of the Company, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, market competitiveness, individual performance
and achievement.

The Company adopted a share option scheme and a share award
scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details
of the share option schemes and the share award scheme are set
out in notes 34 and 33 to the financial statements respectively.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Board considered that all independent non-executive
Directors to be independent in character and judgment. None of
the independent non-executive Directors have relationships or
circumstances that are likely to adversely affect their professional
judgment and each of the independent non-executive Director has
provided confirmation of his independence to the Group pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Particulars of the independent non-executive Directors are set out
in the section headed “Directors, Senior Management and Staff” on
pages 23 to 30 of this annual report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, apart from those
disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements, the Group had no
transactions with any of the related or connected parties.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group provides retirement benefits to its staff. The retirement
contributions paid by the Group are based on certain percentage
of the relevant portion of the payroll of all eligible employees in
accordance with the relevant regulations in the PRC and are charged
to the income statement as incurred. The contribution paid for the
year ended 31 December 2013 was approximately HK$2,385,000
(2012: HK$1,381,000). The Group has made adequate provision
in the financial statements in respect of the benefit schemes. In
addition, the Group also provides housing and food allowance to its
staff.

In Hong Kong, the Group has set up a retirement scheme in
accordance with the mandatory provident fund requirements
prescribed by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong. All Hong Kong based
employees and the Group are required to contribute 5% of their
respective monthly wages (up to a maximum contribution of
HK$1,250 by each of the employee and the Group) on a monthly
basis to the fund.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 47 to 65 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee. Details on the
composition of the Audit Committee are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 55 to 56 of this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
during the year the amount of public float as required under the
Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On 4 April 2014, a total of 50,778,606 shares being 5th tranche of
consideration shares for the acquisition of Tech Praise Group were
issued.
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FERFRHERD MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
TEHEFLEFEMLMASENRAFERLE  The percentages of the Group’s purchases and turnover attributable
NEEB7BADLIT: to major suppliers and customers for the year are as follows:
—E-=F —E—ZF
2013 2012
% %
KEBDH: Percentage of purchases:
RERAHER From the largest supplier 9 25
RERAKEER From the five largest suppliers 27 36
EEFEAO: Percentage of turnover:
REFAEFR From the largest customer 25 11
RERRKEF From the five largest customers 62 42

BEEHBEEAQT LmRSG

RGPy AR I BRI A 1T DA A
B 7 #3,575,0007T Y g & +£2,200,0008%
HAFRG SERBAATZAETER
AR S PR TR B B T 26 - B ) 2 A LS
T

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

During the year, the Company acquired an aggregate of 2,200,000
of its own shares through purchases on the Stock Exchange at an
aggregate consideration of HK$3,575,000 with a view to benefit its
shareholders as a whole in enhancing the net assets and earnings
per share of the Company. Details of the repurchase are as follows:

SREEER
Purchase price per share

g2iEE
R EE 53] RIE BRE

Number of
shares Aggregate
BE AR Month of repurchase repurchased Highest Lowest consideration
(BET) (BE%T) (BE%T)
(HK$) (HKS) (HKS)
—E-=ZFMA April 2013 2,200,000 1.64 1.61 3,575,000

BRRDBRY Total expenses on shares

repurchased 9,000

3,584,000
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RERN AREIETREEA S BRI FTE
THEE B REE19,815000 B IER =
E-=FWOANBRA KRG EZEETE 2
Al R AEFER B 2 G5 & +£12,076,000%
HAGRD WEFBHOT

All the 2,200,000 shares repurchased were cancelled on delivery
of the share certificates during the year. The issued share capital
of the Company was accordingly reduced by the par value of the
repurchased shares so cancelled.

During the year, the Company instructed the trustee to purchase an
aggregate of 12,076,000 of its own shares through purchases on the
Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of HK$19,815,000
pursuant to the terms of the rules and trust deed of the share award
scheme adopted on 8 April 2013. Details of the purchases are as

follows:
SREEE
Purchase price per share

2
ROEE BS BI& BRE

Number of
shares Aggregate
Wi A7 Month of purchase purchased Highest Lowest consideration
(BET) (L) (%)
(HK$) (HK$) (HK$)
—“E-=FNA April 2013 12,076,000 1.70 1.60 19,815,000

WERDBRZ Total expenses on shares

purchased 63,000
19,878,000

2 s 2 2 #612,076,0008% % 15 Ty B {E 7E A
HERBRANEAREBRABRIES
A T B o

B EXREBEES NAR R EAEFME QR
REARBEEERBRARR R 2 ER/ TR

%o

All the 12,076,000 shares purchased were held by the trustee as
award shares for vesting to eligible employees in future and were not
cancelled.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed shares during the year.
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AUDITOR

Deloitte was auditor of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2010 and resigned as auditor of the Company on 5
December 2011. BDO Limited (“BDO”) was appointed as auditor of
the Company on 8 December 2011 and the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2011, 31 December
2012 and 31 December 2013 were audited by BDO. A resolution
for the re-appointment of BDO as auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Zhongkui
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to achieving high standard of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of all shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions (“Code Provisions”) set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

Throughout the year under review, the Company has complied with
most of the Code Provisions of the CG Code, save for the deviations
from Code Provisions A.2.1, A.4.1 and A.6.7 which are explained
below.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business and
to review its corporate governance practices from time to time to
ensure they comply with the statutory and the CG Code and align
with the latest developments.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2013 and as at the date of the report, there were
nine Board members consisting of four executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

Mr. Liu Zhongkui, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Wang Bo, Vice-Chairman

Mr. Lin Supeng

Mr. Yang Ma

Mr. Adiv Baruch
Mr. Wang, John Peter Ben

Mr. Xie Baitang

Mr. Cheung Chuen

Mr. Chen Feng (resigned on 5 June 2013)

Professor Li On-kwok, Victor (appointed on 5 June 2013)

The composition of the Board of Directors is well balanced with
each Director having sound knowledge, experience and/or expertise
relevant to the business of the Group. Each of the Directors’
respective biographical details is set out in the section headed
“Directors, Senior Management and Staff’ of this annual report. The
Directors are aware of their collective and individual responsibilities
to the Shareholders and have exercised their duties with care, skill
and diligence, contributing to the successful performance of the
Group for the year under review. Besides, to the best knowledge of
the Company, there is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Directors and each of the Directors
also does not have any direct or indirect material relationship with the
Group.
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The Board is responsible for overall management of the Company’s
business, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.

The Board also reserves for its decisions on all major matters of the
Company, including: the approval and monitoring of major policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of

Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the executive Directors and senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are reviewed
from time to time.

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting
are normally made available to Directors in advance. Notice of at
least 14 days have been given to all Directors for all regular Board
meetings and the Directors can include matters for discussion in the
agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying Board papers in
respect of regular Board meetings are sent out in full to all Directors
within reasonable time before the meeting. Draft minutes of all Board
meetings are circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable
time prior to confirmation.

Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board committees are
kept by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and
all Directors have access to board papers and related materials, and
are provided with adequate information on a timely manner, which
enable the Board to make an informed decision on matters placed
before it.
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HE-_ZT—=F+_-"F=+—HILFE & During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company held 21

ARABRTAAREEE R

Z MEBZ=ZHEE  Board meetings, and the Directors’ attendance records for the

BN T X meetings held are set out below.
HESERE
Number of meetings attended/
HR=-T—=
EFA=+—H
Exg BITZRE
BRETRY BFEXKE
Number of
Board AGM held on
meetings held 31 May 2013
HITESE Executive Directors
BpEig Mr. Liu Zhongkui (Chairman and

(FREFITHAAR) Chief Executive Officer) 21/21 1/1
T OREAE Mr. Wang Bo (vice-chairman)

(BIE ) 21/21 1/1
@M 5F £ Mr. Lin Supeng 21/21 1/1
B BELE Mr. Yang Ma 21/21 1/1
FHITES Non-Executive Directors
Adiv Baruch?%t 4 Mr. Adiv Baruch 21/21 0/1
FREEEE Mr. Wang, John Peter Ben 21/21 1/1
BIYFHITES Independent non-Executive Directors
ik 2hAE Mr. Cheung Chuen 21/21 1/1
FAE LA Mr. Xie Baitang 21/21 1/1
BR WA (HaET) Mr. Chen Feng (Note 1) 13/13 0/1
FREHER (Hit2) Professor Li On-kwok, Victor (Note 2) 8/8 TiE A N/A
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Note 1: Mr. Chen Feng was resigned as an independent non-executive
Director on 5 June 2013. Before his resignation, there were a total
of 13 Board Meetings.

Note 2: Professor Li On-kwok, Victor was appointed as an independent

non-executive Director on 5 June 2013, During his appointment
period in 2013, there were a total of 8 Board Meetings.

In compliance of Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, there are three
independent non-executive Directors representing over one-third
of the Board of Directors. Amongst them, Mr. Cheung Chuen,
who is currently a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and has more than 10 years’ experience in accounting
and auditing, has the appropriate professional qualifications required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including Non-executive Director and Independent
non-Executive Directors, should keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the business and activities
of the Group. Each newly appointed Director would receive a
comprehensive induction package covering business operations,
policy and procedures of the Company as well as the general,
statutory and regulatory obligations of being a Director to ensure
that he is sufficiently aware of his responsibilities under the Listing
Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements. The Group also
provides briefings and other training to develop and refresh the
Directors’ knowledge and skills, and update all Directors on the
latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirement to ensure compliance and to enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, one in-house briefing
sessions for directors’ common law and fiduciary duties and
associated Listing Rules were organized for the Directors. The
relevant materials were also sent to the Directors who were not
available to attend the briefing session for their information. The
Directors participated in the continuous professional developments
in relation to regulatory update, the duties and responsibility of the
Directors and the business of the Group in the following manner:

B 5 A1 HERE HHE

Attended
Seminars/

B Directors Read Materials Briefings
HITEFE Executive Directors
BpEiAg Mr. Liu Zhongkui v/ v/
T OR%AE Mr. Wang Bo v/ v/
MER NS 5t 4 Mr. Lin Supeng v/ v/
B BEE Mr. Yang Ma v/ v
FHNITEE Non-executive Directors
Adiv Baruch%t & Mr. Adiv Baruch v/
FREELEE Mr. Wang, John Peter Ben v v
BN ITESE Independent non-executive Directors
;AN E LA Mr. Xie Baitang / v/
ik 2%4& Mr. Cheung Chuen v/ v
BRI 5T AE Mr. Chen Feng

(R=ZF—=%F (resigned on 5 June 2013)

NA A HEFE) - -
T BE#HE Professor Li On-kwok, Victor

(R=ZF—=4F (appointed on & June 2013)

NHAHEZF) v v
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During the year under review, the Company has adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve and
maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and

contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy from time to time to
ensure its continued effectiveness.

CHAIRMAN AND CEO

According to the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of the chairman and the chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should be
segregated. However, Mr. Liu Zhongkui currently holds the offices of
Chairman and CEO of the Company. The Board believes that vesting
the roles of both Chairman and CEO in the same person provides
the Company with strong and consistent leadership and allows
for effective and efficient planning and implementation of business
decisions and strategies.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

According to the Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, independent
non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term of
service. The non-executive Directors were appointed for a term of
one year and is also subject to the retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company at least once
for every three years in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company. All the independent non-executive Directors were
appointed for a term of two years (except for Mr. Cheung Chuen
who was not appointed for a specific term), but all are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company at least once for every three years in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company. Such practice meets
the same objective and is no less exacting than those prescribed
under the Code Provision A4.1 of the CG Code.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the code for securities transactions by
Directors. During the year under review, the Company had complied
with the Model Code. After making inquiry of the Directors, the
Company confirmed that the Directors had complied with the
provisions of the Model Code.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company established an audit committee on 3 November 2003
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
audit committee has three members, including the Company’s three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Xie Baitang, Mr.
Cheung Chuen and Professor Li On-kwok, Victor. Mr. Cheung Chuen
is the chairman of the committee. The primary duties of the audit
committee are to review the Company’s annual report and accounts,
interim reports and to provide advice and comments thereon to the
Board. In addition, the audit committee will consider any significant
and unusual items that are, or may need to be reflected in such
reports and accounts and must give due consideration to any
matter that has been raised by the Company’s staff responsible for
the accounting and financial reporting function, compliance officer
and auditors. The audit committee is also responsible for reviewing
and supervising the financial reporting process and the internal
control system of the Group including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget. Besides, the audit committee will make recommendations to
the Board on matters regarding the appointment of external auditors
and auditing fee etc. The terms of reference setting out the audit
committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are available on
both the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
external auditors of the Group may request a meeting of the Audit
Committee to be convened if they consider that it is necessary. 2
meetings of audit committee were held during the current financial
year. The attendance records of individual committee members of
the audit committee meetings are set out below:
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LEERZEEERRY
ERZESERETRE
Number of audit committee
meeting attended/

Number of audit committee

EREESHE Members of the audit committee meeting held
Rk BEE(EE) Mr. Cheung Chuen (Chairman) 2/2
R MEE (RZF—=F Mr. Chen Feng (resigned as Audit

NHOAFTFEEZEEKE) Committee member on 5 June 2013)

(Bt7E1) (Note 1) 1/1
FLREYPR (R=ZFE—=F Professor Li On-kwok, Victor

NAAAEZ TR (appointed as Audit Committee

ERZEe/KE) (Kit2) member on 5 June 2013) (Note 2) 1/1
FIHE LA Mr. Xie Baitang 2/2
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REBEFERN BERZESCEHNASEEE
TE T A=+ -HUEFEZFEXE
BREFEMEARBEZE—=FA=1
HIERNEAZPBEERPHRE BER
EREORF BEAARRANIEEREF
ZHREARBEBIIEZBM -EREZEEN
EEMNASEEEE S —=F+=-A=+—
ALEFEZE2FEERFR-

Note 1: Mr. Chen Feng was ceased to be a member of Audit Committee
on 5 June 2013. Before his cessation, there were a total of 1
Audit Committee meeting.

Note 2: Professor Li On-kwok, Victor was appointed as a member of
Audit Committee on 5 June 2013. During his appointment period
in 2013, there were a total of 1 Audit Committee meeting.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee has reviewed
the Group’s annual results and annual report for the year ended 31
December 2012 and interim results and interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2013, the financial reporting and compliance
procedures, the report on the Company’s internal control and
processes and the re-appointment of the external auditor. The Audit
Committee has also reviewed the Group’s annual results and annual
report for the year ended 31 December 20183.
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MARR)  ARBZFEREMBEBEERE
FOER BT EIZA
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The nomination committee has been established with a defined
terms of reference in consistent with the CG Code on 28 March
2012. The primary duties of the nomination committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors. The nomination committee is led by Mr. Liu Zhongkui,
the executive Director, the chairman and the CEO. Members of the
nomination committee include Mr. Xie Baitang, Mr. Cheung Chuen
and Professor Li On-kwok, Victor, all are independent non-executive
Directors. On 30 December 2013, the Board adopted a set of the
revised terms of reference of the nomination committee in line with
the newly Listing Rules requirement in relation to board diversity
effective from 1 September 2013. The revised terms of reference
setting out the nomination committee’s authority, duties and
responsibilities are available on both the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the nomination committee
will carry out the selection process by making reference to the
skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments of the proposed candidates, including the
independence status in the case of an independent non-executive
Director, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.

During the year under review, 2 meetings of nomination committee
were held, inter alia, for considering the appointment of Professor
Li On-kwok, Victor as independent non-executive Director and
considering the retirement and re-election of the Directors at the
annual general meeting. The aforesaid newly appointed Director was
appointed by going through the selection process stated as above.
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h%*%ﬁ@@% ZEBEZEESKEHFEE8 The attendance records of individual committee members of the
#HHwT nomination committee meetings are set out below:
HEREZECEENE
REZEEEREBITRHY
Number of nomination
committee attended/
Members of Number of nomination
REZEEEGHE the nomination committee committee meeting held
Bl k (/&) Mr. Liu Zhongkui (Chairman) 2/2
WIAE A Mr. Xie Baitang 2/2
Kk 2EAE Mr. Cheung Chuen 2/2
BROMEE (RZF—=F Mr. Chen Feng (resigned on 5 June 2013)
NHHIAFE) (B1EE1) (Note 1) 1/1
FPLREYPR (R=ZFE—=F Professor Li On-kwok, Victor
NHBHEZF) (Hit2) (appointed on 5 June 2013) (Note 2) 1/1
MaF1 - BEEER-Z—=FARABNTHBAIE Note1: Mr Chen Feng was ceased to be a member of nomination
HEEEHE REEEZA & 18T committee on 5 June 2013. Before his cessation, there was a
1TRRELZEGEE - total of 1 nomination committee meeting.
Wit ZLEHENR_Z—=—FBHABEZT Note2: Professor Li On-kwok, Victor was appointed to be a member of
RIBEZEZEBENE AT —=FFK2E nomination committee on 5 June 2013. During his appointment
BN aHBMAREZESEHE - period in 2013, there was a total of 1 nomination committee
meeting.
AABECR-_ZZRFNARBRIHEMZ  The remuneration committee is established on 5 August 2005
BEeWABHEMPEELTA R THME with a defined terms of reference in consistent with the CG Code.

HE - FHZE e T 2RAEBRANTE
EZHMIELEREZEANHEFTSEM
AREERES EA REFE RWEHEZF
R (BRESEBEE) UREEARTF
BRI B AL BRIRR

FHEZEERBUFATESHRERLER
E-FHEZEERBRREBIUNFNTESS
ZEHRENEREALE-SHAEEN BBELE
FzFHEZEeBREBEIRINAR A EL
KB X AU BB

The primary duties of the remuneration committee include making
recommendations with respect to the remuneration of the executive
Directors for approval by the Board, reviewing and recommending
salaries, bonuses, merit plans, reward and recognition strategies,
including the appropriation of funds for incentive awards for
Directors, and administering and making determinations with regard
to the Company’s share option scheme.

The remuneration committee is led by Mr. Xie Baitang, an
independent non-executive Director. Members of the remuneration
committee include Professor Li On-kwok, Victor and Mr. Cheung
Chuen, both are independent non-executive Directors. The terms
of reference setting out the remuneration committee’s authority,
duties and responsibilities are available on both the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Members of

The duties of the remuneration committee includes making
recommendations with respect to the remuneration of the executive
Directors for approval by the Board, reviewing and recommending
salaries, bonuses, merit plans, reward and recognition strategies,
including the appropriation of funds for incentive awards for
Directors, and administering and making determinations with
regard to the Company’s share option scheme. The Committee has
adopted the operation model where it performs an advisory role to
the Board, with the Board retaining the final authority to approve the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management.

The Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended
31 December 2013 including to review the remuneration policy and
structure and determine the annual remuneration packages of the
Directors and the senior management and determine the annual
remuneration of Professor Li On-kwok, Victor, the newly appointed
Director during the year. In determining the emolument payable to
Directors, the Remuneration Committee takes into consideration
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and the desirability
of performance based remuneration.

The attendance records of individual committee members of
remuneration committee meetings are set out below:

LEFHEEEEBRRY
FHMEESERETRE
Number of remuneration
committee meeting attended/
Number of remuneration

FMEER'RE the remuneration committee committee meeting held
HAESLE (EE) Mr. Xie Baitang (Chairman) 2/2
Bk B4 Mr. Cheung Chuen 2/2
PR E (R=ZF—=F Mr. Chen Feng (resigned on 5 June 2013)
NHEAFE) (K1) (Note 1) 2/2
ZELEHE (R=ZZF—=F Professor Li On-kwok, Victor
NABHEZF) (Hit2) (appointed on & June 2013) (Note 2) 0/0
Krat1 - BRWMGEER-_ZE—=FARAHTEA Note1: Mr. Chen Feng was ceased to be a member of remuneration
FTMEER KB RIEEER & HE committee on 5 June 2013. Before his cessation, there were a
meREMEEgeE - total of 2 Remuneration Committee meetings.
Hlae . ZLZEHFER_Z—=F,ATHEZ Note2: Professor Li On-kwok, Victor was appointed as a member of

TRFHEEGRE -N_T—=FK2
T8N BERTHFHEREees-

remuneration committee on 5 June 2013. During his appointment
period in 2013, there was no Remuneration Committee meeting.
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The Group regularly reviews the remuneration and benefits of
employees according to the relevant market practice and individual
performance of the employees. In addition to basic salary,
employees are entitled to other benefits including the staff provident

fund scheme and the discretionary bonus scheme.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee of the Company, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, market competitiveness, individual performance

and achievement.

The Company adopted a share option scheme and a share award
scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details
of the share option scheme and the share award scheme are set out
in notes 34 and 33 to the financial statements respectively.

The corporate governance committee has been established with
a defined terms of reference in consistent with the CG Code on
28 March 2012. The primary duties of the corporate governance
committee include developing and reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board, reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, reviewing and monitoring the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, and reviewing the Company’s compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report annually. The corporate governance committee is
led by Mr. Liu Zhongkui, the executive Director, the chairman and the
CEO. Members of the corporate governance committee include Mr.
Xie Baitang, Mr. Cheung Chuen and Professor Li On-kwok, Victor,
all are independent non-executive Directors. The terms of reference
setting out the corporate governance committee’s authority, duties
and responsibilities are available on the website of the Company or

on request to the Company Secretary.

During the year under review, 2 meetings of the corporate
governance committee were held to discuss and review the
corporate governance matters and the corporate governance report
for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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rEEREESSZ 2ARELZEE€KXEBEE The attendance records of individual committee members of the
ERE ST corporate governance committee meetings are set out below:

HECEEREZEESERIRE
TEERZEEERETRY
Number of corporate
governance

committee attended/
Number of corporate

Members of governance
TEERZEEERE the corporate governance committee committee meeting held
RpES L () Mr. Liu Zhongkui (Chairman) 2/2
#AELAE Mr. Xie Baitang 2/2
ik 2E& Mr. Cheung Chuen 2/2
R AEE (RZF—=4F Mr. Chen Feng (resigned on 5 June 2013)
SNALAEE) (Bit1) (Note 1) 1/1
FPLREYPR (R=ZFE—=F Professor Li On-kwok, Victor
NHBHEZF) (Hit2) (appointed on 5 June 2013) (Note 2) 1/1
Mat1: BMEAEERZ-ZT—=FAHA TE?% Note 1:  Mr. Chen Feng was ceased to be a member of corporate
TEERZESGKE -REEFEEZA governance committee on 5 June 2013. Before his cessation,
HEBITIRBEEREERER - there was a total of 1 corporate governance committee meeting.
Hrite : ZE2LEHBABRN_ZE—=F,"ATHEZ Note2: Professor Li On-kwok, Victor was appointed to be a member of
TARALEERZEEKB -HT—= corporate governance committee on 5 June 2013. During his
BZAEAN AHBIT1IRCEERETE appointment period in 2013, there was a total of 1 corporate
@@ governance committee meeting.
BERZE ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

%%ﬁﬁfiﬁﬁéﬁﬂ%i&%°ﬁfﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%§ﬁ% The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
FOEERRMWEBARGTER BRMEM  statements. In preparing the financial statements, the generally
HE 2 GHBE WEEFHEEEFEZAE  accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong have been adopted,
R Al gt e appropriate accounting policies have been used and applied
consistently, and reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates

have been made.
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Having made appropriate enquiries, the Board is not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

The statement of external auditor of the Company, BDO Limited,
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of
the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

The Board through the audit committee is responsible for maintaining
proper internal controls within the Group.

The internal control systems are designed to provide reasonable
assurance of the Company’s assets, safeguarding them against
unauthorised use or disposition by making sure transactions are
executed in accordance with management’s authorization and that
the accounting records are reliable for the preparation of financial
information used for the business and publication. The Company has
adopted proper procedures with duly assigned levels of authority
in areas of financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management to ensure the Company’s assets and resources are
safeguarded.

During the year, the Board has engaged Crowe Horwath (HK)
Corporate Consultancy Limited to perform internal control review
to assist the Board in reviewing the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group. The Board and the audit committee
are satisfied that, based on information furnished to it and on its
own observations, the present internal controls of the Group are
satisfactory and will make further improvements.
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, the fees paid/payable
to BDO Limited, the auditor of the Company, in respect of audit
and related services provided by BDO Limited to the Group were as
follows:

—EBE-=F
2013
BT
HK$

%8 & AE B AR

Audit and related services

2,525,000
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INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP AND
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board of Directors recognizes the importance of maintaining
clear, timely and effective communication with shareholders of the
Company and investors. A Shareholder’s Communication Policy was
adopted by the Board on 28 March 2012 aiming at providing the
Shareholders and potential investors with ready and timely access
to balanced and understandable information of the Company. To
promote investor relations and communications, meeting with fund
managers and potential substantial investors are held frequently. The
Company acknowledges that its annual general meeting (“AGMs”)
is an important channel for having direct communication with
shareholders of the Company. At the meeting, the Directors and key
executives of the Group will answer and explain to Shareholders
issues relating to the Group’s business strategies and financial
results.

The 2013 AGM held on 31 May 2013, the Chairman of the Board
and the Chairmen of the audit committee, remuneration committee,
nomination committee and corporate governance committee have
attended the 2013 AGM to answer questions of the Shareholders.
Under the Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of shareholders. Due to other business engagement, one non-
executive Director and one independent non-executive Director
could not attend the 2013 AGM. However, at the 2013 AGM, there
were executive Directors and some independent non-executive
Directors present to enable the Board to develop a balanced
understanding of the views of the Shareholders.
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The Company is dedicated to providing quality and timely
disclosure of information to enhance transparency. The Company
has established a number of channels for maintaining an on-going
dialogue with its Shareholders as follows:

(i) corporate communications such as annual reports, interim
reports and circulars are issued in printed form and are
available on the Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkex.com.
hk and the Company’s website at www.anxin-china.com.hk;

(if) periodic announcements are made through the Stock
Exchange and published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company;

(iii) corporate information and the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company are made available on the
Company’s website;

(iv)  AGMs and extraordinary general meetings (“EGMSs”) provide a
forum for the Shareholders to make comments and exchange
views with the Directors and senior management; and

(V) the Company’s share registrars’ serves the Shareholders in
respect of share registration, dividend payment, change of
Shareholders’ particulars and related matters.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholder’s interest and
rights, separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings
on each substantial issue, including the election of individual
directors, for Shareholders’ consideration and voting. All resolutions
put forward at Shareholders’ meeting will be voted by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will be posted on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website after the
relevant Shareholders’ meeting.
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EGMs may be convened by the Board on requisition of Shareholders
holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company or by such shareholders who made the requisition (the
“Requisitionists”) (as the case may be) pursuant to article 68 of
the articles of association. Such requisition must state the object
of business to be transacted at the meeting and must be signed
by the Requisitionists and deposited at the Company’s head office
in Hong Kong. Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in such article for convening an extraordinary
general meeting. Shareholders may put forward proposals at general
meeting of the Company by sending the same to the Company at the
principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may send their
enquiries or requests in respect of their rights to the Company’s
head office in Hong Kong.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external service provider to provide
secretarial service and has appointed Ms. Leung Pui Ki as its
Company Secretary. Ms. Leung has confirmed that for the year under
review, she has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training. The biography of Ms. Leung is set out on the section
“Directors, Senior Management and Staff” of this annual report. Ms.
Leung is not an employee of our Group and Mr. Chow Chi Wa, our
Compliance Officer, is the person whom Ms. Leung can contact for
the purpose of Code Provision F.1.1 of the CG Code.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

At the 2013 AGM held on 31 May 2013, the Shareholders approved
the amendments to the memorandum of association and articles
of association of the Company, the provisions of which principally
reflected the changes to the Listing Rules and the CG Code. A
new set of memorandum of association and articles of association
consolidating such amendments was adopted on the same
date. The new set of memorandum of association and articles of
association of the Company is available on both the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ANXIN-CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Anxin-
China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 68 to
178, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lam Pik Wah

Practising Certificate Number P05325

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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mEERERAEMZERER

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE-Z—=F+-_A=+—HIHFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2013

—E—-=F T
2013 2012
ks BET T BT T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
EERA Turnover 7 671,702 849,730
EERAR Cost of sales (144,214) (132,775)
EA Gross profit 527,488 716,955
H A Other revenue 8 149,454 97,278
Hias & (EE) Other gains and (losses) 9 (123,423) 46,049
HE LTS HEERRX Selling and distribution costs (33,469) (116,814)
ERER Administrative expenses (49,851) (45,041)
mEEA Research and development expenses (95,064) (77,394)
VBER Finance costs 10 (8,852) (6,326)
BRATSE B AR ADE Profit before income tax expense 11 366,283 614,707
FriSfiike (&8A) Income tax credit/(expense) 15 1,566 (66,882)
FEAB Profitfor theyear _______________ 367,849 547,825
DT EEFEEFRE Profit for the year attributable to
ZANYNECIE $ S Owners of the Company 16 369,514 547,872
FEPE R = Non-controlling interests (1,665) (47)
367,849 547,825
Hinma A Other comprehensive income includes
AEHBEHNHEE ltems that may be reclassified
Bm BB subsequently to profit or loss
BEBINEBEE 2 Exchange differences on translation of
N ER foreign operations 112,733 37,354
__FEARGEARA Other comprehensive income for theyear | _° 12,733 37,354
FEFEWALE Total comprehensive income for the year 480,582 585,179
UTENREERE Total comprehensive income
WA #8258 for the year attributable to
VNN g1 Owners of the Company 482,227 585,228
FEPE MM A Non-controlling interests (1,645) (49)
480,582 585,179
BlREHN (BMW) Earnings per share (HK cents) 17
—H K - Basic 12.68 20.00
88 — Diluted 12.27 19.89
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RZFE—=F+_-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2013

—E—=F —E -
2013 2012
k3 BT T BT T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
W BB &R Property, plant and equipment 18 127,826 135,051
S Goodwill 19 1,277,018 1,296,803
Hihfmp&E Other intangible assets 20 606,358 651,770
R IEE B Deferred tax assets 28 4,122 1,659
ERBEERTE Total non-current assets 2,015,324 2,085,283
REBEE Current assets
7E Inventories 21 24,228 19,353
JE U BR 3 M H b Trade and other receivables
FE W kI8 22 213,745 378,256
PR ISR 1T F 5K Restricted bank deposits 24 1,085 18,500
HekReEE Cash and cash equivalents 24 2,249,038 1,580,697
MENEEERE Total current assets 2,488,096 1,996,806
EE#E Total assets 4,503,420 4,082,089
IR Current liabilities
ERER R Trade and other payables
E b e 5RIB 25 89,498 163,796
SAREBRSD Contingent consideration shares 26 124,915 270,142
AHER Promissory note 27 87,510 -
MEBIEAR Current tax liabilities 8,543 59,061
mE B EEE Total current liabilities 310,466 492,999
REBEEFE Net current assets 2,177,630 1,503,807
EERERRBER Total assets less current liabilities 4,192,954 3,589,090
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RZFE—=F+_-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2013

—E—-=F —ET——F
2013 2012
Joka BET T BT T
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
kRBERE Non-current liabilities
HHEE Promissory note 27 - 78,658
EERIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 28 87,885 100,570
ERBBERE Total non-current liabilities 87,885 179,228
EEHEE Total liabilities 398,351 672,227
BEZRE NET ASSETS 4,105,069 3,409,862
BERAATHEAE AN  Capital and reserves attributable to
EAXREE owners of the Company
[N Share capital 29 301,021 282,616
{1 Reserves 30 3,801,256 3,127,246
SFEBRARAF] Equity attributable to owners of
A ANER the Company 4,102,277 3,409,862
FEFE AR A 2 Non-controlling interests 2,792 -
EREE TOTAL EQUITY 4,105,069 3,409,862
RERESFE

On behalf of the Board

2=
Liu Zhongkui
EF

Director

K& M
Lin Supeng
EF

Director
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Statement of Financial Position

R-ZE—=F+_-_A=+—H Asat 31 December 2013

—E—=F —E——4F
2013 2012
B aF BT T BT T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
RBEE Non-current assets
Y BB KkEE Property, plant and
equipment 18 812 1,161
RHBRAIZIEE Investment in subsidiaries 35 638,309 694,256
EMEEELE Total non-current assets 639,121 695,417
REBEE Current assets
E W R Other receivables 22 1,439,097 1,593,868
ZREIRITFER Restricted bank deposits 24 1,085 1,708
HehkRedE Cash and cash equivalents 24 97,900 32,947
MEEEHLE Total current assets 1,538,082 1,628,523
BEEHE Total assets 2,177,203 2,323,940
REBEE Current liabilities
H {th &~ 318 Other payables 25 45,362 99,672
FARERD Contingent consideration
shares 26 124,915 270,142
ST Promissory note 27 87,510 -
mE B EERE Total current liabilities 257,787 369,814
REBEEFHE Net current assets 1,280,295 1,258,709
EEZRERRBAERS Total assets less
current liabilities 1,919,416 1,954,126

71
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Statement of Financial Position
RZFE—=F+_-_HA=+—H As at 31 December 2013

—E—=F —E %
2013 2012
B aF BET T BT T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
HHEE Promissory note 27 - 78,658
EMEBABERE Total non-current liabilities - 78,658
BEAE Total liabilities 257,787 448,472
EEFE NET ASSETS 1,919,416 1,875,468
HERAQATEBEAN Capital and reserves
EXR#HE attributable to owners
of the Company
[N Share capital 29 301,021 282,616
i Reserves 30 1,618,395 1,592,852
XA TOTAL EQUITY 1,919,416 1,875,468
REESF®Z
On behalf of the Board
ghE K&k HE
Liu Zhongkui Lin Supeng
EZE EZE
Director Director
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mEERBEHR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-Z—=F+-_A=+—HIHFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2013

N
AREE WRBY B BEA
B BhEE HE  BARR  ERR B BEARR BRERE REEE  REEN ABRE  REEE FBRER it
Equity
Share- attributable
based Share Foreign Proposed  to owners Non-
Share Share Warrant Capital ~ Statutory ~ payment Special option  exchange  Retained final ofthe  controling
Capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits dividend  Company interests Total

BT BBTR  AMTn  RETR BETn BETR RETn EEThn BBTR AMTn RETR RBETn R¥TR BRETn
HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000

RZF-Z5-f-Hz&H  Balanceat 1 January 2012 268,087 1516523 131 14911 13,255 - 19,608 26,289 138,825 496,08 80426 2,573,158 2443 2,575,596
FRET Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 547,872 - 547,872 {47 547,825
A2k Other comprehensive income - - - - - - - - 37,35 - - 37,356 2 37,354
Total comprehensive income - - - - - - - - 37,356 547,872 - 585,228 (49) 585,179
Issue of shares upon exercise of
warrants 1,500 16,931 (131) - - - - - - - - 18,300 - 18,300
KRG Issue of new shares 9329 150,361 - - - - - - - - - 159,890 - 159,890
HRAKARFRT Share-based payment expenses - - - - - - - 70,392 - - - 70,392 - 70,392
REEREREIRE Issue of shares upon exercise of
share options 3,700 72,628 - - - - - (20,828) - - - 55,500 - 56,500
BARE2ENBAR Deregistration of non-wholly-owned
subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - - (2,39) 2,394)
EERERE Provision for statutory resenves - - - - 1218 - - - - (1129 - - - -
REEEURNTAMAAL  Eouity-settled share-based
payment expenses - - - - - 28,79 - - - - - 28,79 - 28,79
Distribution of 2011 final dividends - (970) - - - - - - - - (80,426) (81,39) - (81,396)
Proposed final dividend - (101827) - - - - - - - - 101,827 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2012
282,616 1,653,846 - 14911 24473 28,795 19,608 74,853 176,181 1,032,752 101,827 3,409,862 - 3400862
LUEL] L]
b Ties HRBKS Rk BEA
Rx  RHEE Bt BARE tERE  GREE  RRRE BREEE ANER REEY  AERY  BGREE  SERER At
Equity
Shares Share- attributable
held for based Share Foreign Proposed  to owners Non-
Share Share share award Capital ~ Statutory  payment Special option  exchange  Retained final of the  controlling
Capital  premium scheme reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  dividend ~ Company interests Total

ARTn  BRTR EWTR  EMTR  BRTx BN ANTR  ERTn BN EWTR ERTR BRTn EWTR EMTR
HK§000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK§000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

RZF-Z5-A-B2&H  Balanceat 1 January 2018 282,616 1,653,846 - 14,911 24,473 28,795 19,608 74,853 176,181 1,082,752 101,827 3,409,862 - 3,409,862
FRET Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 369,514 - 369,514 (1,665) 367,849
E2ERE Other comprehensive income - - - - - - - - 1123 - - 113 20 112738
2ENHSEE Total comprehensive income - - - - - - - - 112713 369514 - 4827 (1,645) 480,582
BERZBREXN Vested share options lapsed
ote 34) . s s = 5 5 - @m) - 2% . s s -
Issue of new shares 9,140 197,224 - - - - - - - - - 206,364 - 206,364
WRAFAHFES Share-based payment expenses
#34) (note 34(a)) - - - - - - - 8,724 - - - 8724 - 8,724
R ERRERETRE Issue of shares upon exercise of
share options 9,485 189,807 - - - - - (54,210) - - - 145,082 - 145,082
REEDRES TR Capital injection from non-controling
interest - - - - - - - - - - - - 4,431 4,437
BRARDHEEADRR Shares purchased for share award
scheme - - (19,815) - - - - - - - - (19,815) - (19,815)
RiHBEAIRH Purchase of own shares for
cancellation (220) (3,355) - - - - - - - - - (3,575) - (3,575)
Provision for statutory reserves - - - - 6,624 - - - - (6,624) - - - -
Equity-settled share-based
payment expenses note 34(b)) - - - - - 17,217 - - - - - 17,217 - 17,217
Distribution of 2012 final dividends - (1,455) - - - - - - - - (101,827) (103,262 - (103,282)
Distribution of 2013 Interim divicend - (41,191) - - - - - - - - - (41,191) - (41,191)
Proposed final dividend - (30,102) - - - - - - - - 30,102 - - -
2012 Final dividend for shares
purchase for share award scheme - 435 - - - - - - - - - 435 - 435
| 2013 Interim dividend for shares
“Z-CEHERE purchase for share award scheme - 169 - - - - - - - - - 169 - 169
R-§-Z% Balance at 31 December 2013

TIRZt-B2ER 301,021 1,965,378 (19,815) 14911 31,007 46,072 19,608 6,641 268,894 1,418,368 30,102 4,102,277 2,792 4,105,069
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GEEHERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE-Z—=F+-_A=+—HIHFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2013

—E—=F —E——%F
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
REEBRMEBESESRN Cash flows from operating
activities
B FT 15 %4 & A B A E Profit before income tax
expense 366,283 614,707
FE Adjustments for:
FLEMA Interest income (7,951) (5,669)
EEREBERE Provision for impairment
loss on goodwill 58,307 7,663
MIEER Finance costs 8,852 6,326
FAREBRGD 2 Fair value changes on
NEEES contingent consideration
shares 61,137 33,209
b 5 Uk s - RE Exchange gains, net (1,829) (681)
T R Depreciation and amortisation 121,071 73,819
BHREERMINAX Equity-settled share-based
payment expenses 17,277 28,795
VARR 19 2 A 5/ P 2 Shares-based payment
expenses 8,724 70,392
HEME RE#H2 Loss/(gain) on disposal of
BB (WaE) plant and equipment 851 (38)
FEWER K 2 Reversal of impairment loss
RAEBERE on trade receivables - (23,493)
GFEZREBERE Provision for impairment loss
on inventories 4,359 -
WHEEERERE 2 Compensation gain arising
HE W from acquisition of
Yu Hong Group - (61,490)
HBEESEHAIZ Operating profit before
BEHER working capital changes 637,081 743,540
BFE (gm,wmd (Increase)/decrease in
inventories (8,597) 14,798
JE W AR SR % H A fE UK Decrease/(increase) in trade
R, (M) and other receivables 129,432 (78,922)
JE A~ B 3R B EL h JE A< Decrease in trade and
SRIER D other payables (27,148) (28,046)
REmBES Cash generated from
operations 730,768 651,370
ERAET Income tax paid (67,585) (32,971)
REXKMEBESFE Net cash from operating
activities 663,183 618,399
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-Z—=F+-_A=+—HIHFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2013

—E—-=F —T—_F
2013 2012
M &t BT T BT T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
REZTEBFRBRER Cash flows from investing
activities
BEWE BELEE Purchases of property,
plant and equipment (6,488) (19,464)
BERVEE Purchases of intangible
assets (48,525) (23,226)
HEME REH 2 Proceeds from disposal of
Fr{§ 3018 plant and equipment 3,697 60
HEWB R RMEHRIEA Proceeds from disposal of
subsidiaries 37 1,354 -
U B B /B A A Acquisition of subsidiaries,
MBRFKREZIRE net of cash acquired - (69,037)
ZREIRITFER Decrease/(increase) in
A (3G n) restricted bank deposits 17,659 (18,312)
BiEALZ (Payment to)/repayment from
(R BR related parties (5,575) 1,197
=R NS Interest received 7,951 5,669
REZTBFARSFE Net cash used in investing
_________________ activities (29,927) (123,113)
METEMBHEER Cash flows from financing
activities
RITE R AR B R 81T Proceeds from issue of
f& 15 2 Fr1S kI8 shares upon exercise of
warrants - 18,300
1T B A e IRy 31T Proceeds from issue of
f& 15 2 Fr 1S kI8 shares upon exercise of
share options 145,082 55,500
YR TARABHEEB A Dividends paid to the owners
% 2 of the Company (144,700) (79,688)
BUBEGEMME AR 2 Payment for deregistration of
ES subsidiary - (2,394)
B 10 BB AT El 2 K Payment for share award
scheme (19,815) -
i [0 f% 19 Repurchase of shares (3,575) -
REFEEBRBEZ ETE Capital injection from
non-controlling
shareholders 4,437 _
MEEEFARSEE Net cash used in financing
activities (18,571) (8,282)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE-Z—=F+-_A=+—HIHFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2013

—_EBE—=F —E——F
2013 2012
B aF BET T BT T
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
HERBLEEEMEL Netincrease in cash and
cash equivalents 614,685 487,004
REAzBHERBEEEE  Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 1,580,697 1,077,795
ReRESEEZER Effect of exchange rate
B2 changes on cash and
cash equivalents 53,656 15,898
RELKCZEESRBELEME Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year 24 2,249,038 1,580,697
ReREASEEZ Analysis of the balances of
EER DA cash and cash equivalents
Re RRITHEH cash and bank balances 2,249,038 1,580,697
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Notes to the Financial Statements
—F—-=%+=-_A=+—H 31 December 2013

—RE&E R

PR EERERAR ([AAE]) R
EReSRSFMRIZBERAR AR
MEBBBERGMAERAR L.
RAFZ M SR 2 ik BP.O. Box
309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman lIslands e £+ Z %
FMEREBEFEEE5EER L
201201-05% °

AR/ —FHREERAR -EBA
A XTEREHENLRREENRE
EERERERE ([ISD]) ZRHLE
e 2R ([1SS]) 2 Rehg it e
B RERSRERTERE LR E
moEREMEARER ([FRER]DE
mZ A B EERDEER-

EMEBUMBEREEN (B

B EHREER])

(a) HMEBBMBHMEEL BT —
“E-=ZHF-A—-HEBEXENX

BAMBREEN —TThFE-TF
(B37%) B FENE
EEMBREES -—T-TEZ-FT-——F
(B3T%) BEzFENE
EARBRERN -B--53-F-=f
(BFT%) BEZEENE
BRQHENEIY RIEMZEKAES

BT (18 (B3T)
BEMBREED HESREER
ETHR 2B SREE
ERUBREER  HARMBRER
F10%
BRYBAREERN RANEERRIRE
F12%
ERUBREER  QAAEEHE
F13%

BB EEI0E EEET
(Z%——F)

GENERAL

Anxin-China Holdings Limited (‘the Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Cayman Islands and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands. Its principal place
of business is located at Unit 01-05, 20F, Harbour Centre,
No.25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the sale of system
hardware and application software for installation of Intelligent
Surveillance Disaster Alert & Rescue Coordination (“ISD”)
Systems and Intelligent Safety Systems(“ISS”), provision of
system solutions services and the design, development,
production and distribution of security and protection products,
surveillance cameras and Closed Circuit Television (“CCTV”)
products.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs - first effective
1 January 2013
HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements

2009-2011 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Presentation of Iltems of Other
Comprehensive Income

Offsetting Financial Assets and

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKFRSs (Amendments)
Amendments to

HKAS 1 (Revised)
Amendments to

HKFRS 7 Financial Liabilities
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits
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B R ER AR

Notes to the Financial Statements
—F—-=%+=-_A=+—H 31 December 2013

2. RMWBEBMBREEA([F
EMB®REER]) &)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(@) RAHBEBMBHREER BT — (a)
TE-ZF-A-HEBEREXNR

BR T SRS - SRR 1t B R R
BRAZHFI REEFTEA LR
HAKEZHBHRERLBERY

gégo

EBYBREER (IE74F) —=
EENFE_F——FHRHZF
EX#E

BEMHRELENE IR EEL
BR] AEBEEENER RS
SRR EHEHEIISRER SR
HEVEBREATZER FH2
SIFEMPBIRREK - BE - BEAR
% F B ISR O R AR B A S
BEFTLL BB HL o BB RT A K H
ZRAGHBE -

ERYBREER (Ea74F) —=
E—SFF-_F-——FHHCF
EX#E

BEMBREERF1R R A(E
Bt 8z EmEEEKELER
NEBHTEROZELTEXN
R HEE M R 2 58 R WK IR K
ENREARERFTEZERS
BRTE-MFEITEAKEZRA
SRR B

Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs - first effective
1 January 2013 (continued)

Other than explained below, the adoption of these
new and revised standards and interpretations that are
relevant to the Group has no significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

HKFRSs (Amendments) - Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

HKAS 1 has been amended to clarify that an opening
statement of financial position is required only when
a retrospective application of an accounting policy,
a retrospective restatement or reclassification has a
material effect on the information presented in the
opening position. Further, this opening statement of
financial position does not have to be accompanied by
comparative information in the related notes. This is
consistent with the Group’s existing accounting policy.

HKFRSs (Amendments) - Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

The Basis of Conclusions for HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement was amended to clarify that short-term
receivables and payables with no stated interest rate
can be measured at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial. This
is consistent with the Group’s existing accounting policy.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
—E2—=%F+-"A=+—H 31 December 2013

2. RMWBEBMBREEA([F
BUBREERN]) &)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

BENBHREER (IET74F) —=
E——FE_F-Z-FAYPZF
B #E
BEMHREENE 1R ERA
FEEMBHRELAZEREED
RAEHER] BB WIFR B2
MEBMERREREFIZFE
REFEVBHRELENNAEZ
SIBRIER (BRIFBBUEMELE
AR REEIB RN 2180
T-EREHEREE(EIFHRE)
Rz EBM B REER - AR
AEBIFEHRRNEBY B IR
EER - MERARFETHZREM
BHRRLEZE -

BB BRI E1R 55T (B
i) — 25 RMEEKRAEE
TR G ERE R BT (K
RREAKER2INEMEE
WamzHB D RZEARERAR
ENOBRERGZHEBRZFR
VEEMDBERD AR ~BLE
fozmKEE R BRNHES R
HEEEETHENKE - AEE
REAM BRI E b2 E RS
ZEVNBFEHEEER-

BB BHERRETH ZIEET —
BHTHEERTHBEE
BEMBREENETRSLEL
EF] - BREF B G ERIE325
HEZMECHRAERTANRK
ERNAIAT 2 RFREEH R
SEULHE (M TwRELSREE
AT ERE325R ) 5| ARE
M °

HKFRSs Amendment - Annual Improvements 2011-
2013 Cycle

The Basis of Conclusions to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption
of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards was
amended to clarify that a first-time adopter is allowed, but
not required, to apply a new HKFRS that is not mandatory
if that HKFRS permits early application and provided that
HKFRS is applied in all periods presented unless HKFRS
1 provides an exemption or exception. The adoption
of the amendments has no impact on these financial
statements as the Group is not a first-time adopter of
HKFRS.

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) - Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require the Group
to separate items presented in other comprehensive
income into those that may be reclassified to profit and
loss in the future and those that may not. Tax on items of
other comprehensive income is allocated and disclosed
on the same basis. The Group’s presentation of other
comprehensive income in the consolidated financial
statements has been modified accordingly.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 7 is amended to introduce disclosures for all
recognised financial instruments that are set off under
HKAS 32 and those that are subject to an enforceable
master netting agreement or similar arrangement,
irrespective of whether they are set off under HKAS 32.
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Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs - first effective
1 January 2013 (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the Group has no offset financial
instruments, nor has it entered into a master netting
agreement or a similar arrangement.

HKFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for
consolidation of all investee entities. An investor has
control when it has power over the investee (whether or
not that power is used in practice), exposure or rights
to variable returns from the investee and the ability
to use the power over the investee to affect those
returns. HKFRS 10 contains extensive guidance on the
assessment of control.

For example, the standard introduces the concept of “de
facto” control where an investor can control an investee
while holding less than 50% of the investee’s voting rights
in circumstances where its voting interest is of sufficiently
dominant size relative to the size and dispersion of those
of other individual shareholders to give it power over the
investee. Potential voting rights are considered in the
analysis of control only when these are substantive, i.e.
the holder has the practical ability to exercise them.
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HKFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

The standard explicitly requires an assessment of
whether an investor with decision making rights is acting
as principal or agent and also whether other parties
with decision making rights are acting as agents of
the investor. An agent is engaged to act on behalf of
and for the benefit of another party and therefore does
not control the investee when it exercises its decision
making authority. The accounting requirements in HKAS
27 (2008) on other consolidation related matters are
carried forward unchanged. The Group has changed its
accounting policy in determining whether it has control of
an investee and therefore is required to consolidate that
interest (see note 4(b)). The adoption does not change
any of the control conclusion reached by the Group in
respect of its involvement with other entities as at 1
January 2013.

HKFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the
disclosure requirements about interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements. It also introduces
new disclosure requirements, including those related to
unconsolidated structured entities. The general objective
of the standard is to enable users of financial statements
to evaluate the nature and risks of a reporting entity’s
interests in other entities and the effects of those interests
on the reporting entity’s financial statements.

HKFRS 12 disclosures are provided in note 35. As the
new standard affects only disclosure, there is no effect on
the Group’s financial position and performance.
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HKFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on how
to measure fair value when it is required or permitted
by other standards. The standard applies to both
financial and non-financial items measured at fair value
and introduces a fair value measurement hierarchy.
The definitions of the three levels in this measurement
hierarchy are generally consistent with HKFRS 7
“Financial Instruments: Disclosures”. HKFRS 13 defines
fair value as the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date
(i.e. an exit price). The standard removes the requirement
to use bid and ask prices for financial assets and liabilities
quoted in an active market. Rather the price within the
bid-ask spread that is most representative of fair value
in the circumstances should be used. It also contains
extensive disclosure requirements to allow users of the
financial statements to assess the methods and inputs
used in measuring fair values and the effects of fair value
measurements on the financial statements. HKFRS 13 is
applied prospectively.

HKFRS 13 did not materially affect any fair value
measurements of the Group’s assets and liabilities and
therefore has no effect on the Group’s financial position
and performance. The standard requires additional
disclosures about fair value measurements and these
are included in note 40. Comparative disclosures have
not been presented in accordance with the transitional
provisions of the standard.
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Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs - first effective
1 January 2013 (continued)

HKAS 19 (2011) - Employee Benefits

The revised standard distinguishes between short-term
and long-term employee benefits based on the expected
date of settlement. The previous standard used the term
“due to be settled”. HKAS 19 (2011) provides additional
guidance on the definition of termination benefits.
Benefits that are conditional on future service being
provided including those that increase if additional service
is provided are not termination benefits. The revised
standard requires that a liability for termination benefits is
recognised on the earlier of the date when the entity can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and the
date the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.

The Group has amended its accounting policies for short-
term employee benefits and termination benefits, however
the adoption of the revised standard has no effect on the
Group’s financial position or performance.

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued and
have been early adopted

Amendments to HKAS 36 - Recoverable Amount
Disclosures

The amendments limit the requirements to disclose the
recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit
(CGU) to those periods in which an impairment loss has
been recognised or reversed, and expand the disclosures
where the recoverable amount of impaired assets or
CGUs has been determined based on fair value less costs
of disposal. The amendments are effective for annual
periods commencing on or after 1 January 2014. The
Group has early adopted the amendments to HKAS 36 in
the current period. The disclosures about the impairment
of goodwill in note 19 have been modified accordingly.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(c)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by

the Group.
Amendments to Offsetting Financial Assets and
HKAS 32 Financial Liabilities’

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments —
classification of financial
assets and financial
liabilities

HK (IFRIC) 21 Levies’

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle?
HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014

3 Effective for annual periods beginning, or transactions

occurring, on or after 1 July 2014

Amendments to HKAS 32 - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by
adding appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies
when an entity “currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off” and when a gross settlement mechanism is
considered equivalent to net settlement.
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New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into
financial assets measured at fair value or at amortised
cost depending on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair
value gains or losses will be recognised in profit or loss
except for those non-trade equity investments, which
the entity will have a choice to recognise the gains and
losses in other comprehensive income. HKFRS 9 carries
forward the recognition, classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except
for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss, where the amount of change in fair
value attributable to change in credit risk of that liability
is recognised in other comprehensive income unless
that would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch.
In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS
39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

HK (IFRIC) 21 - Levies

HK (IFRIC) 21 clarifies that an entity recognises a liability
to pay a levy imposed by government when the activity
that triggers payment, as identified by the relevant
legislation, occurs.
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New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (continued)

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-
2013 Cycle

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to a number
of standards where they are currently unclear. Among
them HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment has been
amended to clarify how the gross carrying amount and
accumulated depreciation are treated where an entity
uses the revaluation model. The carrying amount of the
asset is restated to revalued amount. The accumulated
depreciation may be eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset. Alternatively, the gross carrying
amount may be adjusted in a manner consistent with
the revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset and
the accumulated depreciation is adjusted to equal the
difference between the gross carrying amount and the
carrying amount after taking into account accumulated
impairment losses.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the potential impact of these pronouncements. The
directors so far concluded that the application of these
new pronouncements will have no material impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for the valuation of certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair value, as
appropriate.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in thousands of units of Hong
Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
a financial year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective
dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.
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Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit
or loss.

Contingent consideration balances arising from business
combinations whose acquisition dates preceded
1 January 2010 (i.e. the date the Group first applied
HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been accounted for in accordance
with the transition requirements in the standard. Such
balances are not adjusted upon first application of the
standard. Subsequent revisions to estimates of such
consideration are treated as adjustments to the cost of
these business combinations and are recognised as part
of goodwill.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.
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When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill),
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in

and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-

other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed
of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there

may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend

received and receivable.
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Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests over the
fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration
paid, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of
the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the
basis of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or
loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost or valuation net of expected residual
value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. Property, plant and
equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings over the shorter of
the term of the lease

or 20 years
Leasehold improvements 20%
Plant and machinery 10%
Office and other equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 10%
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An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an
expense on the straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised
as an integrated part of the total rental expense, over the
term of the lease.

The land and buildings elements of property leases
are considered separately for the purposes of lease
classification. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings
elements, the entire lease payments are included in the
cost of land and buildings as a finance lease of property,
plant and equipment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over
their useful lives as follows. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss and included
in cost of sales.

Patents and trademark 5-10 years
Technology 5-10 years
Service contracts 9 years
Customer base and

unfinished contracts 2-5 years

During the year, the Group has reviewed and
adjusted the useful lives of the patent for CCTV
products from nine years to six years to better
reflect the useful life of the patents. The effect of
the change in accounting estimate in the current
year was an increase in amortisation charge of
approximately HK$8,417,000.



Annual Report 2013 4 i

B FE R 2R Y

Notes to the Financial Statements

—E—=F+-"H=+—H 31 December 2013

4., FESIHEE (&)

) EREE(Z)
(i) ABELEZEFEEE (HH

&)

P BB A 3 BE ah 2 B SR R R
ATIERTTFAEARL:

o R EFEZERAH
HETREAAT

o BHmEAHZEKRAEZT
RER:

o BrEAMIH
EADE

s AEEBRNHERE

]

o  HEREMBELRR
Mk RxIBER

XRER SRt E

P

mnL

B2 FABERATINARE
EEHSGEHECHEEM®
ZENEREEE HEHE M
EESEAERL T AHERK

DR

AL REZFEMX
RAEIEEB EHR R R ZH
XTRELRER DA E

7
e

an -

4. SIGNIFI

(continued)
(ff) Intan

(ii)

CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

gible assets (continued)

Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

o it is technically feasible to develop the product
for it to be sold;

. adequate resources are available to complete
the development;

° there is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

o the Group is able to sell the product;

° sale of the product will generate future
economic benefits; and expenditure on the
project can be measured reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over
the periods the Group expects to benefit from
selling the products developed. The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss and included
in cost of sales.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of
internal projects are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.
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4. SIGNIFI

(continued)

(iii)

CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment annually by comparing their
carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of
an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years.

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired (see the accounting policies
in respect of impairment losses for tangible and
intangible assets below).



Annual Report 2013 4 i

B FE R 2R Y

Notes to the Financial Statements
—E—=%F+_-"A=+—H 31 December 2013

4.

N

FESHBE &)

()

EHEE
AEBEEFWBEENE K
RNFEREHEBREED
B-mAFEFARZRZS
REEVMNIEAFEFTE
IEREMMEREENTRA
FEMBESREEERE
HZRXHRAGTE —RiE
CHREIHEZEREER
R B EEERNE LT
Ro—REEBEIHEZ
EMEENRANBERHD
S EGRREAR — KRR
SR 45 15 I 1B IR 3 2 B
RARMNEE-

B R ER R

B R EWRIR T I E R
BHEREZETXAEE
NRZFTESTREE -Z
FEETZRAEP (BK
RROREEMERGER
hEL - BRKITEIEEM
BRlzANEBREEE -
RERE ZEEENER
M BORIR B 55 A AR, = (]
E AR E R B AR -

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are initially measured at
fair value and all other financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. A regular way purchase or
sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the time frame established generally
by regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They arise
principally through the provision of goods and
services to customers (trade debtors), and also
incorporate other types of contractual monetary
asset. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence
that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is
impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset and that
event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include:

° significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

° granting concession to a debtor because of
the debtor’s financial difficulty;

° it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit and
loss when there is objective evidence that a
financial asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account.
When any part of a financial asset is determined as
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset.
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(i) £HEE (iii) Financial liabilities
AEBERTEASHAEGEZ The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
REMmMEEBEREESD depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
M- EAFTEFTAERZZS were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
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through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised costs
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded

derivatives, are also classified as held for trading

FIEEE WIEERB XY unless they are designated as effective hedging
T EMLTE T AAIRRIN instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
BEBEBE BB 2 NELE trading are recognised in profit or loss.
BREERP#R -

MENBE—HAFERA Where a contract contains one or more embedded
APTET A - AEGOESS derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
AT BE R AE IR A TP ERTA designated as a financial liability at fair value
BEazemBE BRIEZR through profit or loss, except where the embedded
AXNPTTET BT & KR E derivative does not significantly modify the cash
RERE HABEEDIF flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded
BMAXSTETL A derivative is prohibited.
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4. SIGNIFI

(continued)

(iii)

CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss
if the following criteria are met: (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the liabilities or recognising gains or
losses on them on a different basis; (ii) the liabilities
are part of a group of financial liabilities which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or (i) the financial liability
contains an embedded derivative that would need to
be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables and promissory note issued by
the Group are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.
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4. SIGNIFI

(continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at
its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contact
at the higher of: (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with HKAS 18 Revenue.
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4. SIGNIFI

(continued)

(vii)

(viii)

CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Warrants

Warrants issued by the Company that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments are classified
as an equity instrument. The warrant reserve will be
transferred to share premium upon exercise of the
warrants. Where the warrants remain unexercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in warrants reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms
of that liability, the equity instruments issued are
the consideration paid and are recognised initially
and measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the
fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot
be reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of system hardware and application
software is recognised when all the following conditions
are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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System solution services income is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered,
by reference to completion of the specific transaction
assesses on the basis of the actual service provided
as a proportion of the total services to be provided.
When the services are performed by an indeterminate
number of acts over a specified period of time, revenue
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the specified
period unless there is evidence that some other method
better represents the stage of completion. When a
specific act is much more significant than any other
acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the
significant act is executed.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership, which is at the time of
delivery and the title is passed to customer.

Subsidy income is recognised when the rights to receive
the income is established and approved.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Royalty income is recognised on an accruals basis
in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.
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Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the
end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange
differences are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
rates approximating to those ruling when the transactions
took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss of group
entities’ separate financial statements on the translation
of long-term monetary items forming part of the Group’s
net investment in the foreign operation concerned
are reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign exchange
reserve relating to that operation up to the date of
disposal and are attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve.
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Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the
services are rendered by the employees.

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit or loss
over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in
the employee share option reserve within equity. Non-
market vesting conditions are taken into account by
adjusting the number of equity instruments expected
to vest at the end of each reporting period so that,
ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over the
vesting period is based on the number of options that
eventually vest. Market vesting conditions are factored
into the fair value of the options granted. As long as all
other vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made
irrespective of whether the market vesting conditions
are satisfied. The cumulative expense is not adjusted for
failure to achieve a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other
than employees and others providing similar services,
the fair value of goods or services received is recognised
in profit or loss unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets. A corresponding increase in equity
is recognised. For cash-settled share based payments,
a liability is recognised at the fair value of the goods or
services received.
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any directly attributable incremental costs, is presented
as “shares held for Share Award Scheme” and deducted

from total equity.

When the awarded shares are transferred to the awardees
upon vesting, the related weighted average cost of the
awarded shares vested are credited to “shares held
for Share Award Scheme” and the related employment
costs of the awarded shares vested are debited to the
share-based payment reserve. The difference between
the related weighted average cost and the related
employment costs of the awarded shares is transferred to
retained profits.

Where the shares held for Share Award Scheme are
revoked and the revoked shares are disposed of, the
related gain or loss from disposal of revoked shares is
transferred to retained profits and not recognised in profit
or loss. Where cash or non-cash dividend distribution is
declared in respect of the shares held for Share Award
Scheme, such cash dividend or fair value of the non-cash
dividend is transferred to within equity with no gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss.
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At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased.

° property, plant and equipment;

o intangible assets with finite lives; and

° investments in subsidiaries.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs to sell and value in use) of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which will
probably result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Related parties
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

—
=

has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(i)

(i

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching with them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in
the statement of financial position and transferred to profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful
lives of the related assets.

Other government grants are recognised as income
over the periods necessary to match them with the
costs for which they are intended to compensate, on a
systematic basis. Government grants that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

(@) Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
- Investment property

The Group has temporarily sub-let a vacant property
but has decided not to treat this property as an
investment property because it is not the Group’s
intention to hold this property in the long-term for
capital appreciation or rental income. Accordingly,
this property is continuously accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.

- Determination of functional currency
The directors consider that the functional currency
of the Company is and has always been Hong Kong
dollars as the Company is an investment holding
company in Hong Kong with its investing decisions
and financing activities carried out under the
economic environment in Hong Kong.
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AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continuead)

(a)

(b)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

(continued)

Taxation

Determining income and other tax provisions
involves judgement on the future tax treatment of
certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislations. Where the
final tax outcome of these transactions is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
difference will impact the income and other tax and
deferred tax provisions in the year in which such
determination is made.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these

financial statements, other key sources of estimation

uncertainty that have a significant risk of resulting a

material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within next financial year are as follows:

Assessment of useful lives of property, plant
and equipment

The management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.
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EERIR (&)

(b)

FEMIFTREEMERIEF ()

HREERE
AEBEVEEZRERRE
TREBEARE SR GE
WREEERE BT 2 RHKR
KB RELEH - RIEFHA
5B AR 1 M B AR R
PR it 2 R ERRTT RIRTS
EEXCEARRESRER
AR AE AR E FIE - BT
BEZAWEEEDRER
8- BN BE /R 2VEHRUE °

FEW 5t R 2 6 fE

7R ER B2 PR R U R K R EL At
JE W R IR 2 A] U B A2 JE R
EEREH BB —BEME
EHITRAERRZHREE
AJBE N AT U B - B & B
o R R R EL At B MR IR B
BB BB RERAZRE
BEPZEELERERNTR
fEH HIEr M - TR H 2
THEREHAEEER
AlZERBERATREZ
IR A 2 Bl &2 2 e WA

ZHREENR R RIER L

RS HEREEMSTFA®E 5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continuead)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of intangible assets

The policy for impairment of intangible assets of the
Group is based on an evaluation of their recoverable
amount with reference to expected future cash flows
based on management’s estimation. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in estimating the
expected future cash flows from the Group’s system
hardware and application software acquired and
system solution services provided. If the recoverable
amounts are less than the carrying amounts of the
intangible assets, impairment may be required.

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for doubtful debts
based on an assessment of the recoverability
of trade receivables and other receivables.
Provisions are applied to trade receivables and
other receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be collectible. The identification of doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates based
on the credit history of the customers and the
current market conditions. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact carrying amount of receivables and
doubtful debt expenses in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.
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5. BARERESTHEREITEMLSTAHE 5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

EERIR (&)

(b)

FTEMTFABERRIR (E)

BBl
EEREALREAMGE
TERBZREELENM
ZERE EEERER
B EEBAGAZATE
FEUBRHEEZARRS
ME - WAEE 2 IR EE
HHBAE-HERRAKRS
MEREHE AAJEELE
EARMEER-

HURG A H 2141
E=EREAEHEENUR
AN RZEERERZ
REMERM -THREE
—RERZ HERE &K
RestEBRE A EE
FERZEHERBRIIAES
ZEEGFHABRREZTS
EMEF = (A ) B E
R o

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continuead)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the management to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise.

Valuation of share-based payment

The directors use their judgement in selecting
an appropriate valuation technique used in the
valuation of share-based payment. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners
are applied. The variables and assumptions used
in computing the fair value of the share options
are based on the directors’ best estimate, where
possible, by observable market prices or rates.
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6. TEPEHE

AEERTZLERKE (NEES)

PR ARG D

= QAL
TEEHKLED

AEBEMBEZ®RD
- N DV E P =
B TRBMAXAEEE 2

() ISDZE%: -

7

HBRALDRERZ ]

-

E4

-

i

pa

ISDA % 3 [ Intelligent
Surveillance, Disaster
Alert and Rescue Co-
ordination ] £ & 18 ° 2%
ZgZ— AN AR
MR EREA
TE& ABBZAMTAE
BI%Z2ERE(flm
KETHZE HET
BUMEBE) BmIXME
EXE B BT &5
L AEEREZD
BrREEBERERNE
3 T M B U
BEND BRE N RE
THZZREERB R
B RBER-

B2 ZH(SS)A
H 3 [Intelligent Safety
Systems | #) 4§ 78 o &K
SERBEZD 2 M
FERERAMEHF
HERREIX DR
BREZEMH BHRE
B E 2R O
mERE ABERE
o R fH AR

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segment based on the

reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker (i.e.

the board of directors) for the purposes of assessing segment

performance and allocating resources.

The Group has two reportable segments and is managed

separately as each business requires different business

strategies. The following summary describes the operations in

each of the Group’s reportable segments:

(i)

(i

ISD system
segment

ISS segment

ISD is an acronym standing for
“Intelligent Surveillance, Disaster
Alert and Rescue Co-ordination”. It
involves the setting up of a dedicated
communications platform using
Internet-of-things technologies,
through which industrial safety
parameters, such as content in a coal
mine, oil pressure in an oil depot,
etc, are transmitted from industrial
enterprises to the Local Government
Monitoring Center. The Group’s
revenue from this segment is primarily
derived from local government
authorities or sub-contractors of local
government authorities as well as
service charges received for ongoing
systems maintenance services.

ISS is an acronym standing for
“Intelligent Safety Systems”. The
Group’s revenue from this segment
is primarily derived from the sales of
software, hardware and equipment,
primary hardware and equipment,
such as surveillance cameras, CCTV
products and sensors, to enterprises/
governments for the purpose of
ensuring industrial/public safety.
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6. TEWE (4 6.
Sz ERHESEHRBLUE LRI
SRR 2 B - NI B B
MERRE BT A BRA 258

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Inter-segment transactions are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar orders. Central expenses
are not allocated to the operating segments as they are not

M PRES AT I ED R

ZX 43 R N 3
:\:,Z\ 77 ab °

included in the measure of the segments’ profit that is used by

&= the chief operating decision-maker for assessment of segment
performance.
ISDRHE A H BHZR2RAASH At
ISD system segment ISS segment Total
“g-=-f -—Z--f Z-B-=f <-T-—-% CZB-=f —E--F
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
RENPEP 2 s Revenue from external
customers 651,761 742,823 19,941 106,907 671,702 849,730
DERHE Inter-segment sales - 3,364 - 1,021 - 4,385
Bt Total 651,761 746,187 19,941 107,928 671,702 854,115
PHEH/ (BE) Segment profit/(loss) 564,461 580,577 (114,696) 26,742 449,765 607,319
ﬂ SV ON Interest income 7,541 5,105 50 10 7,591 5115
EHER,/ (H%) Income tax expense/(credit) 10,056 71,240 (11,622) (4,358) (1,566) 66,882
mE?Fm@)ﬁﬁF Additions to non-current
assets 53,778 427,764 1,231 218,618 55,009 646,382
HERE Impairment of goodwill - - 58,307 7,663 58,307 7,663
FEREH Depreciation and
amortisation 85,603 54,454 34,803 18,700 120,406 73,154
ERNBEE Reportable segment assets 4,151,225 3,513,906 256,482 376,053 4,407,707 3,889,959
ERHHLEE Reportable segment
liabilities 139,656 154,600 14,830 73,596 154,486 228,196
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6. DEEWE (&) 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
—E—=F —E——F
2013 2012
BET T BT T
Y &5 Revenue HK$’000 HK$’000
EFo I 2 WE Reportable segment revenue 671,702 854,115
k2 2B 2 Wz Elimination of inter-segment
revenue - (4,385)
RE W Consolidated revenue 671,702 849,730
—ZF—= -4
2013 2012
Profit before BT T BT T
BETEHREBRA Z2EF income tax expense HK$’000 HK$’ 000
EWDE BT Reportable segment profit 449,765 607,319
H AU A Other revenue 836 778
Habzm K (F5E) Other gains and (losses) (61,035) 28,281
P& 5 Uk 25 % 58 Exchange gains, net 2,245 656
MEER Finance costs (8,852) (6,326)
ROBBERT Unallocated corporate expenses (16,676) (16,001)
bR TS & A Al Consolidated profit before income
e WIDiES tax expense 366,283 614,707
—E—=F —E——F
2013 2012
BET T BT T
EE Assets HK$’000 HK$’'000
ERDHA2EE Reportable segment assets 4,407,707 3,889,959
ko EfE 2 EUFRTE  Elimination of inter-segment
receivables (13,972) (4,491)
HekReZEE Cash and cash equivalents 101,761 188,223
ROMPEEE Unallocated corporate assets 7,924 8,398
REBEERTE Consolidated total assets 4,503,420 4,082,089
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6. THBE &) 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

—E-=F —E—ZF

2013 2012

BT T BT

=N Liabilities HK$’000 HK$’000

ExoEcBE Reportable segment liabilities 154,486 228,196
Mo HEEE Elimination of inter-segment

liabilities (13,972) (4,491)

H fth JE S 308 Other payables 45,412 99,672

AHER Promissory note 87,510 78,658

KAREBRD Contingent consideration shares 124,915 270,142

RO EEE Unallocated corporate liabilities - 50

REBERE Consolidated total liabilities 398,351 672,227

ARAEERRAEEZHZEANK
S RERBOEAEEEHKEF
BHi5 BAKRBEZEAFRBE
EXEMNPEER Bl g2
WiplREw o

Hz—Z2—=%+Z-A=+—H
IHFE —RISDESZDEHBEFH
HE R D R4 & B 167,145,000
JL R 8 #587,496,0007 * & BIE A
EBEWRZZ10%M £ o

HE-_Z——+=-HA=+—H
IFFE —RISDELEDBE LB
SHE L) A 90,314,0007T * 16
REBUWZE Z10%A Lo

The directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s consolidated revenue and substantially all of its
consolidated results are attributable to the market in the
PRC and the Group’s consolidated non-current assets
are substantially located in the PRC. Accordingly, no
geographical information is presented.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, two customers
of the ISD system segment had sales of approximately
HK$167,145,000 and HK$87,496,000 respectively each
of which contributed to more than 10% of the Group’s
revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, one customer
of the ISD system segment had sales of approximately
HK$90,314,000 which contributed to more than 10% of
the Group’s revenue.
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7. EEWA
W AR AREBRER NG REZGE
T RHERREE RS E SRR
REBEIRERARRRERT BB
WO BT BB > B = (B (FORR T30 R
H) FRARLERARERZSE
ADEWEZ SEMT

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the invoiced value of sale of application
software and system hardware, security and protection
products and manufacturing and sales of surveillance cameras
and CCTV products, and system solution service income, after
discounts and rebates, earned by the Group. The amounts of
each significant category of revenue recognised in turnover
during the year are as follows:

—EBE-=F —E——F
2013 2012
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

FEREHE R RFEGHE Sales of application software and
system hardware 525,845 639,491

HEER R LEHKEMREMS  Sales of surveillance cameras and
CCTV products 19,941 74,295
RBEERRTERE LA System solution service income 125,916 135,944
671,702 849,730

8. Hitugr A 8. OTHER REVENUE
—E—= —_F—=

2013 2012
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
WEMRRK (Hita) Refund of value-added tax (note a) 95,557 84,876
B U A Interest income 7,951 5,669
WA (B atb) Subsidy income (note b) 41,195 3,975
EHAh Others 4,751 2,758

149,454 97,278
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8. HfMrA (&)
Hat -

(@ HEH ([EER]) EBRERBEEARE (@)
BB R BEA R [BIREE R
BEBBERRNBA] (BF[2011] (100
FOREEBTHREESFARE P I
WEERERES (FRELAEER

) -

() AEERELBEAABEHNELE (b)
BiPEBRESHE - SRER%E

T8 B ) ARIE K A o

9. Htlzm=R (i)

8. OTHER REVENUE (continued)

Note:

and the Ministry of Finance.

The refund of value-added tax (“VAT”) represents the benefits
from VAT collected from customers on the sale of self-developed
software which are eventually retained by the Group according
to the “Circular on VAT policy on software products “
[2011] Cai-Shui), issued by the State Administration of Taxation

(No. 100

The Group received subsidies from local PRC government
for launching projects relating to research and development

activities. There are no unfulfilled conditions relating to these

grants.

9. OTHER GAINS AND (LOSSES)

—E—=F —E—F
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
AR BRMD 2 A BEZE)  Fair value changes on contingent
(Htit26) consideration shares (note 26) (61,137) (33,209)
WHEB A EE 2 fMERE Compensation gain arising from
acquisition of Yu Hong Group - 61,490
b 5 Uk a2 )5 58 Exchange gains, net 1,829 681
JE Y BR SRR (B s 1R 5 [ Reversal of impairment loss on
trade receivables - 23,493
FEREBBREE Provision for impairment loss on
inventories (4,359) -
R EEERE Provision for impairment loss on
goodwil (58,307) (7,663)
Efb Others (1,449) 1,257
(123,423) 46,049
10. B K& A 10. FINANCE COSTS
—E—-=F —E—_F
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BB EBERF R Effective interest expense on
(Biat27) promissory note (note 27) 8,852 6,326
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11. FREB & A AR B 11. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE
BRETEHERAFBANER (FTA) Profit before income tax expense is arrived at after charging/
AT & IEZER: (crediting) the following items:

—E-=F —E——F
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
WRRFAZNFEERAR Cost of inventories recognised as
an expense 20,746 63,693
WE WERRETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 12,912 8,536
Bt A E Amortisation on other intangible
assets 108,159 65,283
% S AN Bl & Auditor’s remuneration 2,525 2,612
FLEMA Interest income (7,951) (5,669)
FEREBBREE Provision for impairment loss on
inventories 4,359 -
12. BT RA& 12. STAFF COSTS
—EBE—-=F —E——F
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000

BET(BREZ)KAEE: Staff costs (including directors)

comprise:
TE BB BUR RET &I HE 3K Contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans 2,385 1,381
o R R E MR = Salaries, allowance and other
benefits 38,419 23,706
AR T2 A A SR 2 Share-based payment expenses 6,853 8,402

47,657 33,489
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13. EEM &£

BE-_FT—=f+-A=1T—HBL#F
F-E2EFzMeHIIMT

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The remuneration of directors for the year ended 31 December

2013 is set out below:

BB A
M 2ER Bxe NHEX
ae BNREE BETAL  B/ARSHR (Hiita) &t
Salaries, Share-based
allowances Employer’s payment
and benefits Discretionary contribution expenses
Fees in kind bonuses  to pension (note a) Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HITES Executive directors
£ Wang Bo 226 91 5 13 - 335
ks Lin Supeng 30 241 60 22 468 821
55 Yang Ma 30 178 44 19 468 739
ElLiES Liu Zhongkui 30 304 76 25 468 903
FRTES Non-executive directors
TEE Wang John Peter Ben 30 - - - - 30
Adiv Baruch Adiv Baruch 30 - - - - 30
BYFHTES Independent non-executive
directors
w2 Cheung Chuen 180 - - - - 180
FilizE Xie Baitang 286 - - - - 286
FRE Li On Kwok, Victor' 103 - - - - 103
I3 1812 Chen Feng? 13 - - - - 13
958 814 185 79 1,404 3,440
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13. EEME (@) 13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
HE-_ZT——-—F+-A=1+—HILF The remuneration of directors for the year ended 31 December
E-EFsMeEIMAT: 2012 is set out below:

MR 75
B 28R Exz NELE
He ENRa BEEL  RASHER (Hiita) At
Salaries, Share-based
allowances Employer’s payment
and benefits  Discretionary ~ contribution expenses
Fees in kind bonuses to pension (note a) Total

BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HITESR Executive directors

I Wang Bo 15 129 - 8 - 152
MERfE Lin Supeng 30 181 47 15 448 721
BE Yang Ma 30 177 44 15 448 714
Bhx Liu Zhongkui 30 302 76 23 448 879
FHITES Non-executive directors

TEE Wang John Peter Ben 8 - - - - 8
Adiv Baruch Adiv Baruch 8 - - - - 8
BUFHTES Independent non-executive

directors
w2 Cheung Chuen 169 - - - - 169
#HHE Xie Baitang 248 - - - - 248
ELCA Pei Renjiu 8 - - - - 8
BiE Chen Feng 30 - - - - 30
576 789 167 61 1,344 2,937

! ZTLRER T —=FNARABEZF- | Li On Kwok, Victor was appointed at 5 June 2013.

2 RIS - —=F/NARAHEIE- 2 Chen Feng resigned on 5 June 2013.
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13. EEM &€ (=)
W15t - Note:
(@ WIHRBEARARZEBRETSRTE (a)
HEUEREZGHAEE ZEBERES
BEBBEROK FAMAHEAERF
ARG EANRR S 2 @t R
E-ZEBEWEMNZFHB (BEMRD
BRI 2 E EIEFRREE ) IRHIsE34(a)
iR

by REE-ZT—=FR-_FT—-F+= (b)
A=+—ALFE ANEERERTHE
ESIHEAMESIEAMARE®K
RINAREE R 2 85 - S IE ARG

f&-

hEESHFMAL

EARAEEREGESFHMALTH - HA=
H(ZE——F ZR)AARFES
EMe DA EXMFI82HES -4
TRE (ZT—ZF:Mma) AT ziMe

14. 14.

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

These represent the estimated value of share options granted
to the directors under the Company’s share option scheme.
The value of these share options is measured according to
the Group’s accounting policies for the share-based payment
transactions as set out in note 4(m). The details of these benefits
in kind, including the principal terms and number of options
granted, are disclosed in note 34(a).

No emolument was paid by the Group to any of the directors as
an inducement to join the Group or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2012.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2012: three) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note
18 above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2012: two)

s individuals were as follows:
—E—-=F —E——F
2013 2012
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FrEN - RBE R E M F = Salaries, allowances and
other benefits 1,170 1,260
TEREM FGRIRAT 8 3% Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans 32 43
1,202 1,303
BE2MESETI 2 &BEERA : Their emoluments were within the following bands:
A
Number of individuals
—E—=F —E-F
2013 2012
& & Emolument band
= % 7% ¥1,000,0007T Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 2
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15. fiIBHER,  (BIX) 15. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)

(a) MNiEFcEachkEMmErERKmTRZ (@) The amount of taxation in the consolidated statement
I & 8EE of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represents:

—E—-=F —E——F
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BV HAT 18 Current tax
—hEPERER - PRC Enterprise
(TEEMEHR]) Income Tax (“EIT”)
—REEHIE — tax for the year (11,920) (82,577)
—FFEERE — (under)/over provision
(T R)/REERE in respect of prior year (4,164) 5,880
______________________________________________________ (6088 (e507)
EIEFLIE (B74228) Deferred tax (note 28)

—RFE - current year 17,650 9,815
FTefEe, (BH) Income tax credit/(expense) 1,566 (66,882)
HRAFERBAFESEBE QT No provision for profits tax for group entities in the
THREFREHNSNEBELES Cayman lIslands or the British Virgin Islands has been
EEBHMRFETOERTLA - made as these entities had no income assessable for
W BAEZERERENZS profits tax in these jurisdictions for current and prior
SEATHFSHELBE- years.

BENERIENBEBTEMA L 2 M Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2012:

BAR Z AT ERTE R 2 16.5% 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for
TE——F:16.5%) it E BN subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong. No provision for

REBRRNFEREERT AN Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group had
ZEZF | MUEELE no assessable profits for the year (2012: Nil).

BMET -
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15. FTIEHER (BEX) (&)
@ (%) (a)

BREBEREARANMBECEMEHR
E(TREMERZE]D REEMREF
BOEERGD B —TTN\F—A
—HE PEERNORER25% -

BEERERTMHRBERDE L2
X ARRZWE QBRI
BB FTERAER AR (DRYIE
)RRV REARRBEER
AR (DRINEE]) 6 @il
EER ER_ZE——FFEC
T =HF-EAFERR=-Z—Z=
FE_ZT-NFZ@AFEDHE
BELEMSHE15%MESR -

BIEERERNTRERDEL 28t
AR E B A RRERYITIR

BeekmAaRAR (DFERIIEE])
REBHEEREER BERZ
E-ZER - E-MEEZAD
EMSEHeE URR-T—AF
E_T+tEEEZBELEMRSEN
T RE50%HIBE ©

R BA OB B B B 2 3t
X DT Z M8 B RTHA
BREIHARAR (DAL ])
HAREEERRER HRR-
T-TER-T-—EEIAL
EFEHEH HRE-B—=F
E-T-MEETHOEMEH
5509 ) B T <

BEEMEESTMREREL 28t
X ARRNEZWEB AR EMNE mE
SERMAERAR ([HFMHEE])
REMMEELEER BENRZ
T —ER-_FT-_FEZHD
EMEHEE URR-Z—=ZF
E-E-—NFEZHLEMRSER
T R50% A B E ©

15. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) (continuead)

(continued)

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC entities
is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Pursuant to an approval document issued by the
Tax Bureau of Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the
Company’s subsidiaries, Shenzhen Anxin Digital
Development Co., Limited (“Shenzhen Anxin”) and
Shenzhen Hawell Advanced Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Hawell”) qualify as high-tech enterprise and
are entitled to a preferential enterprise income tax rate
of 15% for the three years from 2011 to 2013 and from
2012 to 2014, respectively.

Pursuant to an approval document issued by the
Tax Bureau of Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the
Company’s subsidiary, Shenzhen Xinye Intelligence
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Xinye”) qualifies as
a software-producing enterprise and is entitled to EIT
exemption for the years 2013 and 2014 and a 50%
reduction in EIT for the years from 2015 to 2017.

Pursuant to an approval document issued by the Tax
Bureau of Hongze, Jiangsu Province, the Company’s
subsidiary, Jiangsu Hongxin Intelligence Technology
Co., Limited (“Jiangsu Hongxin”) qualifies as a software-
producing enterprise and is entitled to EIT exemption for
the years 2010 and 2011 and a 50% reduction in EIT for
the years from 2012 to 2014.

Pursuant to an approval document issued by the Tax
Bureau of Yanji, Jilin Province, the Company’s subsidiary,
Jilin Province Yingke Information Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Jilin Yingke”) qualifies as a software-producing
enterprise and is entitled to EIT exemption for the years
2011 and 2012 and a 50% reduction in EIT for the years
from 2013 to 2015.
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15. FIBHER, (X)) (&)
@ (#) (a)

REEHREIEE RGBT 2
X AARZHEATEHE R
CERMERAT ([EHER])
HABMEECRER SR
T CER-T-NEEIEL
EFERAY URK -2 14F
BT LEEEHCERAH
9. 50%# B K -

AEBFREENEGEERCERS
BT R 1 2 A0 B8 A% R4S AR B U
WEEE EEEEBERREEE
BN - A ATESDEL TG
WRARBE_ZE—=1+_A8
=T -RIEFERHEERBARZ
HEAEEZELHERTERE -

PR B S N 48 2 B0 EL A B /B8 2 7]

EIRIZEFI RO5% ( Z T — 4 :
25% ) B E AT T -

15. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) (continued)

(continued)

Pursuant to an approval document issued by the Tax
Bureau of Yanji, Jilin Province, the Company’s subsidiary,
Jilin Anxing information Technology Co., Ltd. (“Jilin
Anxing”) qualifies as a software-producing enterprise and
is entitled to EIT exemption for the years 2013 and 2014
and a 50% reduction in EIT for the years from 2015 to
2017.

The qualification of software-producing enterprise and
high-tech enterprise enjoyed by the Group is subject to
review by relevant government bureau to be completed
after the reporting date. The directors of the Company
assessed and are of the opinion that the relevant review
criteria for respective subsidiaries for year ended 31
December 2013 have been properly met.

Other subsidiaries, which were established and operate
in the PRC, are subject to EIT at a standard rate of 25%
(2012: 25%).
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15. FIBHER, (BX) (&) 15. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) (continued)
(o) irﬁﬁ T & R Al B4R /.:.\%EHSZ (b) The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled
=EMIZBRATERE RS to the profit before income tax expense per consolidated
HERMT - statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income as follows:

—E—-=F —E——4F

2013 2012

BT T TS F T

HK$’000 HK$ 000

6 B A E Profit before income tax expense 366,283 614,707

BB Tax calculated at PRC EIT rate of

FRi5 1 1 £25% 25% (2012: 25%)

(ZE—Z%:25%) 91,571 153,677
MBRE 2 Effect of tax exemption (125,002) (97,758)
MEBAF BB E Effect of different tax rates of

ERIYE subsidiaries 10,090 24,878
A ENAEZ 2 Tax effect of expenses not

k% deductible for tax purpose 21,458 7,363

BAERTBAZ Tax effect of revenue not taxable

MR E (13,057) (15,398)

BEFEBEBETIR Under/(over) provision in respect of

(FBFERM) prior year 4,164 (5,880)
RERBMIBEEZ Tax effect of tax losses not

M2 recognised 9,210 -
Frigs (%), & Income tax (credit)/expense (1,566) 66,882

c RZZE—=F+=-"A=+—8" (c) At 31 December 2013, the Group had unused tax losses
AN S l%“ﬁﬂi@ﬁﬁ MBEEEE of HK$55,433,000 (2012: HK$ Nil) available for offset

55,433,000 (ZE— ZF : B
O7T) Pl AREE RE T - AR ZE A
NI =R 3Dk
B I IR E R IBEEED LR E
AR E R T AR - RE BB
E 1B A A 5 F -

16. AR AEBABEFRNER

against future profits. No deferred tax asset in respect
of unused tax loss has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams for those individual
subsidiaries. The unused tax losses may be carried
forward for 5 years.

16. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

RRREAANEMEFRENERFZLE

166,240,000 (ZFE——F : B
93,342,000 ) 2 BB HE R AR A

ZHI AR EIE -

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
includes a loss of HK$166,240,000 (2012: HK$93,342,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.
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17. ER W H

BAREBEERAARBZIETREN

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

NEEERR TR EBE A TSGR HE attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the parent entity is
based on the following data:
—=ZF—-= —E—_4F
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HK$000 HK$000
BRAEmFAA Profit for the year attributable to
FEAE F R equity holders of the parent 369,514 547,872
ET3EEmMEEZ Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
BEEsTaRkyE: shares:
SARERDAAEBEES  Fair value change on contingent
consideration shares (8,937) (914)
AU EER Earnings for the purposes of
BEAR BT diluted earnings per share 360,577 546,958
[ii&vig =] Number of shares 2013 2012

RAGESRERRTNZ
BB RN HE 15 8 OB 3L
Pein 2B IR B 2 I tn)
(ATF&H)

RTIIFEMESE 2 BE
BEERREE (AT
— R IERE
— R
— AR BB

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares (less shares held

for share award scheme

for the purpose of basic

earnings per share) (thousands) 2,914,163 2,739,248
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary

shares (thousands):

— warrants - 2,065
— options 23,959 4,756
— contingent consideration shares - 3,663

RUFTEER#EERN 2

Weighted average number of

LB nkE T ordinary shares for
(BAF5H) the purposes of diluted
earnings per share (thousands) 2,938,122 2,749,732

Bt it - Note:
BREATEZERAMIARER D The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume the
50,778,606l 2 1T EBE L ¥ B 2 B issuance of outstanding 5th tranche of contingent consideration shares
EAIE N A E TR E AR R R of 50,778,606 shares since their exercise would result in an increase in
TZBHARERD (KARERD ZFF1E earnings per share (details on contingent consideration shares, please
FE2MHEE26) ° refer to note 26).
ARRBEBRREBIGEREEN  WE The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume the
BB SR EREBHETERLEER expected issuance of equity settled share-based payment (details

DX (FIEH2EMEES4(0)) °

please refer to note 34(b)) as conditions have not been satisfied at the
end of the reporting period.
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18. MIE -MERRKRE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HE HE BAER
THREF NEEE BERES Hitk AE it
Leasehold Office
land and Leasehold Plant and and other Motor
buildings improvements machinery  equipment vehicles Total
BETIL BETIL BETL BETIL BETIL BETL
AEH Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Cost
R-E-——%—A—H At 1 January 2012 102,948 5,357 - 15,607 3,967 127,879
BREBAGNE Acquired through business
combinations 1,611 - 385 10,316 3,749 15,961
m Additions 6,273 84 507 4,329 8,251 19,464
RE Disposals - - - (26) (160) (186)
i 5B Currency realignment 1,105 40 9 404 168 1,726
R-T——% At 31 December 2012
+ZA=+—-8 111,837 5,481 921 30,630 15,975 164,844
Em Additions - - 93 4,776 1,619 6,488
RE Disposals (3,786) - (131) (17,019) - (20,936)
&5 E Currency realignment 3,299 122 27 828 411 4,687
RZE—=%F At 31 December 2013
+-RA=+-H 111,350 5,603 910 19,215 18,005 155,083
RAHERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
RZZE——%—F—-H At 1 January 2012 4,523 1,779 - 13,043 815 20,160
BREKAHE Acquired through business
combinations 105 - 109 469 239 922
ERHERY Depreciation charge for the year 4,777 1,072 68 1,286 1,333 8,536
REEHER Written back on disposals - - - (25) (139) (164)
S Currency realignment 109 25 2 181 22 339
RZZ-Z% At 31 December 2012
+-A=+—-H 9,514 2,876 179 14,954 2,270 29,793
ERHERT Depreciation charge for the year 5,231 1,119 287 3,772 2,503 12,912
REERED Written back on disposals (167) - (53) (16,168) - (16,388)
B A Currency realignment 671 85 9 87 88 940
i At 31 December 2013
+-A=+—-8H 15,249 4,080 422 2,645 4,861 27,257
REFEE Net book value
RZE—=% At 31 December 2013
+ZA=+-H 96,101 1,523 488 16,570 13,144 127,826
RZE—ZF At 31 December 2012
+-A=+—-H 102,323 2,605 742 15,676 13,705 135,061
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18. Y% - BERRE (&)

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
HEME WAER
g Hitk s &5t
Office and
Leasehold other
improvements equipment Total
BT BT BB T
N Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Cost
RZFE—Z—5—H—H At 1 January 2012 1,359 385 1,744
Zh Additions - 5 5
RZZE——F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2012 1,359 390 1,749
# Additions - - -
R-ZE—ZF+=-F=+—H At 31 December 2013 1,359 390 1,749
FERRE Depreciation and impairment
RZZE——F—HF—H At 1 January 2012 180 59 239
FAMERST Depreciation charge for the year 272 77 349
WZE——F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2012 452 136 588
FRFERAS Depreciation charge for the year 272 77 349
RZZE—=F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2013 724 213 937
REFEE Net book value
RZZE—=F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2013 635 177 812
RZE—ZF+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2012 907 254 1,161

FAE+HNZNERERER -
—=FR=ZF——F+_A=+—H%
BB REBERPEASEN T
o

AARM—ENBRAAENRETAE
2,641,000 (ZF —ZF B
6,433,0007T) K BB AN TR E L1 )%
BFREEMEMBRER-

The carrying values of the leasehold land payments above
comprise land outside Hong Kong held under medium term
leases as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

A subsidiary of the Company is in the process of applying
for the property ownership certificate of leasehold land and
buildings located outside Hong Kong with carrying value of
HK$2,641,000 (2012: HK$6,433,000).
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19. & 19. GOODWILL
—E—-=F —T—_F
2013 2012
BT T S F T
rE Group HK$’000 HK$’000
%S Cost
Rn—H—H At 1 January 1,304,466 1,129,430
W B A 7] Acquisition of subsidiaries - 201,640
FrEHTE Measurement period adjustment - (40,000)
ME 5, 58 B Exchange adjustment 38,750 13,396
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 1,343,216 1,304,466
Rt REEIE Accumulated impairment losses
m—A—H At 1 January (7,663) -
FRERZBEEE Impairment losses recognised
in the year (58,307) (7,663)
P 5 58 2 Exchange adjustment (228) -
R+Z—A=+—8H At 31 December (66,198) (7,663)
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 1,277,018 1,296,803
RAETREARME FEDSIREE For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
FHAM TR EESN ([HeELES the cash generating units (“CGU”) identified as follows:
fizl) -
—E—-=F —ET—_F
2013 2012
BT T TS F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
ISDEGZ DI —FEEEE L 1SD system segment — Eagle Mascot
LB (K ita) Group and Jiangsu Hongxin (note a) 1,174,244 1,140,368
ISDES D H—EREE ISD system segment — Tech Praise
(Ktatb) Group (note b) 86,013 83,532
ISSHE—EBEREHE ISS segment — Yu Hong Group
(Kiite) (note ¢) 16,761 72,903

Wn+=—A=+—H At 31 December 1,277,018 1,296,803
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19. € (@)
et - Note:
(a) HEEEBRIHRES (a)
ZHIERKBEREESR RITHE M
BRI ER AR ZEEMEAZ
BE FRURBER=ZTNF+AR
B o

e SR ERERTE  WE2E
B BEGERM AETEBRBERA
RI([BEMNEL) F{ELZ T amE
EoFRABENDREEEENEEER
FHEZHMBRESEEL 2R RETE
BIETE - AF SR FMIRSRE 8K
3% (ZT——fF:3% ) 2 BTEE
KEITHR  ZIBRERWEBBISDR
HITEZ VPR E - TBEEFETK
BEBEMNBEARBEREEEEMS
R 2BAMEDL -

19. GOODWILL (continued)

Eagle Mascot Group and Jiangsu Hongxin

The amount represents goodwill arising on the acquisition of
interest in Eagle Mascot Group and Jiangsu Hongxin Intelligence
Co., Ltd., which was completed in October 2009.

The recoverable amount has been determined based on a
value in use calculation with reference to assessment made
by independent professional valuer, Assets Appraisal Limited
(the “Assets Appraisal”’). The value in use calculation used
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period. The cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the steady
growth rate of 3% (2012: 3%), which does not exceed the
average growth rate of the ISD system industry. Budgeted gross
margin is determined based on the unit’s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.

—E-—=fF —E—_F

2013 2012

TEHERE Budgeted gross margin 83% 92%

BLIR X (BREIAT) Discount rate (pre-tax) 19% 17%
AFHB TR E Average revenue growth rate

ERX within the five-year period 0% 7%

PR ZBEIR R DR B ER S EL
BUEHZEERRAR 2 ERR

REEEENFHER RZT—=F
TZTAZT-BHIEHBREERE
ERERE EREEFTERMEER
ZEBRZEMAEAREHHIT S
BYREAEBRBETKDESER-

The discount rate used is determined based on the risk free
interest rate adjusted by the specific risk associated with the
CGU.

Based on management’s assessment results, there was
no impairment of goodwill as at 31 December 2013 and
management believes that any reasonably possible change in
any of the assumptions in the value in use calculation would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount.
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10. & (&)
Bzt (4)

(b) EEEH (b)
ZEeRERBRERARARKER
BAR (SR TEREE]) 228K
BAELEZEE ARKECR-F
——FNATEREK - IR E SR
EREENE K2 EEETEMN
R 27T A MEE - EREETIEE
EEEMEFBLFHHEZMERER
EhzREREBTAAE - LFHMH
A LRSS RBAFA% (ZE—=
F:3%) 2 REBERETHR ZIE
RRYEBBISDERTE 2 FHER
T -FBAEMNEXNKEABEMBER
RAREEBHMSER2AREL-

19. GOODWILL (continued)

Note: (continued)

Tech Praise Group

The amount represents goodwill arising on the acquisition of
entire equity interest of Tech Praise Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Tech Praise Group”), which was
completed on 17 August 2012. The recoverable amount has been
determined based on a value in use calculation with reference
to assessment made by Assets Appraisal. The value in use
calculation used cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period. The cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
steady growth rate of 3% (2012: 3%), which does not exceed the
average growth rate of the ISD system industry. Budgeted gross
margin is determined based on the unit’s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.

—E—-=fF —E—_F

2013 2012

TEHERE Budgeted gross margin 64% 81%

BLIR X (BREIAT) Discount rate (pre-tax) 23% 24%
AFHB TR E Average revenue growth rate

HRE within the five-year period 18% 19%

R ZBERE BB BRERRSESL
B AR TR R EZ ERRF

BT

BIEERBOIMEER R _B—=F
+o A=t — AR E R
BI2EARME - 8 P B R AEER
HEBRICMABTHEDETE

BEUREAERBENEETHE-

() BEKEH (c)
#Z% 4 U Yu Hong Limited & E B
BAR (B REERE]) 22 BRA
EafEEZEmE BARKREER=Z
—ZFMA—AEK - JRE S EIRE
REAERTE  TE2ELEFEMED
ZEHEMETE o FEABEEDREE
BEMEEBRFHMZMBRBEEIE
HeREREEAED - AFHMMU £
MRS REARAIR (ZE—=F:
2% )2 BEEREETHR ZER
KW EBIBISSITEZ FHERE -
HEMEDRBERAEMLBERRAR
EEEHMISER ZEAED -

The discount rate used is determined based on the risk free
interest rate adjusted by the specific risk associated with the
CGU.

Based on management’s assessment results, there was
no impairment of goodwill as at 31 December 2013 and
management believes that any reasonably possible change in
any of the assumptions in the value in use calculation would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount.

Yu Hong Group

The amount represents goodwill arising on the acquisition of
entire equity interest of Yu Hong Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Yu Hong Group”), which was
completed on 1 April 2012. The recoverable amount has been
determined based on a value in use calculation with reference
to assessment made by Assets Appraisal. The value in use
calculation used cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period.
The cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using the steady growth rate of 3% (2012: 2%), which does
not exceed the average growth rate of the ISS industry.
Budgeted gross margin is determined based on the unit’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development.
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10. & (&)
Hia: (4)

19.

GOODWILL (continued)

Note: (continued)

() B=&m(#&) (¢)  Yu Hong Group (continued)
—E-=F —E=—=
2013 2012
TEHERE Budgeted gross margin 43% 41%
BLIR X (BREIAT) Discount rate (pre-tax) 27% 4%
hFEFETFH A Average revenue growth rate
R X within the five-year period 214% 30%

AR ZBER X R RBERARSESL

BAA B2 R R R 2 AR A
KEE °
BEEEEZIME R-22—=F

Jr:HEJr—Ezmuﬂééﬁmgfﬁé
BHEN—_ZEZ—=F+=-A=+—H
CHREELAENZEBSELNB
58,307,000 (Z T — —4F : B
7,663,00070) cEHR M ESEL BN 2
FEHSECHBREETRESRE A
AREAMKESEZ EZRR

T fa] 7 F1) &2 B 45 5 S| BUsE — P RURE
BE-BAIt REBEE=Z2—=F+=A
=S+ BUEFERIABEREFER
H#)75158,307,0007T (T —— 4 :
75 #7,663,0007T) °

ERREBEEIE - -=F528
EBRERAER IR EELEME

MRERR — T = FRAMKER
EmZBARZT—ZF TELI80%

TTHRTEHFREMNREEER
MRERAEZ BIRNISSIAB TR
ISSIEB DEZHETHERA - BISS
HEXEBR-_Z—=ZFHERMABHE
RFE B - AR EITAHIZ FISSIA B K
RRCELBUNTIESE MNER
KB MEERER KA
KED B E T — = F R IRTE -

The discount rate used is determined based on the risk free
interest rate adjusted by the specific risk associated with the
CGU.

According to the management’s assessment, the estimated
value in use amount as at 31 December 2013 was less than
the carrying amount of CGU by approximately HK$58,307,000
(2012: HK$7,663,000) as at 31 December 2013. As the carrying
amount of the CGU has been reduced to its recoverable amount
any adverse change in the key assumptions used to calculate
the recoverable amount would result in further impairment
losses. Accordingly, a provision for impairment loss on goodwill
of approximately HK$58,307,000 (2012: HK$7,663,000) is
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The recognition of an impairment loss resulted from a demanding
business environment and a change in the CGU’s strategy
implemented during 2013. Revenue from CCTV products
dropped by approximately 80% in 2013 as compared to
2012 due to the highly competitive market and consequently
management decided to devote more of its resources to
ISS projects. The ISS projects are mainly sold to the PRC
government and the ISS project business was at the start up
stage in 2013. The Group expects that these ISS projects to
become the main focus for the CGU and revenues from CCTV
products are also expected to partially recover from their 2013
low within the budgeted period.
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20. Hth | EE

20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

EHREREE Bl BEEH EFER ARAEH hy
Patents and Service Customer  Unfinished
trademark  Technology Contracts base contracts Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
A%E Group HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000
BASME Cost or valuation
R-ZE--%—-A—H At 1 January 2012 - 123,189 - 21,613 13,203 158,005
BREBAHNE Acquired through business
combinations 215,933 - 270,959 - - 486,892
m Addition 117,987 21,997 - - - 139,934
AR Currency realignment 1,846 310 4,734 - - 6,890
R-Z-=% At 31 December 2012
+-A=+—-H 335,716 145,496 275,693 21,613 13,203 791,721
m Addition - 48,525 - - - 48,525
it Write-off - - - - (13,203) (13,203)
S Currency realignment 6,535 1,575 8,190 - - 16,300
RZT—=% At 31 December 2013
+-RA=+-H 342,251 195,596 283,883 21,613 - 843,343
B Amortisation
R-Z--F-f—-H At 1 January 2012 - 51,971 - 9,109 13,203 74,283
AEEHBHERY Amortisation charge for the year 26,364 23,998 10,765 4,156 - 65,283
EHAE Currency realignment 211 52 122 - - 385
WZE——4F At 31 December 2012
+ZA=+—-8 26,575 76,021 10,887 13,265 13,203 139,951
AEEEHAY Amortisation charge for the year 45,570 28,582 29,851 4,156 - 108,159
h ARS8 Eliminated on write-off - - - - (13,203) (13,203)
EHAE Currency realignment 1,069 239 770 - - 2,078
RZE—=% At 31 December 2013
+-A=+—-H 78,214 104,842 41,508 17,421 - 236,985
REFE Net book value
RZE-=% At 31 December 2013
+-A=+—-H 269,037 90,754 242,375 4,192 - 606,358
RZE—ZF At 31 December 2012
+-A=+—-H 309,141 69,475 264,806 8,348 - 651,770

139



140

R B 225542 iR B PR 2 &) Anxin-China Holdings Limited

BTSRRI AL

Notes to the Financial Statements
—E2—=%F+-"A=+—H 31 December 2013

21.

22,

7E 21. INVENTORIES
—E—=F —F—=

2013 2012
BT T BT T
r&E Group HK$’000 HK$’000
R ## Raw materials 8,001 9,469
R Work in progress 5,569 554
LYK o Finished goods 10,658 9,330
24,228 19,353

FE Wi B K I L th FE UK IR

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

“Z2-=% %
2013 2012

BT BT BETT BB

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

FiN-3 /N PN /N

Group Company Group Company

JE U BR 3R Trade receivables 178,902 = 363,161 -

H i YR IR Other receivables 8,330 1,201 2,454 7

fEWEE A LA Amounts due from related parties 2,289 = 599 -
JEM E =B (H5#23) Amounts due from directors

(note 23) 61 - 620 -

FEMF B R RIRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries - 1,434,585 - 1,691,256

HeERAHZBES Rental and utility deposits 8,866 - 3,147 2,605

R R A Advance to suppliers 15,297 3,311 8,275 -

213,745 1,439,097 378,256 1,593,868

EWEEAL EFRMBRARZRE
TR B RAMERER -

HipEUHRIBTIRBER SRS AR ZE
ARERE MRBE_T—=F k=
T —HFt+ A=t HALFEARE
HRAMEBER AEETENLZSER
FATAERR  EMEERR R
REMNFER/RE -

The amounts due from related parties, directors and
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

Other receivables are assessed for impairment individually at
each reporting date and no impairment losses was recognised
during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. Other
receivables, deposits and prepayments are interest free.
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22, FE W AR R I E i B WK TR

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continuead)

(#&)

—BRH AEEBELZEESENT
90H £180R - MAMABEE AR MR
BZRBJECEBNRLTEEMHE12E A%
WER-RER IREZEHHES 2
FEUBE N aREE (FIRRREBBEE) 2
RIS DT o

In general, the credit terms granted by the Group ranged from
90 to 180 days, while the retention monies held in relation to
the sales of application software are receivable 12 months
after installation of software. The following is an aged analysis
of trade receivables balance net of allowance for impairment
losses presented based on the invoice date at the end of
reporting period.

—E-=F —E—ZF

2013 2012

BT T BT T

RE Group HK$’000 HK$’000
ARG Aged:

30H AR Within 30 days 62,590 137,144

31£260H 31 - 60 days 275 141,549

61290H 61 — 90 days 64 6,388

91£&180H 91 - 180 days 7,920 4,587

1812365H 181 - 365 days 85,059 73,476

365H M More than 365 days 22,994 17

178,902 363,161

RAFERZEWRERESHP  HEFR
7 1643,5668,0007T ( ZF—ZF : Bk
94,178,0007T ) & E W A & E 2 & K
BEERBE-BIEMNEF(ZT—=
FN\UBEP)LEREREHETE
B5% R ERPWEMAMBEERT

Of the trade receivables balance at the end of the year,
HK$43,568,000 (2012: HK$94,178,000) is due from the
Group’s largest customer. There are another seven customers
(2012: eight customers) who represent more than 5% of the
total balance of trade receivables. These customers are with no
history of default in the past.
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22. B AR R H fth FE WK IR 22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(%)
TRIVFEANEBERFOREEE 2 K - The below table reconciled the impairment loss of trade

receivables for the year:

—E—-=F —E——F

2013 2012

BT T B’ T T

rEH Group HK$’000 HK$’000

Rn—A—H At 1 January - 23,493

BRI ERE 2 & E Recovery of impairment loss recognised - (23,499)

®w+=—A=+—8H At 31 December = -
FEYER SR B8 (FIBRIBEEIE) RS The following is the aging analysis of trade receivables balance
EIRIB IR RRE A 2RI AT a0 - (net of impairment loss) based on the invoices’ due date as of

the end of the reporting period:

—E-=F —E——F

2013 2012

BT T TSI

REM Group HK$’000 HK$'000

B8R (Hfita) Current (note a) 117,224 247,933

B R30H Less than 30 days past due 17,623 72,075

#EI31290H 31 - 90 days past due 7,574 16,916

BHI91E120H 91 - 120 days past due 19,540 26,237

#1 831212365 H 121 - 365 days past due 15,951 -

B EAS65H M L More than 365 days past due 990 -

MR EBRE @ AR Amount past due but not impaired
W ARFE 2 FKIB at the end of reporting period
(Kratb) (note b) 61,678 115,228

178,902 363,161
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22, FE W AR R I E i B WK TR

(%)

Biat - Note:

(a) MABHARREZERERETRR (@)
AP R B HE R At 8% o

(b) MNEHMEBE NEBZEWERKE (b)

B T = 1E A B & 3L R EEE - {8 R
MEZEEEREREEP ZEER
B WHENHET R BRNAKLER M
RT ARER - AEE W BB SRR
BEMERRSIEMEEMNRER
TR AR SR Bl R A S 40 75 2 (T 300R
TR SR TERER -

BB ERBREZEHKNEL
61,678,000/ (=& — ZF : B
115,228,0007t) B AE EEH XU &
BEREB & WREFENERA
a] F U e o

RTERBE 2B
BPAEEZERMEZ 2RFERE
D FEPIE161BIRREN T -

23. 23.

RTEAEBEZSRBE 2B

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continuead)

The balances that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

At each reporting date, the Group’s trade receivables were
individually and collectively determined for impairment purposes.
The individually impaired receivables are recognised based
on the credit history of the customers, indication of financial
difficulties, default in payments and current market conditions.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances nor does it have a legal
right of offset against any amounts owed by the Group to the
counterparty.

The balances of approximately HK$61,678,000 (2012:
HK$115,228,000) which were past due but not impaired related
to balances where there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable.

ADVANCES TO OFFICERS

Details of advances to officers of the Group disclosed pursuant
to Section 161B of the Companies Ordinance are as follows:

Advances to officers by the Group

BRARE BEELE ShELE EREE Ed #st
EZ EE EF  ERAeH
Mr. Liu
Name of borrower Mr. Yang Ma, Zhongkui, Mr. Wang Bo, Mr. Li He, Total
senior vice
director director director president
BB ZHE Balance of the relevant advances
BT BB BEFT BB BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE—=F At 31 December 2013
+=RA=+-8 57 4 - 260 321
RZT—=F—H—H At 1 January 2013 - 17 603 - 620
FAREBEZEABE Maximum balance outstanding
during the year 57 17 603 260 937

EABRTGERA RELBRERE

s

The above advances are unsecured, interest free and repayable
° on demand.
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24. RERREEE
MARESGED B BB
2,174,013,0007L & B &
25,658,000 (=& — =%
B 1 ,574,735,0007T N B
31,257,0007T ) 2 #R1T & #AET AR
EBRARNRZRITRIBSEHS -
ARBWIEATEBHE R B 1R
B P B K B 2 AN B IR AR KR A
E-EEMETERT ~£H
MANE A B BE R T TIMNE S
B2 RITIEARE LB BINE o

TFRRIRT 2 REL AT BRI
T7 R R R 2 S B A R ERER
%lJ/%\O

AAREE R - E—=F+_A
ST —RAZHBREBERESMNEER
1% 7] A DA R FR B Bl 37 % BT /8 2 &
RRBAFH 2 BBRBKEL (=
T — — F: 7 #16,792,0007T) &
75 1,085,000 (Z & — = F:
75 #51,708,0007T ) °

HARRB IR _E—=F+_A
=+—H Z #5885 %1,085,0007T

—Z— =% :7%#1,708,0007T)
B ARSI

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Included in bank and cash balances of the Group and the
Company are HK$2,174,013,000 and HK$25,658,000
(2012: HK$1,574,735,000 and HK$31,257,000),
respectively, of bank balances denominated in RMB.
RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Under the
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group and the
Company are permitted to exchange RMB for foreign
currencies through banks that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates.

The balances as at 31 December 2013 recorded in
the Group comprised balance of approximately HK$
Nil (2012: HK$16,792,000) and HK$1,085,000 (2012:
HK$1,708,000) which were designated and could only be
applied in the establishment of new subsidiary in the PRC
and dividend payment respectively.

The balance of HK$1,085,000 (2012: HK$1,708,000) as
at 31 December 2013 recorded in the Company could
only be applied in dividend payment.
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24. RERREEE (©) 24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
(c) EEHFBERSF () Major non-cash transactions
—EBE-=F —E——F
2013 2012
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
RETEE Investing activities
WHEEEZBRERE Equity consideration for
acquisition of assets - 59,653
(¥BEaH2BRERE Equity consideration for
business combination - 337,170
- 396,823

25. BNERR KR EMENRKIE 25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

—E-=F —T—-F
2013 2012

BT BET T BETT BETT

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

PN VYN r5E /NS

Group Company Group Company

BRI Trade payables 16,129 - 22,900 -

BeNE (MWita) Cash consideration (note a) 41,296 41,296 96,700 96,700

Hi BN RENER Other payables and accruals 14,950 4,066 19,666 2,972

HEihEMTHE Other tax payables 16,503 - 13,568 -
[ERTEE 8 AT FUA (M7tb)  Amounts due to related parties

(note b) - - 3,870 -

BREFZE Advance from customers 620 - 7,092 -

89,498 45,362 163,796 99,672




146

B 2542 B B BR 2 &) Anxin-China Holdings Limited

B FE R 2R Y

Notes to the Financial Statements

—ZT—=F+=-HA=+—H 31 December 2013

25. YRR R E At B 3 KA
(#%)
Hrat

@ BReREARKBEREE RNEZE=
T—ZF+-A=-+—BLEEE AR
A1 E X F & 5 % #55,404,0007T &
BRER T —MFE—AXfto

(o) ENEEALTERERR 2EKA

RERIEE

— MR HEEATREZEERENT
90H £180H - Z B ZH iR & 2 B+
BRRZBREoWHOT

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Note:

(@)  The cash consideration is for the acquisition of Yu Hong Group.
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company paid
HK$55,404,000 to the vendor and the remaining balance is to be
paid in January 2014.

(b)  The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest free
and repayable on demand.

In general, the credit terms granted by suppliers ranged from
90 to 180 days. The aging analysis of trade payables prepared
based on invoice date is as follows:

—E—-=F T4
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000

ARG Aged:
30H AR Within 30 days 5,142 8,308
31£260H 31 - 60 days 344 2,150
61290H 61 — 90 days 147 1,904
91£2180H 91 - 180 days 367 937
1812365H 181 — 365 days 453 1,087
365H M More than 365 days 9,676 8,514

16,129 22,900
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26. AR ERD

26. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION SHARES

—E—-=F —E——F
2013 2012
BT T BT T
AEBEREAT The Group and the Company HK$’000 HK$’000
WHEWB AR 2 A Fair value of contingent consideration
REBRBZARER shares for the acquisition of
subsidiaries 124,915 270,142

REBREBEE-_Z2——Ft+-_A=+—
BIEFERBEZER 2 2BAE-1E
AWEEZEE2NAE AEBANUT
B R H AL 17208,114, 421 R (B

f& 15

()  E#t30,467,163M M (£ AR i)
SEAk H B 55 77 2 78 #45,000,000
TZRERGD) BAXEMNRERE

REEFESBERTINAEE
45,000,0007C AT IR -

(i) 2 —#t30,467,1630 %1 (¥ # (ii)
/578 #90,000,0007T 2 X (B i% 17
WERZER) i A
REBEBRHE-_Z——FhA
Zt+RIENAREAZABIRESE
36,000,0007T P8R

(i) S =3#40,622,884f% i1 (¥ H A (ifi)
75 #60,000,0007 2 RE KD )
HASERSEBHZE-_T—=F
+- A=+ BALEEZRBANR
7 7 %60,000,0007T AT iR IR

(iv) ZEP#t50,778,6058% B (¥4 A (iv)
78 #75,000,0007 2 R B )
HEXERSBEHZE-Z—=
NAZTBHIENEARZBFIRE
75 #:39,000,0007T AT AR IR+ I

(v)  FEHRHL50,778,606/%[%1% (¥ A (v)
7 #75,000,0007T 2 R BRE 5
HEERERSEE=z_—=F
T AZFT—HLEFEZAIR
35 7 #478,000,0007T BT AR IR ©

The Group acquired the entire equity interest of Tech Praise
Group during the year ended 31 December 2012. As
consideration for the acquisition of Tech Praise Group, the
Group was required to issue 203,114,421 Consideration
Shares based on five tranches in the following manner:—

The 1st tranche of 30,467,163 shares, initially being
HK$45,000,000 of Consideration Shares issued on the
Completion Date, which is subject to the amount of net
assets of Jilin Yingke being no less than HK$45,000,000;

The 2nd tranche of 30,467,163 shares, initially being the
result of subtracting the 1st tranche from HK$90,000,000
of Consideration Shares. Further, it is also subject to the
profit guarantee of HK$36,000,000 of Tech Praise Group
for the nine months ended 30 September 2012;

The 3rd tranche of 40,622,884 shares, initially being
HK$60,000,000 of Consideration Shares, which is subject
to the profit guarantee of HK$60,000,000 of Tech Praise
Group for the year ended 31 December 2012;

The 4th tranche of 50,778,605 shares, initially being
HK$75,000,000 of Consideration Shares, which is subject
to the profit guarantee of HK$39,000,000 of Tech Praise
for the six months ending 30 June 2013; and

The 5th tranche of 50,778,606 shares, initially being
HK$75,000,000 of Consideration Shares, which is subject
to the profit guarantee of HK$78,000,000 of Tech Praise
Group for the year ending 31 December 2013.
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27. ZHEE 27. PROMISSORY NOTE
—E-—=F T
2013 2012
BET T BT T
AEEREAXAAT The Group and the Company HK$’000 HK$’000
NG At the beginning of year 78,658 -
RETRHB 2 AREE Fair value at date of issue (note a)
(Kiita) - 173,822
BRRBEA ZMEWS  Compensation gain arising from
(HiEb) profit guarantee (note b) = (101,490)
REANERHEER S Imputed interest recognised
during the year 8,852 6,326
T 4% At the end of year 87,510 78,658
Biat - Note:
(@ REEZT—=—F+=-A=+—H (@) The Company issued a zero-coupon promissory note in the

LFE ARABTASERBE
189,000,0007T 2 T B & H E & ([
REBDERKBEREE Z 25K
B2MBORE- RLZBEAEMF 2D
HHEREEN —_T—NF—A+8E
Ho

RIFEEFERETZEYGE ALE
BRBBEHZANBERET AN
75 #173,822,0007T &L 2 2 B
MEREERTFLTT% -

(b) WEXBEMH TR EAREBEZE (o)
REEHE-_T——-F+-_A=+—
EﬁiFZ%M%pmpmﬁﬁﬂﬁ

B(ZE—ZFABFREZ])AFTRR -
I%“ﬁﬁ&%ﬁ1o

—E-ZFRFREBELARERN - HE
%EE$ETJ€/mf|JTE&mE$35FgE°
HESEDEBREALZENAS
%ﬁﬁﬁ 455 o FE B U R 7 5 101,490,000
RERE BB HREP E = kEE
Wﬁﬁab REE-ZT—_FRFMRE
% EAZBETBIBEARARNEMD
BREBEXRTIIENEHAE-

principal amount of HK$189,000,000 (the “Promissory Note”) as
part of the consideration for the acquisition of the entire equity of
Yu Hong Group during the year ended 31 December 2012. The
Promissory Note has a two-year term and will be matured on 10
January 2014.

The fair value of the Promissory Note was determined at
approximately HK$173,822,000 at the acquisition date, based
on an independent valuation carried out by Asset Appraisal. The
effective interest rate of the Promissory Note was determined to
be 4.77% per annum.

Pursuant to the completion of the business combination, the
Promissory Note was subject to a profit guarantee of Yu Hong
Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 of HK$90,000,000
(the “2012 Profit Guarantee”) and therefore classified as
contingent consideration.

The 2012 Profit Guarantee was not met and the compensation
amount was determined based on the profit shortfall and a price
earnings multiple of 3.5. The compensation amount was settled
by offsetting against the principle amount of the Promissory
Note. The corresponding gain of HK$101,490,000 was
recognised in other gains and losses in the consolidated financial
statements. After the determination of the 2012 Profit Guarantee
the Promissory Note is no longer classified as contingent
consideration but as a financial liability carried at amortised cost.
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28. IEEHIE 28. DEFERRED TAX
RAFERBTFERRRELERIEA Details of the deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised and
BENBEREFSH 2 FE: movements during the current and prior years:

nE - BER
REZHE RUERIZ HFEZAE
BRERE BERE AEFARE EERE REBE ait
Provision of
impairment

loss on Provision of Provision of

property, impairment impairment

Intangible plant and loss on trade loss on
r5E Group assets equipment receivables inventories Tax losses Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZZ——F—H—H At1January 2012 (11,929 2,335 3,003 - - (6,591)
FREIAEBRE/ Credit/(charge) to profit or loss

#ER (NKB) for the year 13,502 (690) (2,997) - - 9,815
RERUEEH B LA Acquisitions of subsidiaries

during the year (100,974) - - - - (100,974)

ERESE Exchange differences (1,169) 14 6) - - (1,161)
RZE—ZF At 31 December 2012 and

+ZA=+—-H8k 1 January 2013

—E-=45-A-A8 (100,570) 1,659 - - - (98,911)
FRNEAER /#BE  Credit/(charge) to profit or loss

(0R%) for the year 15,273 (1,684) - 654 3,407 17,650
e EH Exchange differences (2,588) 25 - 10 51 (2,502)
WZZ—=%+ At 31 December 2013

—“R=+—H (87,885) - - 664 3,458 (83,763)
BEAPEGEMETRE BZ2TNF Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
—RB— AR FEHMBRRIEERER dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
WamE kR EHBARINREME subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred tax
HeomRAEEg MG TR MEEZEED has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
BrREALSEREEEETZR statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
AR 2R H% Bl 5 - #E - I RN AR A B to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
BHRERARPEME AR Z Bt HK$2,128,342,000 (2012: HK$1,446,552,000) as the Group
BE A 2 E B = BE B 15 2,128,342,000 is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
T (ZF— ZF : F%1,446,552,000 differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will

TO) VE L IR AE R TR H 4 o not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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29. R 29. SHARE CAPITAL

—E-=% —E-Z=F —E-CF -2

2013 2013 2012 2012
E ] EgE
TR BETT Tk BETL
Number Number
'000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$’000
ETE Authorised
BREES®ITZ Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
LER (Hita) (note a) 8,000,000 800,000 4,000,000 400,000
EEITREAR Issued and fully paid
BREEB%0ITZ Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
F1) At beginning of year 2,826,161 282,616 2,680,873 268,087
TERREEEMETLZ Issue of shares on exercise of
i (Ao ) warrants (note b) - - 15,000 1,500
TEBRERMETL Issue of shares on exercise of
B (Hrite) share options (note ¢) 94,846 9,485 37,000 3,700
BEXRI RN ATH Purchase of own shares for
(Hitd) cancellation (note d) (2,200) (220) - -
RITHRD (Hite) Issue of new shares (note ) 91,401 9,140 93,288 9,329

FR At end of the year 3,010,208 301,021 2,826,161 282,616

Biat - Note:

@ BER-_ZE—=FRFA=+—HB8 (a) By an ordinary resolution passed on 31 May 2013, the
BrERRZE ARAIRBIER authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
4,000,000,000% & % ™ & & %0.1 HK$400,000,000 divided into 4,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
TTZBENEBR AR BEHEE HK$0.1 each to HK$800,000,000 by the creation of a further
f% A5 i 78 #400,000,0007T (9 A& 4,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each. All new shares
4,000,000,000% & f% T 18 & #0.17C rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing shares of the
2B %) 1 = 7% 800,000,000 ° Company.

FEFMBORAAETEEERARFE
F2RERNFARFMA-
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29, A (&)
Bsr: (48)

by RZTE—ZTF+AZ+NB AQFH (b)

BUYRERE ([RERIE])FTIRK
EERE W Kt AR BB E R
EREAE -RBREEREBUILRE
NEFERGED DRSNS EREARRR
EEREITESNORREEEB0.017T
R %3E100,000,00017 IE L TR
R ([RIRIEE]) - BITRRREE
Fir {5 30185 %8 /A 15872,0007T °

RBEBE FEEARTRERK
EZETAH (BEZB)B24E
REHEARNEZVSREBTRINKRMD
w122 (Al FHAE)RBRZE
100,000,000% # i% 15 © & 17 3R AR 1 &
WA R — AR TR (D Z R F o

HE-Z——-F+=-A=+—HIF
&+ 15,000,00017 R IR # & B 1R R I8
BEERBIE 22 L BT EE T
15,000,000/ & i E B & #0.170 2 &
Bk -FARBREEERNEE=Z—=
FH+-—AZ+—BIEEEETE-

() RZE—FHA—BARZZT—ZF (c)
MA+ X B RBEARFTRZZTZT=
FH—A=BEMN 2 ERERT 8 85T
37,000,00013 % 158,820,00017 7] 72 &

ARG FBREESE0I0T 2 LB
BRI T EEA ([EFEAL
WERFARABEWNE HAEE-

BHE-_ZT—-—GR-FT—=F+=
A=+—HBI1E&E & #37,000,000
19 5291,096,00017 fE IR iE L RAEE &
BB 5TEITE D RIERET
37,000,0000% }.91,096,0000% & A%
EEEOATZ LB -

Hz—_Z—=F+-_A=+—H1
FE - A $£3,750,00017 B I HE 12 2 8
BEERBME2 25T EITE  EE T
3,750,000/% & IR E BB ¥E0.17T 2 &
AR o

29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note: (continued)

On 28 October 2010, the Company entered into the warrant
placing agreement with an independent placing agent (the
“Placing Agent”), whereby the Company appointed the Placing
Agent as the sole and exclusive placing agent to procure not
less than six placees to subscribe for up to 100,000,000 unlisted
warrants (the “Warrants”), on the best effort basis, at the warrant
issue price of HK$0.01 per Warrant. The net proceed from issue
of warrants amounted to HK$872,000.

The Warrants entitle the placees to subscribe for a maximum
of 100,000,000 new shares at an initial subscription price of
HK$1.22 per new share (subject to adjustment) for a period of 24
months commencing from (and inclusive of) the date of issue of
the Warrants. Each Warrant initially carries the right to subscribe
for one new share.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, 15,000,000 warrants
were exercised at a subscription price of HK$1.22 per share,
resulting in the issue of 15,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each. All the warrants were exercised during the year ended 31
December 2012.

On 1 April 2011 and 16 April 2012, a total of 37,000,000 and
158,820,000 share options to subscribe for ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each of the Company were granted to the grantees (the
“Grantees”), subject to acceptance by the Grantees, under the
share option scheme adopted by the Company on 3 November
2008.

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013, a total
of 37,000,000 and 91,096,000 share options were exercised at
a subscription price of HK$1.5 per share, resulting in the issue
of 37,000,000 and 91,096,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each,
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, a total of 3,750,000
share options were exercised at a subscription price of HK$2.25
per share, resulting in the issue of 3,750,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each.
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29. BRA (&)

29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Hat: (%)

(@ BERZZ——FA=ZBRITZAE
REZBRRAFAE LB TES 2B
CEE([BREE]) EFEELQE
TEBBARAEETRAI0%Z AR
ARp -HEZT—=F+=ZA=1+—
H - RAREEEE #2,200,0000% &
KERG -

) MZZE——FRAMNA - ARAHKK
BLOERERERARAETAR
32,353,756 f% 17 °

HE-_ZT—-—GR-T—=F+=
A=+—BLhFE AAmKE
ExSEEITA 460,934,326 &
91,401,489 f& 15 °

AEBEREAZ BRAREEEER
SELE RN EMERBBHEE
an N AR B FE AR E R AR K 2 B &
BAERAESRERBERRRREHRD
BRAEMEDRFAARENS-

AEBERIERBHE L ERNSE A
SEHEREARBYAREERRNED
REREE BBRFESEFELFE-
BTHFLAAREARE  AKEH
EABRRIMNZBEE2E RARREE
BR -BOIHBEOALEEENRDE
B FAMENZEF B RRBRELN

Note: (continued)

(d) Pursuant to the repurchase mandate granted to the directors
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 3 June
2011 (the “Repurchase Mandate”), the directors are allowed to
repurchase shares in the Company not exceeding 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company. Up to 31 December 2013,
the Company has repurchased a total of 2,200,000 of its own
shares.

(e)  On 4 May 2012, a total of 32,353,756 shares were issued for the
acquisition of Anxin Mate Holdings Limited.

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013, a total
of 60,934,326 and 91,401,489 shares were issued for the
acquisition of Tech Praise Group.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the group entities’ ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.
No changes were made to the objectives or policies during the
year.
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29.

30.

NP
EXEEHE (£)
REBMZERNEEEDRIERBENARR

BAEANEENER (BRBRAREE) -

REBMBEREERRNERER KK
B RBAKBRE EARUIFHHE
XB e RZERBR - R —=%F
TZA=t+—B AEEZEZRRE
EHESEEBEEZLER A% (=
T —Z%F:835%) °

AR RS AE T B 2 ) B B A EHE T
ShERMEIN 2 B A EF o

#m

(a) *EKEHE
REBRAFERBAFEZRHF
BEEEREEHIE RN TIN R
RIITEERFBRANZT) R
B R B R SEEDET
BB 2R,  BRARE UG
A RER BRERE &3
REKE KR BEZHERE
B TR T SBT3 (o) B R

29.

30.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Capital management policy (continued)

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company only, comprising share
capital and reserves.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its assets
position. The Group’s strategy is to maintain a solid base
to support the operations and development of its business
in the long term. The Group’s equity attributable to equity
shareholders over its total assets, as at 31 December 2013
was 91.1% (2012: 83.5%).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
any externally imposed capital requirement.

RESERVES

(@) Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
financial statements. Nature and purpose of the share
premium, warrant reserve, shares held for share award
scheme, capital reserve, share-based payment reserve,
share option reserve, proposed final dividend and
accumulated losses are explained in note (b) below.
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30. M (2)

30. RESERVES (continued)

(b) ZA&AF (b) Company
LOELEE] NRBF
RER RREREE  HEZBRH REGE AHEE  BRERE RRFERS 2itHE Eh
Shares Share-
held for based Share Proposed
Share Warrant  share award Capital payment option final  Accumulated
premium reserve scheme reserve reserve reserve dividend losses Total
(#sti) (i) (#idtii) (Hidtiv) (Hitv) (Hiti) (#isti) (Hiitii)
(note |} (hote fj) (note fi) (note ) (note y) (note v} (note vi) (note vii)
BB BB B8 B8 B8 B8R BT AR BB
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2012 1,516,523 131 - 14911 - 25,289 80,426 (188,038) 1,449,242
Wﬂw REEHEARG Issue of shares upon exercise of warrants 16,931 (131) - - - - - - 16,800
RTERERERZTRE Issue of shares Upon exercise of share options 72,628 - - - - 20,828) - - 51,800
EAHR Issue of new shares 150,561 - - - - - - - 150,561
NRAFARFER Share-based payment expenses - - - - - 70,392 - - 70,392
EREERAARER Equity-settled shere-based payment expenses - - - - 28,795 - - - 28,795
AE-E-—ERERE Distribution of 2011 final dividend (970) - - - - - 80,426) - (81,396)
RERERE Proposed final dividend (101,827) - - - - - 101,827 - -
ERER Loss for e year - - - - - - 93,342) 93,342)
RZF-Z5+-A=1-8 At 31 December 2012 1,653,846 - - 14911 28,795 74,853 101,827 (281,380) 1,592,852
R A-A At 1 January 2013 1,663,846 - - 14911 28,795 74,853 101,827 (281,380) 1,592,852
RERRERZIRA Issue of shares upon exercise of share options 189,807 - - - - (54,210) - - 135,507
EEBZBREXN (Hits) Vested share options lapsed frofe 34) - - - - - (22,726) - 2,126 -
RITHRG Issug of new shares 197,04 - - - - - - - 197,204
RRARBHRE 2Rt Shares purchased for share award scheme - - 19,815) - - - - - (19,815)
HRAFARRER Share-based payment expenses - - - - - 8,724 - - 8,724
EigBEAIRG Purchase of own shares for cancellaion (3,355) - - - - - - - (3,355)
EREERANZAT Equity-settled share-based payment expenses - - - - 17217 - - - 17217
AR-F-ZEXRERS Distribution of 2012 final dividend (1,455) - - - - - (101,827) - (103,282)
ARZF-ZERHERE Distribution of 2013 Interim dividend (41,191) - - - - - - - (41,191)
RERHRE Proposed final dividend 30,102) - - - - - 30,102 - -
fEEE Loss for the year - - - - - - - (166,240) (166,240)
ARARBERE 2Rt 2012 final dividend for shares
“3-ZFRERE purchased for share award scheme 435 - - - - - - - 435
ElGE DRk 2013 interim dividend for shares
2= purchased for share award scheme 169 - - - - - - - 169
RZF-Z5+f=+-8 At 31 December 2013 1,965,378 - (19,815) 14911 46,072 6,641 30,102 (424,894) 1,618,3%
Mz Note:
(i) KRHRE () Share Premium

BAR 3 (B T A A B IR An LA i (B 2%
TRABES WMHREBITRNE
R BROEEZEZE-RE
FEREARE BROEERM
"/)K%ZIK AR - M ERBEE
SRR E B EE  AARAEE
H-REBBEPZHHPER

Share premium is the excess of the proceeds received
over the nominal value of the shares of the Company
less the amount of expenses
incurred in connection with the issue of the shares. Under

issued at a premium,

the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share
premium account is distributable to the shareholders of
the Company, provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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30. R (&)

Mt (&

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

ARREERRER

REEEFER T DIREE
K R B T R RS
P 5 1B R o 0 RR AR A R 1T {62 28
i i By - R AT {8 R I AR 08 I
ZRBRIEE R EERBERER

B A

BRORBFEZTEZRS

i R Bl A 2 iy BIER
IRE P RESB AT AL 2 i ) B DT
R TEIBREENERZ
BB RRE 2D -

&N
BAFEERERNARE—H
BIRZ BRIE

MR BT AREE

NP FEB4PTAR - AR {2 T2 =AY
RREEDARCERLERARR=
FREZBBMBNTFET 2
PRHERA 2 BE-

RS

NP FEB4PTIR - BB AR HE 4 D
ARG R TR 8 MR 2 IR
BANEEEREME 2 — 0D -

BIRARHBKRE
MM EEB AT - Z B ESF
R 2 RE RS

RitER
RETBEENERER 2 R
a3 MR

30. RESERVES (continued)

Note: (continued)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Warrant reserve

Warrant reserve is non-distributable and will be transferred
to share premium account upon the exercise of warrants.
Balance of warrant reserve in relation to the unexercised
warrants at the expiry of the exercise period of the
warrants will be transferred to retained profits.

Shares held for share award scheme

Shares held for share award scheme comprised shares
purchased and held which will be awarded to selected
directors and employees in accordance with share award
scheme as described in note 33.

Capital reserve
Capital reserve represents the waiver of an amount due to
a shareholder of the Company.

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve is used to record the value
of equity benefits to be paid to vendor for the services
rendered in next three years as described in note 34.

Share option reserve

Share option reserve is used to record the value of equity
benefits provided to employees and consultants as part of
their remuneration as described in note 34.

Proposed final dividend
The reserve represents a final dividend proposed by the
directors as described in note 31.

Accumulated losses
Accumulated losses represent cumulative net gains and
losses recognised in profit or loss.
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30. R (#)

30. RESERVES (continued)

—EBE—-=F —E——F
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
Bz AW eS8 E:  Other comprehensive income
includes:

BMEFINETSES 2 Exchange differences arising on
X =5 translating foreign operations 112,733 37,354
HEapira W Other comprehensive income 112,733 37,354

31. K& 31. DIVIDENDS
Company
KAT
—E—=fF —_EF—=
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
B R AR AR B Interim, paid — HK1.4 cents

— TR B 400 (2012: HK Nil cents) per share

—E-CFBEE 41,191 -
REOREIRE Final, proposed — HK1.0 cents

—FRRAB .01l (2012: HK3.6 cents) per share
—E—F: BE36Il) 30,102 103,282
71,293 103,282
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31.

32.

BE (&)
R-E-—NEF=A-+HBLRITZAK
RAEEFCSH L BEEEHREXRY
BRESREBEBREEION(ZE—=
FABMS6M) - BWIERBBEEA
7 #:30,102,0007T ( E B2 3B AR 10 2@ 51
B (A XIS E) A Z RN B E
2% BH)E 121,000 (T ——4F:
BETIT) ) RERAREBHE BT
i 173,010,208,413/% st & » #ER A% B
AREBRREREERRBFRE L1 AR
FAEE - AW ENZE B WmE Rk
EREMNRE -BMEREKEREIEHE
—E-ZHF+-AZ+—ALFEZR
10 B 2 B o

HE

AEEHEERBOMAME -MEH
ERFABIE2F R HE - BXEHD
1A AR

BRBRAX 2 HERBENT

31.

32.

DIVIDENDS (continued)

At the Company’s board meeting held on 25 March 2014, the
directors recommended a final dividend of HK1.0 cents (2012:
HK3.6 cents) per ordinary share. The proposed dividend of
HK$30,102,000, which includes dividends of approximately
HK$121,000 (2012: HK$ Nil) relating to shares held for share
award scheme as set out in note 33, is calculated on the
basis of 3,010,208,413 shares in issue at the date of this
report. The proposed dividend is subject to the approval of
the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and not reflected as a dividend payable in these financial
statements. It will be reflected as an appropriation of share
premium for the year ended 31 December 2013.

LEASES

The Group leases the majority of its office properties. The terms
of property leases are subject to rental reviews every 1 to 2
years and many have break clauses.

The lease payments recognised as an expense are as follows:

—E—=F —E——F

2013 2012

BET T BT T

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

=EBEERE Minimum leases payments 8,193 9,325

ARFEEEFREBIAFRNOT

The total future minimum lease payments are due as follows:

—=F—-= —E—_4F

2013 2012

BET T BT T

HK$’000 HK$’000

B —F Not later than one year 7,945 2,322
BB —FENBBRF Later than one year and not later than

five years 1,874 13

9,819 2,335
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32.

33.

HE #)

FUHSCEAEET 2 RERYKAS
mF

32. LEASES (continued)

The minimum rental receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases are as follows:

—E—=F —F—=
2013 2012
BT T BB T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
NB@E—F Not later than one year 395 1,461

RGoRBFEFE2ZRG

BRERBR-_ZT—=FNANLBZA
o KRR E RS — DI RE S
(T#Z&T8l)) &t ARBRO AR E
HiFHR A G ER%{E 8 1FH2E - %5+ 3
ZEEBE_T-=FNWANBEARB
T

EEZA—RBERARARAG A TERE
SAREHFSEARZTEEE T
BRFEEARRBIRD - AR B TEED
ET#E— R m RE - MBRARAIR
Bzt 8EL 2 R p B E E A B A
RRREL B B RENE 2 B BITIRA
210% - REZERNEBREERES
Al BEEAPTRE 2 RERHD 2 UK
BETIWRABETESZKA - ARAF
REBEZ-_ZE—=F+-A=+—HBL#F
EERE B R M EERY -

. SHARES HELD FOR SHARE AWARD

SCHEME

Pursuant to an announcement dated 9 April 2013, the
Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Scheme”)
under which shares of the Company may be awarded to
eligible employees in accordance with its provisions. The
Scheme operates for 10 years from 8 April 2013.

A trustee has been appointed and the Company may provide
contributed amount to the trustee from time to time for
the purpose of purchasing, administrating and holding the
Company’s shares for the Scheme. The Company shall not
make any further award of shares which result in the aggregate
nominal value of the shares awarded by the Company under
the Scheme exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company shares at the time of such award. Dividend
receivable relating to award shares held by the trustee before
the award shares are vested with eligible employees is treated
as income of the trust fund. No award shares were granted
by the Company to employees during the year ended 31
December 2013.
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33. RO ERAEFFZRG

34.

(%)

ZAtEIT B Z R BB EE T

33. SHARES HELD FOR SHARE AWARD
SCHEME (continued)

Movement in the number of shares held under the Scheme is

as follows:

FiERH#E 8
Number of

shares held Amounts

T A% BT

'000 HK$’000

As beginning of year
NEEE Purchased during the year 12,076 19,815
Vested during the year

As at 31 December 2013

12,076 19,815

URGBEXSTRRS

(a)

BB
ARAREBE-_TT=F+—H=
HBBcREREENRELER
B eSS SR 2 $r BT &) - B
AR 2 2 EE SR (A2 ) - i B
EHEENR_T-—Z=ZF1T—A=
BEwm - RIZEAERT S AR
ExgdR NMIAEBRSHAER
A A

() ArEl-EEAHMBRAR
REBEMKE RATRFABT
IR 2 R EEE ([FTIRE
ER)2EMNRERE (THZ
Bl kS RETWRTE
E BT REAMERTE
£):

iy ArE -HEEMKBRAFK
AR E TR 2T IEHR
TEE(BREBIFENTE
£):

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Share options

The Company operates an equity-settled share based
remuneration scheme pursuant to a resolution passed on
3 November 2003 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to selected participants, and expired on 2
November 2013. Under the Share Option Scheme, the
Board of Directors of the Company may grant options to
the following eligible participants:

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time,
including any executive director but excluding any
non-executive director) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries and any entity (“Invested Entity”) in
which any member of the Group holds any equity
interest;

(i) any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive director) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries and any Invested Entity;
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4. URBERNLRRS (&)

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(i) rAIAEBEEEKE A FSRE
M EERREHEEMIR
2 E A fLpERY

(iv) AEBEERKE QR HEM
FIiREERZEMER:

v RASEEKEAMAKREE

BEHTE MERH R
SRR 2 (AL E
®

(vi) AEEFEAKE QAT
BEEBZMAMBRRE A%
B E R K B A R SR AEAATIR
BEBBITXNERETZME
AEFZEAFEA R

AEBEMRKE QA RAEM
PR EER 2 TN XBRIE
HEBERAAMER (F
S EAM) HABA

(vii)

EREARBBRELIERBR
T REERETEN TREZE
P #E P 3 B 2 B0 48 3R AE (o] B
BN SEEARRE HTRN
30% - EARKARBIRRE LI E
BRT REMN—FREETRA
BT EAER AL Z BREM S
R THETZBROEE TBEBESA
RS R+ @A BMEAR
NAEBEITHENZ1% °

TEEDBARBDEFTEE A
MERATESE : \ARE KD
R BRI Z W8 (i) R E
ERODAHAEEEERZTH
W& 5 K (i) AR mIR D 2 EME -

(i) any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity;

(iv) any customer of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

(v) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(vi) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued
or proposed to be issued by any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; and

(vii) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of

any member of the Group or any Invested Entity.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. The number of shares and to
be issued in respect of which options granted and may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
during the twelve-month period before the date of grant,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant, (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share.
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4. URBERNLRRS (&)

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

EHBEREZFERESHBF RN
T

(continued)

Details and movements of share options are as follows:

nEFIHTEE £ 4=
Weighted
average
exercise price Number
T
’000
RZZTE—ZF At 1 January 2012
—A—H BEEHKS2.257T 37,000
RERFH Granted during the year B HK$1.507T 158,820
RERITEE Exercised during the year 7B B HK$1.507T (37,000)
R-_E——F At 31 December 2012
+=-—A=+—H” BIEHKS$1.677T 158,820
RERTTE Exercised during the year 7 B HK$1.537T (94,846)
RER KR Lapsed during the year B EEHKS2.257T (33,250)
RZE—=F At 31 December 2013
+—-A=+—H B HK$1.507T 30,724
RELAIT{E Exercisable at the end of the year B HEHK$1.507T 11,496

F R 33,250,00017 B 578 B A% 4
BER - BLE 558 BB AR 2 KU
= B%22,726,0007T 2 HE S EE
EEEREREHEEREESRE RN -

P GF 4 180 R 17 {68 B PR M 2 n S
HITFEEEAE150T (22—
F B .67T) RonAE 19 T £
AHFHA120F (ZT—ZF:
1.94%) - KRR AR AFEE AR
CHEREsCARHABE S —ZF
WMA+ A ~AHEZ_-_Z—HFNA
+ER(ZE——F:g-_E—=—
FMA+ABE-_ZE—HEWA
+HA) -

During the year, 33,250,000 vested share options were
lapsed. For the lapse of the vested share options, the
corresponding amount of HK$22,726,000 was transferred
from share option reserve to retained profits.

The weighted average exercise price of options
outstanding at the end of the year is HK$1.50 (2012:
HK$1.67) and their weighted average remaining
contractual life was 1.29 years (2012: 1.94 years). The
validity period of the share options of the Company
granted during the year is from 16 April 2012 to 15 April
2015 (2012: 16 April 2012 to 15 April 2015).
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4. UBRBEXNNARKRS (&) 34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(a) HBEBRRHE(E) (a) Share options (continued)

FARTTEBREZITERHRZ
MiEFHREREBE2.477T

R-B——FREZ2ENBRER
BRH ARz METFHRIAEERE
®o.57T T 2 EEEMNEZHE
ER-—AARREERAEE-

NTERTBEREEANFEAR
BAEEERZAREGEIAR
AN R HMF SR L 2B

fAEZ R EE
Fr A EAREE (B —Ia A HRE
B EER
REEABRZ 1,497

nkEFHRE
A A —E—=F
MA+<H
T{EE 57T
niEFHE L 2.79%

F 5

T8 R 08 71.89%
T8 HA IR B A & 2.01%
e ) = 0.33%

RIEGHRERNRZ R EREAEZ
RIERRTIREBE156B 2 BE
BEZ G EBEI MRS -

BB WREXRTIREBEARAZ
BERSIRNCEHTERL -

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
of options exercised during the year was HK$2.47.

The weighted average fair value of each option granted
during 2012 amounted to HK$0.57 determined at the
date of grant using the Binomial option pricing model was
with reference to assessment by Assets Appraisal.

The following information is relevant in the determination
of the fair value of options granted during the year under
the equity-settled share based remuneration schemes
operated by the Group.
Option pricing model used Binomial option
pricing model

Weighted average share price HK$1.49
at grant date

Grant date 16 April 2012

Exercise price HK$1.5

Weighted average 2.79 years
contractual life

Expected volatility 71.89%

Expected dividend yield 2.01%

Risk free interest rate 0.33%

The volatility assumption, measured at the standard
deviation of expected share price returns, is based on
a statistical analysis of weekly share prices over the last
156 weeks.

The expected dividend yield is calculated based on the
historical dividend payout records of the Company.
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34. LR EXNTIRKRZ (£)

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

“HEABEAC AR EEBREZ
AREE ARFAEBEEZAR
BEZEERRRNERESRZ
REGFT -ZERBRRZEHTE
HBREZ AREBEELES-

BIBEB BT B RELERFE25 R
REUPHETsERLBEREZ
AARBEENEBEHANZE  WHE
JERAEERERE LB
8,724,000/ (ZE —ZF : BK
70,392,000 REEZT—=

+- A=+ HBLEFEEZERRA

RZE——F=ZA+tAH &~5E
HEEM QAR RBE®E - Hut

BEREARRBER=FARBIAE
B R =B AREREREISD
FamizrRiNERRHEZERS

i & 7B B8 1 78 %2 3 ;&% 2 1,0001E
B ([ZERB]) ZERB
2 R {815,000,000% T (HEER
7 #116,435,0007T ) ZE FA A& 2 &
e k3T = #HARERD (Fit
21,569,171/%) H A1 »

BB BB RE LR FE25 %
EMBzAABEIZERED
B ZBREFE cHEOABE
115,179,0007T #5 10 2 @ iR 7% &
BHARBZRR 2BOEK
17,277,000 (= —Z4F : B
28,795,0007L) ERBE_T—=
F+-A=Z+—RALFEZEAZR

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions used
in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the directors’ best estimate. Changes in variables and
assumptions may result in changes in the fair value of the
options.

In accordance with HKFRS 2, the fair value of share
options granted determined at the date of grant is
expensed over the vesting period, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve. An amount
approximately HK$8,724,000 (2012: HK$70,392,000)
was recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2018.

On 17 March 2012, the Group entered into a Services
Agreement with a consulting company whereby the
consulting company agreed to provide services to the
Group within three years for the purpose of assisting
the Group in expanding and developing markets for ISD
platforms in three cities in the PRC, and each of such
cities shall install at least 1,000 surveillance points (“the
Services”). The consideration for the Services, being
US$15,000,000 (equivalent to HK$116,435,000), shall
be satisfied by the Company’s allotment and issuance
of three tranches of Consideration Shares of 21,569,171
shares each.

Pursuant to HKFRS 2, the fair value of the services
measured with reference to the share price at date of
grant amounted to approximately HK$115,179,000
will be recognised in profit and loss throughout the
service vesting period. An amount of approximately
HK$17,277,000 (2012: HK$28,795,000) was recognised
in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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35. RIB AR 2RE 35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
—E—-=F —E——F
NN Company 2013 2012
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
JE MRS - FA A Unlisted shares, at cost 694,256 694,256
OB Less: Impairment loss (55,947) -
638,309 694,256
R-ZZE—=ZF+_A=+—H HEA Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 are as
AFBET: follows:
BEAR
HRAL/ BRRSB/
WEAREE #HERES EMRSELE EMER  AATEEFEREREAL  TEER
E# GF
Place of
Form of incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
business registration and paid up shares/ ownership interest
Name of subsidiary structure operation registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
Directly Indirectly
AEBRAT el EBRAHE 50,000% 7 100% - REBR
((RBRa#E])
Hover Rise Limited Corporation The British Virgin US$50,000 100% - Investment holding
Islands (‘BVI")
HEBRAA %E LBERUES 50,000% 7T - 100% HARR
Eagle Mascot Limited Corporation BVI US$50,000 - 100%  Investment holding
BLBRERAH ] 0 %%10,0007C - 100% RERR
Eagle Champion Holdings Limited Corporation Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
REERERERAR el EERAHE 50,000% 7 100% - hEEEES
Anxin Mate Holdings Limited Corporation BVI US$50,000 100% - Leasing of software systems
ERRERRAT el LEBRUES 150% 7T 100% - REBR
Yu Hong Investments Limited Corporation BVI US$150 100% - Investment holding
BEREBRAF el B 78 #41,0007T - 100% RERR
Island Wide Investments Limited Corporation Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 100%  Investment holding
ERBRAA el EERAHE (E 100% - REER
Tech Praise Limited Corporation BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
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35. RMB AR Z2®RE (&)

35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BRTR
HRAL/ BRRSB/
WEARER #HEREL ERRSELE dMEx  AAREEHERERAEIL  TEXH
=8 k3
Place of
Form of incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
business registration and paid up shares/ ownership interest
Name of subsidiary structure operation registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
Directly Indirectly
BRHREBRAA AE A BEAT - 100% BAER
Win Technology Investment Corporation Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Co., Limited
AAERCEERAT el RERTHE 1T 100% - REBR
Skysail International Enterprises Corporation BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
Limited
SEERAA el A BEAT - 100% BAER
Triumph Light Limited Corporation Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
RNTREETERERAA el HE AR - 100% HSEZABHRERZUHRERP
175,000,0007C BRRERGRAT IR R
FORBANRIREREEER
HERB
Shenzhen Anxin Digital Corporation The PRC RMB175,000,000 - 100%  Production of system hardware
Development Co., Ltd. and application software, and
provision of system solutions
according to client’s need and
provision of long term agency
operation and maintenance
services on system solutions
IHREREBERTERAA AE e AR - 100% HEBREMRREERRRMER
15,000,0007T AR
Jiangsu Hongxin Intelligence Corporation The PRC RMB15,000,000 - 100%  Production of intelligent product
Technology Co., Ltd. and provision of consultancy
services on intelligent system
RNTRHR2 EEE SRS ] B AR - 100% ERCEZPRIERRGEZEH
BRAR 5,000,0007C REER RS
Shenzhen Anke Safety Production Corporation The PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Development on enterprise safety

Information Services Co., Ltd.

technology and provision
of consultancy service for
enterprises safety technology
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35. RBRARIZ2RE (&)

35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BRTR
HRAL/ BRRSB/
WEARER #HEREL ERRSELE &R RAREEHERERAEIL  TEXH
= &
Place of
Form of incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
business registration and paid up shares/ ownership interest
Name of subsidiary structure operation registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
Directly Indirectly
RNTRERRBRERAA el HE =+ - 100% ZHEGRHARERER (RER
10,000,0007T FACCTVZ 5 2 DVRF - DVR
CCORG M RBRE ) 2 &3
BE EERAH
Shenzhen Hawell Advanced Corporation The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Design, development, production
Technology Co., Ltd. and distribution of security and
protection products and CCTV
products including DVR cards,
DVR, CCD camera and relevant
accessories for CCTV system
ERERHEERNERAA AE HE 820,000% 7 - 100%  SHEUREISDRS ZFEERE
REHRREZREATERSE
Jilin Province Yingke Information Corporation The PRC US$820,000 - 100%  Sale of system hardware and
Technology Co., Ltd. application software for
installation of ISD Systems and
provision of system solutions
services
RYTCEBERNERAA AE HE ARH - 100% H£EZABHRERRHRERP
(DRYIEE]) 10,000,0007 BRRERGRAT R R M
FOBANEIRBREEER
BERH
Shenzhen Xinye Intelligence Corporation The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Production of system hardware

Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Xinye”)

and application software, and
provision of system solutions
according to client’s need and
provision of long term agency
operation and maintenance
services on system solutions
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35. RMB AR Z2RE (&)

35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BRTR
HRAL/ BRRSB/
WEARER #HEREL ERRSELE dMEx  AAREEHERERAEIL  TEXH
=8 &
Place of
Form of incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
business registration and paid up shares/ ownership interest
Name of subsidiary structure operation registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
Directly Indirectly
EMEREERRMERAR el e AEH - 100% FEAREISDRS BHZSRE
([EMZA]) 500,0007 REHRERZRRANRRY
WREERGER
Jilin Anxing information Corporation The PRC RMB500,000 - 100%  Development of software system
Technology Co., Ltd. and application software for
(“Jilin Anxing”) installation of ISD Systems and
provision of system solutions
services and sale of system
hardware
MEECEBRERNERAR ] i ARH - 100% FEREERN REZ2RE RE
2,000,0007 RERBRHEEZARERER
A
Hunan Xinye Intelligence Corporation The PRC RMB2,000,000 - 100%  Development on intelligent
Technology Co., Ltd. technology, installment of
safety equipments, provision of
maintenance services and sale of
system hardware and application
software
EEZEHMBRERAT ] HE ARE - 65% AERGEMRERTM REE
10,000,0007C RPEIREZRBATEIAR
REZGBATRZREAES
EREBRE
Chongging Ansheng Science Corporation The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 65%  Production of system hardware

and Technology Co., Ltd.

S B A TR E RS AL (05
P AL 1 (B R -

and application software, and
provision of system solutions
according to client's need and
provision of long term agency
operation and maintenance
services on system solutions

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
the end of year or at any time during the year.
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36. BEALEXRS

TEEEERARBETMESFZME

HRER M BEHRRMEIB - FRAEME

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Key management is the directors of the Company and details

of directors’ remuneration are given in note 13 to the financial

RNBEBALTRGWT : statements. Other significant related party transactions during
the year are as follows:
REEHE
Transaction amount
BEALTERER RXZER —E—=F —E——F
Related party relationship Types of transaction 2013 2012
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
BaE AL (Hit@)) HE WA
Related parties (note (a)) Rental income 1,617 591
e
Rental expenses 1,514 1,476
B (K b))
Consulting expenses (note (b)) 468 448

(a) FBEALERE (BARARZHEF— (@) Related parties represent Chen Hong, who is one of the major
BEERE) REMEHZ AR shareholders of the Company and the companies controlled by

him.

(b) LB BREM E34(a)FTEk 2 AR (b)  The above expense was compensated based on equity-settled
e 45 B AR 0 2 A 302 S B G &1 & share based remuneration scheme as set out in note 34(a).
HH1E -

() ARAHAREHEEALTZRERED (c) The Company has not made any provision for bad or doubtful

EMEE TER-_Z-—=ZFKR_-F
—CHEEHREEREEEALRS
AL A SRR

debts in respect of related parties nor has any commitment
or guarantee been given or received during 2013 and 2012
regarding related party transactions.
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37. HEWE A F 37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
RZZE—=FtA-+HB AEED On 25 July 2018, the Group disposed of its subsidiary, Ease
EHEHMNBRARMEZIERBR AR EiF Sum Holdings Limited, which holds 100% of equity interest of
EMZ (BEB)ERERAB RIEHE Ease Sum (HK) Holdings Limited and Jiangsu Hean Intelligence
ML BB R AR 2 2 EBAHE - Technology Co., Ltd.

REEBRH
—E—-=F
+tA=+EH
On the date of
disposal
25/07/2013
ST
HK$’000
2R E Consideration received 1,695
REBEE Current assets
RekReEE Cash and cash equivalents 341
JE WL BR 3R Trade receivables 1,911
H b fE IR Other receivables 43,416
45,668
REEE Current liabilities
H b &5 F0IE Other payables (43,973)
EEFE Net assets 1,695
HEHEB AT WS Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
B AE Consideration received 1,695
HECEEFE Net assets disposed of (1,695)
& W Gain on disposal -
HEMBARELEZRERARE Net cash inflow arising on disposal of
subsidiaries
BRIRERE Cash consideration received 1,695
B ECHEeRBESELES Less: cash and cash equivalent balances
disposed of (341)

1,354
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3. 2T E—EBEERE

AEEZBEKEEFREAEMTA

i [ %1 LA T &L B
o AR (FIRE kR K IME R )

s RBETRAR
e (FERR
o KRERR

BEZERBCBREESTEHEIL A
EEESG AT Ll RARZBERZ
E—FHEBERTX

()

(ii)

FEm Bz

7K S [ B M) 2K e g 2 22 LA
ARBIER RITERHME
KBEM -AEBNBERE
BFBNEFRERITHER
NRERERAALBENER
@ EERA - RITHBIRN
FRHERNEH - A g 2
FELFEK-

S E 7 B

SMERRR K BN EEEER]
NAEDEERE LN E R
JIENR 5 BEIEETh
ZONER - W AT EH
E B ERINE R o

/

G

PREREHR - LASNE (BDA
RE)VINENERAERHEAE
2 BRE B &% 25,905,000
T(ZE—=—€F: 8K
185,362,0007T ) °

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed through its operations to the following

risks from its use of financial instruments:

. Market risks (Interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk)

o Liquidity risk

Credit risk

o Equity price risk

Policies for managing these risks are set by the Board of

Directors and implemented centrally by the management. The

policy for each of the above risks is described in more detail

below.

(i)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk of the Group is mainly related
to the fluctuation of RMB bank deposit rates. The
Group policy is to keep its bank deposits at floating
rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk. The directors consider the bank
balances are within short maturity period and the
effect of fluctuation in interest rates is insignificant.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when group entities
enter into transactions denominated in a currency
other than their functional currencies. The
management from time to time monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arises.

The carrying amounts of the significant financial
assets denominated in foreign currency (i.e. RMB) at
the end of its reporting period are HK$25,905,000
(2012: HK$185,362,000).
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ERHEESVRERERERH
RN E AEEERESRE

REF EESHRELEE T
ZHHESFE UREAEE RS
EeBR

3. ERITE-RAKRER &) 38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK
MANAGEMENT (continued)
(i) SEREE(E) (i)  Foreign exchange risk (continued)
B E T Sensitivity analysis
SN [ B 1) BURK R 9 AT B4R The sensitivity analysis on foreign exchange risk
AN EN 2R E E - 8B includes financial assets that are denominated in a
ATh e BB LN EHE R 2 foreign currency, i.e. in a currency other than the
HE - TERBRASERN®ME functional currency in which they are measured.
Hﬂ*%ﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁ’lﬁzgé\ The following table indicates the approximate
AIREE EE T — T I effect on the profit after income tax expense in the
f%ﬁfr BREBRAEFNBOHRLO next accounting period in response to reasonably
T possible changes in an exchange rate to which
the Group has significant exposure at the end of
reporting period.
—E-=F —T-_F
HERAEH HERFTEM
EREANE B R FHE
A pd-Z
2013 2012
Effect on profit Effect on profit
after income after income
tax expense tax expense
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
ARBEHEBE: RMB to HKD:
—F{E3% — appreciates by 3%
ZE—TF 14%) (2012: 4%) 777 5,561
—B7{B3% — depreciates by 3%
—E-F14%) (2012: 4%) (777) (5,561)
Z—Eaﬁméﬂﬁiﬂ R E AEE In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
BT HEBEEERAT MR and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
e RIBEEEEKE  UAREERE deemed adequate by the management to finance the

Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of short-
term fluctuation in cash flows. The management of the
Group is responsible for maintaining a balance between
continuity and flexibility of funding through the use
of borrowings in order to meet the Group’s liquidity
requirements.
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38. TR TE-EAKREE 2 38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK
MANAGEMENT (continued)
EAIHNERBENTHT The contractual maturities of financial liabilities are shown
as below:
BRRER —FR —FENt
BHE RERLE RERER  HRZEFR
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
X5E Group amount cash flow on demand 2 years
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—B-=% 2013
ETESHEE Non-derivative financial liabilities
ERET R Trade and other payables
Hib BT 3E 89,498 89,498 89,498 -
ARLRE Promissory note 87,510 87,510 87,510 -
177,008 177,008 177,008 -
—T-ZF 2012
ETESHEE Non-derivative financial liabilities
FEREET R Trade and other payables
H 5B 163,796 163,796 163,796 -
ARLRE Promissory note 78,658 87,510 - 87,510

242,454 251,306 163,796 87,610
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3. e TE-RABERE

/ //:
{7

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK

MANAGEMENT (continued)

ERAEE —-FR —FHE
REE BRERAE FERER HRZFER
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
VYN Company amount cash flow on demand 2 years
BETR BMTR  BNTR  BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=f 2013
ETEERER Non-derivative financial liabilities
E [ 1 5B Other payables 45,362 45,362 45,362 -
ERRE Promissory note 87,510 87,510 87,510 -
132,872 132,872 132,872 -
—E-—-F 2012
FITECRER Non-derivative financial liabilities
H it JE T 508 Other payables 99,672 99,672 99,672 -
AR EE Promissory note 78,658 87,510 - 87,510
178,330 187,182 99,672 87,510
FERBERZEHFELRTE Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default
%’9 EAEHASEENBEE, on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss

o NEBAAKE RN EIR

IEE’J FERK - AEERAEER
REER ﬂﬁ“‘ﬁ‘éuﬁzﬁﬁ REEH(E

ERR -EELRAZEFGTHR
A RBE - AEBERBEEFHBE
EERH RHEL BB AR
EEFAFFEERB -FR A
%@ﬂxfg}f{ﬁz&%@%@M%H&
A#I62% (ZFE—ZF :142%) °
REBRANZ AL HERBER - A
BRIES EREERR -

to the Group. The Group is exposed to credit risk from
loans and receivables. The Group has adopted a credit
policy to monitor and mitigate credit risk arising from
trade receivables. Credit limit is regularly reviewed and
approved by the Board. The Group assesses credit risk
based on customer’s past due record, trading history,
financial condition or credit rating. During the year, the top
five customers of the Group accounted for approximately
62% (2012: 42%) of the total turnover of the Group. The
Group strives to diversify its business base to ensure that
there are controls on the concentrations of credit risk.

173



174

R B 225542 iR B PR 2 &) Anxin-China Holdings Limited

B FE R R Y

Notes to the Financial Statements
—E2—=%F+-"A=+—H 31 December 2013

3. T E-RBEE &)

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK

MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d KRERRE (d)
AEBEBMHRRA ARG REZ
BEMIBERR  BERARA
AZAGBRNERAEEZ & &’
BEZAABE -RBEHKR A
& B E B E26PT 5B 2 Wi
EREEMEL ZHARARERD
i A Ut R B o

BRE ST

RERKR BRES>NEEAIL
BEZSEARAANE ZRES
MEB A AEE 2/ TH W
BEF TH2% (ZTB— 4
2% )+ BIEF A 55 B 1§ m 4 8 N
72,498,000 (Z & — % :
75 #5,403,0007T ) °

39. TR THA-REEKRQAAEE

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
changes in the Company’s own share price to the
extent that the Company’s own shares underlie the fair
value of financial liabilities of the Group. At the end of
the reporting period, the Group is exposed to this risk
through the contingent consideration shares arising from
the acquisition of Tech Praise Group as disclosed in note
26.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis on equity price risk includes the
Group’s financial instruments, the fair value of which will
fluctuate because of changes in the Company’s own
share price. If the share price had been 2% (2012: 2%)
higher/lower, profit for the year would decrease/increase
by HK$2,498,000 (2012: HK$5,403,000).

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CARRYING

AMOUNT AND FAIR VALUE

EER/MEeRMAGBEZREERER
NABEEE-

The directors considered that the carrying amounts of all
financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair value.
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40. RERETHNERMEERER 40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

SEHR

TRINFEMEENABNERAERR
AEE (EE RME49) -

The following table shows the carrying amount and fair value of
financial assets and liabilities as defined in note 4(g):

“2-=% —T-CF
2013 2012
RHEE AREE BHE AREE
Carrying Carrying
biy-3 Group amount Fair value amount Fair value
BET T BETR BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
ERKEWRTIE Loans and receivables 198,448 198,448 369,981 369,981
XBHRITER Restricted bank deposits 1,085 1,085 18,500 18,500
RekBeEE Cash and cash equivalents 2,249,038 2,249,038 1,580,697 1,580,697
tRAE Financial liabilities
HOLRIR() Promissory note (i) 87,510 87,510 78,658 78,658
PAEESHR At EMS R EE  Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost 89,498 89,498 163,796 163,796
AR EBEENSRERE  Financial liabilities measured
at fair value
—HARERN - Contingent consideration shares 124,915 124,915 270,142 270,142
—E-=§ —E-—F
2013 2012
REE AREE ERE AREE
Carrying Carrying
¥ N Company amount Fair value amount Fair value
BETT BETR BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
BRI WA Loans and receivables 1,439,097 1,439,097 1,593,868 1,593,868
RBHETER Restricted bank deposits 1,085 1,085 1,708 1,708
RBekRe%E Cash and cash equivalents 97,900 97,900 32,047 32,947
tRAE Financial liabilities
ELER() Promissory note (i) 87,510 87,510 78,658 78,658
DEEK A EMEBMAE  Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost 45,362 45,362 99,672 99,672
WAREENENEEBAR  Financial liabiities measured
at fair value
- ARERR - Contingent consideration shares 124,915 124,915 270,142 270,142
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ZERESNEREER SR

)y AHEBBSIHF7RM T ——F
BAREBE A2 EALAR
B —E——FRAFREWREK
B4 57 1101,490,0007T T4 35 1B 1K 84
AHEZHENASBEMEE  HERER
e B HRA R EMa S REBEANE
R NEBEFE_E—_FRMNERER &
HEBETHIBEASAREM S EA
REHERANENSRAE-

TREHRBRAABEZIOKFESNR
RABEIENEZB T AN :

40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

(continueq)
(i) The p

romissory note was subject to the 2012 Profit Guarantee

as described in note 27 and therefore classified as contingent
consideration. The 2012 Profit Guarantee was not met and
the compensation amount of HK$101,490,000 was settled by

offsett

ing against the principle amount of the Promissory Note

with corresponding gain recognised in Other gains and losses

in the
of the

consolidated financial statements. After the determination
2012 Profit Guarantee the Promissory Note is no longer

classified as contingent consideration but as a financial liability
carried at amortised cost.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:

F—H: HRAEEXBEREETS Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
ZHRE (REHAE) identical assets or liabilities;
E_H: BRE-AABENOREN & Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within
EXaENEE (BER) Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
s (AIEEREH) BT either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
Fris@AE: & from prices); and
FoH: WIHBEANBERMBEIEE Level 3:  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
EWEESAEHAEB (BT observable market data (unobservable inputs).
AEREAE) -
—E-=F
2013
E-% et 1} E=R st
AEEREKAT Group and Company Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BET T BT BETR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
tHMaE Financial liabilities
WRABEAENERAE Financial liabilities measured
at fair value
-FARERR - Contingent consideration
shares - - 124,915 124,915
—E——F
2012
£ E_R E=4 @at
FEERAAT Group and Company Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BETT BETT BETT BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
tHEE Financial liabilities
WARBEMENSHEE Financial liabilities measured
at fair value
—HARERR - Contingent consideration
shares - - 270,142 270,142
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40.

RERNESHNEMEERSRE 40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
BEMR 2 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(continued)
TERERKARERD ZE=RAAE The following table shows the reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
EitE2 ¥k measurements of contingent consideration shares:
—E-=F —E——4F
KEBREAQTF Group and Company 2013 2012
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
w—HA—8 At 1 January 270,142 -
SRR EPANGIE il Additions from acquisition of
subsidiaries - 337,170
BITRERD Issue of consideration shares (206,364) (100,237)
S AREBRGD Fair value changes on contingent
NABEEZH) consideration shares 61,137 33,209
R+=—RAR=+—H At 31 December 124,915 270,142
FFABRCFRNIARERDAAE Of the fair value changes on contingent consideration shares

EE B HE108,436,0007T /58 7
WMEMRBEBZIARERD (ZF
— 4 : 5#34,123,00070) ° HAKE
B ARBEZE A [ Has RE
Bl

HARREIRD HREBEANRFBRELRAR
BEE YKARBNRE (FI5H
SHMF20) REAER -BABIE

B B AR E & B ol B A E R
BEZARBETK AEEEEREE®
RARB zRERAREE LB
TEEEBEREATABREHAEL
RRBEFE(B=ZM)Z2ER-

for the year included in profit or loss, HK$28,436,000 relates
to contingent consideration shares held at the end of the
reporting period (2012: HK$34,123,000). Fair value changes
on contingent consideration shares are included in ‘Other gains
and losses’.

The consideration shares are measured at fair value based on
the share price of the Company after taking into consideration
the likelihood that the profit guarantee will be met (for details
refer to note 26). A decrease in profit beneath the profit
guarantee amount would lead to a decrease in the fair value of
the contingent consideration shares liability. The management
of the Group used share price of the Company and internal
budgets and forecasts which included information about the
fair value measurement using significant unobservable inputs
(level 3).
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41.

42,

BEHHRER
BREBBHA-_ZT—HWNF_AMNBZA
& AKBERI L — D Ei - ARE]
EEGRHRERBRFRRARIA R
HMBAR (SRR E]) 225
BE(TKWESEHE]) KEFEEEER
B AENDHLREERNRR AR
LERBRFEETFT R Z TR
FEIDARPRERASEZEXZBRE
BRMEL - KRB ERZFBHENARQA
BA-—T—NF-_AMBZAE R
ABHERH ARAIFFMALREHFD
BiER BRI E R R R T

MBHRR 2 E
MBEBREEN -2 MFE=A=TEA
MEE I R TIR

41.

42,

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
Pursuant to announcement on 4 February 2014, the Group
entered into an agreement to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to acquire 100% equity interest of Glory
Pavilion Developments Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
refer to the “Glory Group”) (the “Acquisition”). The Glory Group
is engaged in development, production and distribution of
safety monitoring and security systems, in particulars for
elevators inside buildings in the PRC and was acquired with the
objective to expand the Group’s business in the PRC. Details
of the Acquisition are set out in the Company’s announcement
on 4 February 2014. The process of the Acquisition has
not been completed at the date of this report as not all the
conditions precedent has been fulfilled.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2014.
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HE+-_A=+—HLHFE Forthe year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+-RHLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—EERNF —2-%F —T——F —T-——_F ZB-=%
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
BETIT BETrx BETrT BETT BETx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$’000
(57)
(Restated)
E¥ RESULTS
BEIA Turnover 126,923 336,807 598,172 849,730 671,702
EEMA Cost of sales (72,194) (74,569) (61,689)  (132,775)  (144,214)
EH Gross profit 54,729 262,238 536,483 716,955 527,488
HAb WA Other revenue 3,875 38,934 48,368 97,278 149,454
Hedlzs & (F18) Other gains and (losses) (504,351) 82,740 (22,315) 46,049  (1283,423)
HERMIGHERS Selling and distribution costs (26,371) (21,367) (65,452)  (116,814) (33,469)
ERER Administrative expenses (74,934) (40,593) (31,028) (45,041) (49,851)
e A Research and development
expenses (1,280) (13,934) (51,462) (77,394) (95,064)
HHBER Finance costs (17,882) (50,651) (12,346) (6,326) (8,852)
BRATEHERA Profit (loss) before income
O (&E) tax expense (566,214) 257,367 402,248 614,707 366,283
5 (2R) & Income tax (expense)/credit (3,931) (12,458) 1,972 (66,882) 1,566
FEFMB(BE) Profit (loss) for the year (570,145) 244,909 404,220 547,825 367,849
IATNREEFEFRE (BE)  Profit (loss) for the year
attributable to
KABHEEB A Owners of the Company (570,145) 244,909 404,220 547,872 369,514
RS Non-controlling interests - - - 47) (1,665)
(570,145) 244,909 404,220 547,825 367,849
Tl (B8E) Earnings (losses) per share
EAR () Basic (HK cents) (107.44) 16.44 16.37 20.00 12.68
g (B Diluted (HK cents) (107.44) 11.66 15.35 19.89 12.27

it ERERIEREFELEER KL

BEBMBEE-

Note:

The above income statements represent financial results from both
continuing and discontinued operations.
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HE+-_A=+—HLHFE Forthe year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December

—TENF ZT-FF T——F _T-_F ZB-=F
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
BETT BETI BETx BET B¥Txn
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(&%)
(Restated)
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BELE Total assets 1,630,573 1,762,553 2,650,270 4,082,089 4,503,420
B & Total liabilities (788,022)  (257,057)  (74,674)  (672,227) 398,351
842,651 1,505,496 2,575,596 3,409,862 4,105,069
RRBHEEANEGRER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 842,551 1,605,496 2,573,153 3,409,862 4,102,277
FEPERHE Non-controlling interests - - 2,443 - 2,792
842,551 1,505,496 2,575,596 3,409,862 4,105,069
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